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February
The wrap-up meeting on “Demonstration of 10T
Universal Access Gateway and Platform Application for
Smart Cities”, a key national project awarded by the
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology and led
by Shanghai Sunrise Simcom Ltd. (“Shanghai Sunrise
Simcom”), was held successfully.

May

e C(Client R, one of the Group’s overseas strategic partners,
visited and had an in-depth discussion with us on the
new AR glasses project.

July

e The Group’s first-ever smart watch for children with
GPS positioning tailored for an established Japanese
operator was officially launched.

August
e The Group commenced 5G terminal cooperation with a
premium specialty smart phone brand in Germany.

e A delegation of the management of the Group was
invited to take part in the 30th anniversary event of a
key client in the dedicated communications industry,
where both parties reached an agreement to explore
further cooperation opportunities.

e Shanghai Simcom Limited (“Simcom”) and Shanghai
Sunrise Simcom were named “Innovative Small-
and-Medium Enterprises” by Shanghai Municipal
Commission of Economy and Informatization.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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September

e Simcom was invited to participate in Shanghai Fair
2023 as an exhibitor in Thailand and Singapore to have
in-depth communication with peers all over the world.

October

e The Group was invited to join the Shanghai International
Consumer Electronics Show 2023, where a full array of
state-of-the-art products and solutions were displayed,
and had attracted eye balls and positive publicity from
many.

December

e The Group commenced cooperation with a leading
global intercom terminal client on the 5G dual-mode
intercom terminal front, covering public network
cooperation and dual-mode products.

e The Group was awarded the ATEX/IECEx certification
for higher level of explosion-proof for our monocular
AR glasses, which are currently produced in mass
quantities and delivered.
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Chéirman’s Statement
FERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of SIM
Technology Group Limited (“Company”), | am presenting the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023 (“Year”).

For the Year, the Group recorded a gain attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$344.3 million (2022: loss attributable to owners of
the Company HK$509.5 million). The basic earnings per share was
HK16.07 cents (2022: loss per share HK23.24 cents).

FINAL DIVIDEND AND SPECIAL DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend to
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) for the Year.

Subsequent to the Year, the Board has resolved to declare a special

dividend of HK4 cents per share, amounting to approximately HK$85.7
million in total.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2023, although the COVID-19 pandemic subsided in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC"), the Chinese economy was still affected by
the far-reaching impact of the Sino-US trade war and other factors.
The pace of economic recovery was slow, and exports, investment
and consumption all failed to resume to the pre-epidemic level. While
the Group’s performance in the development of new business and
in sourcing new overseas customers was not satisfactory due to the
economic environment, the Group has made great improvements in
its internal cost control and management in the past year, and many
problems caused by its untimely development plan over the past three
years were fundamentally solved.

The Group achieved a turnover of HK$543.9 million in 2023, a
decrease of 14.7% as compared to the same period last year. Yet the
gross margin for the Year has returned to normal level. By controlling
material procurement costs, improving R&D and production efficiency,
particularly the timely disposal of inventories over the past year and
provision reversal of idle materials, the Group’s gross profit for the Year
improved to HK$120.3 million from a gross loss of HK$12.1 million
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Chairman’s Statement
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in 2022. The loss recorded for the Year was significantly reduced
when compared to 2022, even though a profit still could not be made.
However, due to the recognition of a large amount of non-recurring
income during the Year, the Group recorded a net profit for the Year.

The Group’s untimely development strategy adopted three years ago
had resulted in redundant R&D and management personnel and
overspending on operating expenses which were seriously mismatched
with the scale of revenue. At the same time, due to aggressive business
operations, the management of the Group at that time lacked the
requisite experience in material preparation control, which resulted
in serious slow-moving inventory. In 2023, the management of the
Group tackled the above problems at the root by further optimizing
the organizational structure, cutting the number of staff, increasing
efficiency, reducing costs and controlling risks etc. A lean production
approach was adopted through downsizing and merging. The previous
excessive headcount, loose organizational structure and dispersed R&D
and production bases were significantly streamlined (for example, the
production bases of Shanghai Qingpu, Anhui Tongcheng and Liaoning
Shenyang have now been centralized in Anhui Tongcheng). Not only did
it improve management efficiency, but it also effectively controlled the
costs and expenses in all aspects of operation and management.

The termination of the plan of developing a technological industrial
park in Dongguan, the PRC, in 2023 by the management was due to
the huge discrepancy between the management’s expectations on the
Group’s operational scale at the time of the acquisition of the land and
its subsequent operational scale, which was insufficient to support
the additional capacity brought about by the new production base. So
the management initiated the process of terminating the project and
returning the relevant land.

In 2023, the Group increased its investment in an associated company,
Shanghai Zhenkang Electronics Limited (F/8ZREEFER A F]), and
became its controlling shareholder. This enabled the Group to step
further into the automotive electronics industry. Although competition
in the automotive electronics industry will become increasingly fierce in
the future, it is still way better when compared with the Group’s existing
|OT terminals business. The automotive electronics industry has certain
entry barriers, and the Group is positioned in the In-Vehicle Infotainment
(IVI) sub-segment which has the highest entry barriers. The Group
has already been recognised by a Japanese joint venture automobile
manufacturer. Hence, the management believes that it is a business
worth developing and investing in. At present, the product development
has basically been completed and the products will appear in a series of
new vehicles to be launched by this manufacturer in 2024.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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Handsets and IOT terminals business

Firstly, as affected by the international trade war and the pandemic
earlier on, the expansion of overseas business was difficult, and
overseas orders were greatly reduced. Secondly, the Group and other
domestic manufacturers were faced with the situation of oversupply
and shortage of demand. Price competition in the market became
increasingly fierce. Therefore, during the Year, the turnover remained at
a low level, revenue was unable to cover fixed costs and no profit could
be made. The business recorded a turnover of HK$491.2 million in
2023, a decrease of 16.0% as compared to the same period last year.
Gross profit of HK$75.0 million was recorded for the Year, a significant
improvement over the gross loss of HK$61.2 million in the same period
last year. The gross loss in 2022 was mainly due to the impairment
provision for a large amount of inventory in the previous period.

As the core business of the Group, the management will take more
active and effective measures to cope with issues such as the declining
market demand and the intensifying competition. Relying on the
advanced technology and good reputation accumulated in this field for
many years, the management will take the initiative to further penetrate
into the domestic and foreign markets, develop new products and
expand new markets, while focusing on products with advantages,
quality customers and improvement in customer satisfaction. The Group
will seek cooperation opportunities with more high-quality customers to
generate revenue and profit.

Property management

For the Year, the revenue of property management was mainly derived
from the leasing of Block A and Block B of SIM Technology Building
in Shanghai, factory units in Shanghai and Shenyang and commercial
properties in Shenyang. Up until the completion of the Land Resumption
(as defined below), a total area of approximately 108,000 square meters
was leased out. To utilize our resources more effectively, the Group will
continue to develop the property management business by leasing out
the spare space at factories and other buildings.
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The revenue of property management for the Year amounted to
HK$52.8 million (2022: HK$53.3 million) with a gross profit margin of
85.9% (2022: 92.2%). In July 2023, Shanghai Sunrise Simcom Limited
(“SH Sunrise”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a land resumption agreement (“Agreement”) with the
local government in respect of the resumption (“Land Resumption”) of
the land use rights of a piece of land owned by SH Sunrise in Qingpu,
Shanghai together with all buildings, structures and attachments thereat
(“Qingpu Plant”). The Land Resumption has been completed and all
the tenants of the Qingpu Plant have received appropriate compensation
and have been relocated. As a result of the Land Resumption, the total
leased out area has reduced from approximately 108,000 square meters
to approximately 76,000 square meters.

Prospects

The prospect of the Group’s handsets and 10T terminals business in
2024 is still not optimistic. New businesses, new markets and new
talents are needed to unleash our potential and bring about a second
wave of development to the Group. Developing automotive electronics
business is an opportunity, but one such project requires millions
of dollars in R&D investment, and hundreds of millions of dollars in
revenue to support product delivery, which also poses a challenge to
the Group. Therefore, the management will maintain a pragmatic and
prudent attitude toward this business, respond to the market actively
and make cautious investment. In addition, the management will also
conduct in-depth exploration of some new businesses and business
models. In the future, the management will continue to follow the route
of pragmatic and steady development in order to create value for the
Group and benefits for the Shareholders.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my cordial appreciation
to our Shareholders, customers, suppliers, principal bankers and
professional advisers for their support. | would also like to thank all
employees of the Company for their efforts and dedication throughout
the Year.

Wong Cho Tung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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> Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the Year, the revenue from the handsets and |OT terminals business
(“Core Business”) decreased by 16.0% to HK$491.2 million (2022:
HK$584.7 million). The revenue from property management (“Non-
core Business”) decreased by 1.1% to HK$52.8 million in 2023 as
compared with that in 2022 (2022: HK$53.3 million). The total revenue
of the Group for the Year, which included revenue of Core Business and
Non-core Business, amounted to HK$543.9 million (2022: HK$638.0
million).

The gross profit for the Core Business for the Year was HK$75.0 million
(2022: gross loss HK$61.2 million). The gross profit margin for the Core
Business was 15.3% (2022: gross loss margin 10.5%) and the gross
profit margin for the Non-core Business decreased to 85.9% (2022:
92.2%) The overall gross profit margin of the Group for the Year was
22.1% (2022: gross loss margin 1.9%).

The Group recorded a gain attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$344.3 million (2022: loss attributable to owners of the Company
HK$509.5 million) for the Year. The basic earning per share for the
Year was HK16.07 cents (2022: loss per share HK23.24 cents). The
turnaround in earnings is principally attributable to the gain from the
Land Resumption. The gain from the Land Resumption (before PRC
Land Appreciation Tax) was approximately HK$537.8 million.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

R & D expenses

In 2023, the Group mainly focused on the development of the handsets
and IOT terminals business. The number of design and development
team members was 107 in 2023 (2022: 182). Total R&D expenses of
the Group amounted to HK$136.9 million (2022: HK$245.3 million),
representing 25.2% (2022: 38.4%) of the Group’s revenue.

Selling and distribution costs

The selling and distribution costs of the Group for the Year decreased
by 29.8% to HK$24.4 million (2022: HK$34.7 million). The ratio of the
selling and distribution costs over revenue in 2023 was 4.5% (2022:
5.4%).

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses for the Year decreased by 53.0%
to HK$81.6 million (2022: HK$173.8 million), representing 15.0%
(2022: 27.2%) of the revenue.

The reasons for the significant decrease in R&D expenses, selling and
distribution costs and administrative expenses were disclosed in the
“Business Review” section above.

(X
D
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Segment results of Core Business

Year ended 31 December 2023
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Year ended 31 December 2022

BE-Z-ZF+-A=+-HLEE HE-T-—F+-A=t-HIFE

Gross Gross profit Gross loss

Revenue margin Revenue  Gross loss margin

A EFE WA EHE EEX

HK$'M HK$'M % HK$'M HK$'M %

BEET HBEER % BEET BEBET %

Handsets and 10T terminals business T 1 I M1 4% i 75 491.2 15.3 584.7 (61.2) (10.5)
Total FCE 491.2 15.3 584.7 (61.2) (10.5)

Handsets and IOT terminals business

The revenue of this segment decreased year-on-year by 16.0% to
HK$491.2 million (2022: HK$584.7 million) in 2023. As affected by
the international trade war and the pandemic earlier on, the expansion
of overseas business was difficult, and overseas orders were greatly
reduced. In addition, the Group and other domestic manufacturers
were faced with the situation of oversupply and shortage of demand.
The overall gross profit margin of this business segment returned to
normal and recorded a gross profit margin of 15.3% (2022: gross loss
margin 10.5%) for the Year. The revenue of ODM business contributed
to approximately 91% of the revenue of this segment in 2023 (2022:
86%).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

Liquidity

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had bank balances and cash
of HK$74.2 million (31 December 2022: HK$191.8 million), among
which 76.8% was held in US dollars, 19.5% was held in Renminbi and
the remaining balance was held in Hong Kong dollars, and short-term
bank deposits of HK$693.7 million (31 December 2022: HK$168.1),
among which 51.9% was held in Renminbi and the remaining balance
was held in US dollars. As at 31 December 2023, the Group also
had pledged bank deposits of HK$22.0 million (31 December 2022:
HK$165.8 million), all of which were held in Renminbi, for the purpose
of the Group’s Renminbi borrowings. The Group intends to finance its
working capital and capital expenditure plans from such bank balances.
The Group has pledged bank deposits to secure the bank borrowings.
The total bank borrowings of the Group amounted to HK$33.0 million
as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: HK$240.2 million), all of
which were denominated in Renminbi. All of the bank borrowings were
at floating interest rates and repayable within one year.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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Operating Efficiency

The respective turnover period of inventory, trade and notes receivables,
trade and notes payables of the Group for the Core Business is
presented below:

Inventory turnover period FEA%SHE
Trade and notes receivables turnover period  FEURE 5 BE 7k & Z= 4% 8 2 HY
Trade and notes payables turnover period JERE SRR R EBAER

The inventory turnover period for the Year was roughly the same as that
in 2022.

The trade and notes receivables turnover period increased for the Year as
compared to that of 2022 due to the decrease in sales for the Year.

As affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, repayment schedules of certain
accounts payables in 2022 were delayed. After the COVID-19 pandemic,
the repayment schedules returned to normal. As a result, the trade and
notes payables turnover days decreased for the Year as compared to
that of 2022.

As at 31 December 2023, the current ratio, calculated as current assets
(excluding assets held for disposal) over current liabilities, was 3.3 times
(31 December 2022: 1.5 times).

The Group reckons that inventory turnover period, trade and notes
receivables turnover period, and trade and notes payables turnover
period help the Group to understand its ability to convert inventory into
cash and its sales and cash conversion cycle. Through reviewing the
turnover periods, the Group can improve its operational efficiency. The
current ratio can help the Group to understand its ability to pay short-
term and long-term obligations.

Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a prudent approach in its treasury policy. The
Group’s surplus funds are mainly held under fixed and savings deposits
in reputable banks to earn interest income.

Certain sales and purchases of inventories of the Group are
denominated in US dollars. Furthermore, certain trade receivables,
trade payables and bank balances are denominated in US dollars,
thereby exposing the Group to the currency risk of US dollars. As at 31
December 2023, the Group did not use any financial instrument for
hedging purpose but it will consider entering into non-deliverable foreign
exchange forward contracts to eliminate the foreign exchange exposure
in US dollars when necessary.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at 31 December 2023, the Company had 2,143,351,300 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each in issue.

No shares of the Company were issued during the Year.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2023, the total assets value of the Group was
HK$2,149.5 million (31 December 2022: HK$2,053.9 million) and the
bank borrowings was HK$33.0 million (31 December 2022: HK$240.2
million). The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total bank
borrowings over total assets, was 1.5% (31 December 2022: 11.7%).

The Group reviews its gearing ratio on a regular basis. According to
its capital plan for the future, the Group tries to maximise revenue for
the Shareholders with capital risk awareness in mind. Capital structure
is constantly being adjusted according to changes in the operational
environment.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

During the Year, the Group did not have any material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries or associated companies.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT
During the Year, the Group did not have any future plans for material
investment or capital assets.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT
As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any significant
investment.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had approximately 688 (2022:
1,088) employees. The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme for all of its employees in Hong Kong, and
provides its PRC employees with welfare schemes as required by the
applicable laws and regulations of the PRC. The Group may also offer
discretionary bonuses and grant share options under the share option
scheme of the Company to its employees by reference to individual
performance and the performance of the Group. Total staff costs
incurred by the Group amounted to HK$189.1 million (2022: HK$348.6
million) during the Year.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
EEENRRDNT

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set by the
human resources department. The Group seeks to provide remuneration
packages on the basis of the merit, qualifications and competence of
the employees.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are reviewed by the remuneration committee of the Board
(“Remuneration Committee”), having regard to factors including the
Group’s operating results, responsibilities of the Directors and senior
management and comparable market statistics.

The Company adopted a pre-listing share option scheme to recognise
and reward the contribution of certain Directors and employees of
the Group to the growth and development of the Group. After listing,
the Company has adopted another share option scheme and a share
award scheme, the primary purpose of which is to motivate the eligible
persons referred to in the scheme, which include executive Directors
and employees of the Group, to optimise their future contributions to the
Group and to reward them for their efforts. Details of the share option
schemes and the share award scheme of the Company are set out in
notes 36 and 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT
During the Year, the Group did not have any future plans for material
investment or capital assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events of the Group occurred since the end of
the Year.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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ﬁ&elopment Concept of SIM Technology
EABEHNRREER

LONG-TERM DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT

We will continue to strive to create long-term value for our customers,
Shareholders and employees.

TARGET TO BECOME MARKET LEADER

Our target is to make the Company the market leader in handset and
|IOT terminals product solutions and services. All employees of the
Group are fully confident in, and are striving for, achieving the target.

CUSTOMER-ORIENTED WITH CONTINUOUS
INNOVATION

We are customer-oriented. We continue to attend to, in a timely manner,
our customers’ needs through continuous innovation in technology and
management.

BUSINESS FIDELITY AND SUSTAINABLE
OPERATION

Fidelity is the Company’s operating principle and standard, thereby we
have won confidence from our investors, customers, suppliers, as well as
employees.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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MAKING THE WORLD BETTER BECAUSE OF US

With “making the world better because of us” as our corporate vision,
the Group aims to make the world a better place through our continuous
efforts.

Support from the community is vital to any corporate development, thus
giving back is undeniably our corporate responsibility. We are aware of
our limited ability, but as long as we do our best in every detail and take
up our responsibility, the world will be better because of us.

SUNRISE PEOPLE CHARITY FUND

An organisation established and funded by the employees of the Group
for charity purpose. Sunrise People (the employees of the Group)
should not only be satisfied with material wealth but should also enrich
ourselves spiritually. The Group wishes that more Sunrise People can
share and practice our charitable culture so as to create a better and
more harmonious future together.

FOCUSED ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group initiated campaigns such as the “Green in Action” and
started from every detail to contribute to environmental protection.
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 Directors and Senior Management Profile
EEREREEAR

DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Cho Tung (“Mr. Wong")

aged 79, is the chairman of the Company and
an executive Director. Mr. Wong is responsible
for participating in formulation of the direction,
strategies and be responsible for the development
plan of the new business of the Group. Mr. Wong
is the chairperson of Shanghai SIM Technology
Limited and a director of Shanghai Sunrise Simcom.
Mr. Wong is also the director of Info Dynasty Group
Limited (“Info Dynasty”) and Intellipower Investments
Limited (“Intellipower”), both of which are substantial
Shareholders. Mr. Wong together with his spouse,
Mrs. Wong, an executive Director, were the founders
of the Company. Mr. Wong graduated in 1968 from
the Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics
(currently known as Beihang University), specialising
in electrical engineering. Mr. Wong has decades
of experience in the electrical, electronics and
telecommunications industry. Mr. Wong is the father
of Mr. Wong Hei, Simon, a non-executive Director.

Ms. Yeung Man Ying (“Mrs. Wong”)

aged 79, is an executive Director and a director of
Sunrise Electronic Industry Limited. Mrs. Wong is
responsible for developing direction and strategies
of the Group. Mrs. Wong together with her spouse,
Mr. Wong, an executive Director, were the founders
of the Company. Over the years, Mrs. Wong and Mr.
Wong had established a number of companies which
engaged in the electronics and telecommunications
business including Shanghai Sunrise Simcom, one of
the Group’s main operating subsidiaries, which was
established in November 1993. Mrs. Wong has over
20 years of operational and management experience
in the electronics and telecommunications industry.
Mrs. Wong lectured at the Electrical Department of
the South China University of Technology in 1977.
Mrs. Wong has been a guest professor at Tongji
University since 2003. Mrs. Wong graduated in
1968 from the Beijing University of Aeronautics
and Astronautics (currently known as Beihang
University), specialising in electrical engineering.
Mrs. Wong is the mother of Mr. Wong Hei, Simon, a
non-executive Director.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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Mr. Zhu Wenhui (“Mr. Zhu")

aged 42, is an executive Director and general
manager of the finance department of the Group’s
operations headquarters in the PRC (“PRC
Headquarters”). Mr. Zhu obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economics from Tongji University in 2004.
From 2004 to 2005, he was credit manager at the
Shanghai branch of Bank of Communications where
he was responsible for corporate risk management
and credit assessment. He was responsible for
leading the establishment of a financial management
control system that meets the needs of the Group’s
strategic development and improving its financial
system in terms of comprehensive budgeting,
accounting analysis and risk management and
control. He also has extensive experience in capital
operations projects, international settlements,
taxation and capital management required for the
operation of PRC companies. He is a Certified
Management Accountant of the Institute of
Management Accountants in the United States of
America. Mr. Zhu was appointed as an executive
Director in February 2021.

Mr. Zhu Qi

aged 44, is an executive Director and the chief
operating officer (“CO0") of the PRC Headquarters.
Mr. Zhu Qi obtained a bachelor’s degree in electrical
automation from Shanghai University in 2002,
minoring in computer science and technology. Mr.
Zhu Qi joined the Group in 2003. Prior to becoming
the COO in 2020, Mr. Zhu Qi had served in various
departments of the Group including the technology
research and development department, the sales and
marketing department and the resource department.
He has extensive experience in the electronics and
telecommunications industry, especially in market
and product development and project management.
Mr. Zhu Qi is responsible for the deliveries,
operation, production and manufacturing, quality
control and information technology of the Group’s
business in the PRC. Since 30 September 2022, Mr.
Zhu has also been a core member of the Group’s
administration team in the PRC Headquarters, which
performs the roles and duties of the chief executive
officer of the Group. Mr. Zhu Qi was appointed as an
executive Director in September 2023.
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Mr. Wong Hei, Simon

aged 51, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Wong
Hei, Simon obtained a bachelor’s degree in science
from Boston University in 1995, specialising in
electrical engineering. Prior to joining Sunrise
Technology Limited 2EEETRFER QA
(“Sunrise Technology (HK)”) in 1995, he worked
at the headquarters of National Semiconductor in
the Silicon Valley. He was appointed as director of
Sunrise Technology (HK) in 1999. He has been
director of Sunrise Technology Group Limited £
Rk =B B R AT since February 2000. He was
director of Sunrise Electronic Industry Limited &£
BT TEBR A7 from February 2000 until 2013.
Mr. Wong Hei, Simon was appointed as managing
director of Chinatronic Technology Limited from
2001 to 2003. He was the managing director of SIM
Technology HK Limited (2B EFEEGR A7)
from 2004 to 2009. During the period from October
2003 to 2007, he was director of /&2 EFRHE
BBR/AF] (Shanghai Sunrise Electronic Technology
Co., Ltd.). He was director of Simcom International
Holdings Limited and Suncom International Holdings
Limited from 2004 to 2013. He was director of X
SABMRAF] (Max Vision Limited), an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, from
2006 to 2013. He served as an executive Director
and president of the Company from 2005 to 2013.
At present, Mr. Wong Hei, Simon is a director of
multiple investment holding companies. He has
more than 26 years of experience in the electronics
and telecommunications industry and extensive
experience in investment and business management.
Mr. Wong Hei, Simon is the son of Mrs. Wong and
Mr. Wong, who are both executive Directors and
controlling Shareholders. He is also a shareholder
of Info Dynasty and Intellipower, both of which are
substantial Shareholders. Mr. Wong Hei, Simon was
appointed as a non-executive Director in December
2021.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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Mr. Liu Hing Hung (“Mr. HH Liu")

aged 61, is an independent non-executive Director,
the chairman of the audit committee of the
Board (“Audit Committee”), the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and the chairman of
nomination committee of the Board (“Nomination
Committee”). Mr. HH Liu is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and also
a member of the Society of Chinese Accountants
and Auditors. Mr. HH Liu now runs a professional
accountancy firm in Hong Kong and has over
ten years of experience in accounting, taxation,
auditing and corporate finance. Mr. HH Liu is
also an independent non-executive director of
Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (stock code:
887), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange from May 2017. Mr. HH Liu was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in September 2008.

Mr. Li Minbo (“Mr. Li”)

aged 53, is an independent non-executive Director,
a member of Audit Committee, a member of
Remuneration Committee and a member of
Nomination Committee. Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’s
degree in engineering from Nanjing University of
Aeronautics and Astronautics in 1991, a master’s
degree in engineering from Beihang University
in 1997 and a doctor’s degree in engineering
from Tsinghua University in 2001. He worked
as Postdoctoral Fellow at National University of
Singapore from 2001 to 2002. From 1991 to 1994,
he was a college teacher at the worker college
of Changhe Aircraft Industries Company* (&)1
M T %0 7)). He was a researcher at Kingdee
International Software Group Company Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 268), from 2003 to 2004
and has been associate professor of the School
of Computer Science and Technology of Fudan
University since 2007. At present, he is the director
of the Manufacturing Data Research Office of the
Shanghai Key Laboratory of Data Science. Mr. Li was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in February 2021.

n \\_'_.\_.

D

Directors and Senior Management Profile o
EERSREEAR

BEELREI(BEE]D

6158  RBUINTEE EZGZE
RZEg ([ERZEGNIRE  FHZEE
grEhkEFg2REZE8e([(REEE8
EDEF - BRERBABEITMAELE
BRBEEZERER  TRABEAE
FEAEEE BAARTIERE-HE
EEITT  RESR - B BKERE
EMETEHEBTFER - BEERC
TtFRARTAREEEREERD
Al (B RE% - 887) Z B IEMITES -
AZRRRBRAERLES - BREER-F
ENFNARZERBIIFNTES -

HEOREE ([Z5%4%])

5355 ' BBNIENITES  EREZES
BE - - FTHWEESKREBRREZEZEEK
8 o ZEER—NN—FREREEMEM
IAREBTBEAEN  R—NNEFES
bR ZE A R T EE+EA - R
T —FREEEABTEF L2 - F
R FE2_TT_FEHFINEETL
AEBETHELEWFRE - R—hANL—FE
—RATIEFEAR - SR TN F
BT AEBETASBHA HR_TT=F
BTGB ER ETOQFE
SR SFEBEAR AR (MK
268) EAMTE W —TTLFRHT
ERRETERBEREITSRIHE - &
BHAER ESSBER 25 TR ERIER
BMREEET - TEAENR_ZE-_—F_8
ELEABIIFNITES o

RANKEBRERAR

-z
—z=

—=FEFR

23



NGl Bl 0 1 TTIN g

7
2 !

o

24

o Directors and Senior Management Profile
EEREREBEAR

Mr. Yang Wentao (“Mr. Yang”)

aged 56, is an independent non-executive Director,
a member of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Yang obtained
a bachelor’'s degree in automatic control, majoring
in control and manipulation system of fluid, from
Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics
(currently known as Beihang University) in 1990
and an executive master in business administration
degree from Tsinghua University in 2010. He has
over 18 years of experience in global procurement.
He was the chief procurement officer (CPO) and the
vice president of Lenovo Group Limited (a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with
HKD counter stock code 992 and RMB counter
stock code 80992) from 1998 to 2017. He also has
extensive experience in the investment industry.
From 2018 to 2020, he was the chief executive
officer of Beihang Investment Co., Limited. Mr.
Yang then founded Beijing Gold Master Investment
Limited and Beijing Rarsig Medical Limited in 2020
and 2023 respectively. Mr. Yang was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director in January
2024.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Ms. Chan Chi Yin (“Ms. Chan”), CPA

aged 45, is the chief financial officer and company
secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”).
Ms. Chan joined the Company in April 2017 and was
responsible for the financial reporting of the Group.
Ms. Chan was appointed as the Company Secretary
on 28 June 2017 and appointed as the chief
financial officer of the Company on 29 June 2018.
Ms. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and has over twenty
years of experience in the field of accounting. Ms.
Chan obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration
degree majoring in Accountancy and a Master of
Science Programme in Finance from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
The Directors are pleased to present the Group’s annual report and the

audited consolidated financial statements for the Year (“Report”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss on page 127.

The Board does not recommend the payment of the final dividend to the

Shareholders for the Year.

There was no arrangement with any Shareholder under which he/shef/it

has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for the past five financial years
ended 31 December 2023 and assets and liabilities of the Group as at
31 December 2019, 2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023 are set out on page
275 of this Report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT AND LAND USE RIGHTS

Details of the movements in the investment properties, property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets of the Group during the Year are
set out in notes 16, 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the

Year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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ESEHRE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED

SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Year, with a view to enhancing the net asset value per share,
the Company repurchased 55,174,000 shares of the Company on the
Stock Exchange and the shares repurchased were cancelled during the

Year. Details of the repurchase were as follows:

Month of

repurchase

e A4

August 2023 —Z-=%)\A
September 2023 —E-=FhA
October 2023 —E-=F+A

Other than the shares repurchased by the Company as disclosed above,

neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

Number of
shares
repurchased
BEROHE
'000

FB

280
37,128
17,766

55,174

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to

the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders as at
31 December 2023 were approximately HK$373,636,000, being the
contributed surplus of approximately HK$193,848,000 and retained

profit of approximately HK$179,788,000.
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Aggregate price

paid (inclusive

Price per share of related
FRER expenses)
Highest Lowest 2HEER
58] & (EEEREX)
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
AT BT FHER
0.255 0.250 72
0.340 0.265 11,784
0.360 0.340 6,405
18,261
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Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(a) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as

they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium account.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the Year and as at the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Cho Tung (Chairman)

Ms. Yeung Man Ying

Mr. Liu Jun (Chief technical officer) (resigned with effect from 28
September 2023)

Mr. Zhu Wenhui

Mr. Zhu Qi (appointed with effect from 28 September 2023)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Wong Hei, Simon

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Hing Hung

Mr. Wu Zhe (resigned with effect from 25 January 2024)

Mr. Li Minbo

Mr. Yang Wentao (appointed with effect from 25 January 2024)

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year

without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Directors and

Senior Management Profile” section of this Report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS EERFETHAERRGD 2 ES
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES 5979
R-ZE-_=F+-"F=+—H LKA RA
FETRABRARBISKEFMEREEZ
& - HEEERD RMESF (ERRESRBEK
BFIEXVER (BEEMIE5718) ([FH MR
B11)) A IR AR R 5 I HA S (61 6 352 kac 8%
RARRETHBFEZELME - iR LR
RIFTEXC3R EMEITABRETELR FNE
PRI (MZ2ESFR))) BAIE AR R KRBT 2

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap 571, Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFQO")), as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions

by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 SRR -
to the Listing Rules, were as follows:
Long position in the shares of the Company BEALATIRDZHE

Approximate

Total number of percentage of

ordinary shares of interest in
Name of director Nature of interest the Company the Company
b N QTR
EEHA fEmME ZRRAH BABESE
(note 4)
(H15t4)
Mr. Wong Cho Tung Corporate interest (note 1) 1,209,084,000 56.41%
FEELE NEVER (WiE1)
Personal interest (note 3) 23,912,000 1.12%
EAME= (H1723)
Total 1,232,996,000 57.53%
FEE
Ms. Yeung Man Ying Corporate interest (note 2) 734,857,000 34.29%
XL+ NEER (Mi2)
Personal interest (note 3) 24,234,000 1.13%
EA MR (H1523)
Total 759,091,000 35.42%
FEE
Mr. Zhu Qi Personal interest 225,000 0.01%
RIEAE B A=
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Notes:

1. Mr. Wong Cho Tung (“Mr. Wong”) controls more than one-third of the voting
power of Info Dynasty Group Limited (“Info Dynasty”). Mr. Wong is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the 734,857,000 shares held by Info Dynasty in
the Company by virtue of Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Wong is the sole director of
Intellipower Investments Limited (“Intellipower”) and Simcom Limited (“Simcom
(BVI)") is wholly-owned by Mr. Wong. Therefore, Mr. Wong is deemed to be
interested in all the 454,227,000 shares and 20,000,000 shares held by
Intellipower and Simcom (BVI) respectively in the Company by virtue of Part XV
of the SFO respectively.

2. Ms. Yeung Man Ying (“Mrs. Wong”), the spouse of Mr. Wong, controls more
than one-third of the voting power of Info Dynasty. Mrs. Wong is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the 734,857,000 shares held by Info Dynasty by
virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

3. 3,098,000 of which are held jointly by Mr. Wong and Mrs. Wong.

4. Calculation of percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued
share capital of 2,143,351,300 shares of the Company as at 31 December
2023.

As at 31 December 2023, save as disclosed above, none of the
Directors, chief executives of the Company or their associates had any
interests or short positions, whether beneficial or non-beneficial, in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed below, during the Year, the Company did not enter
into any equity-linked agreement (as defined in section 6 of the
Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of
Hong Kong)).

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has had two share option schemes, including the post-
initial public offering share option scheme (“Post IPO Share Option
Scheme”) and the existing share option scheme (“Existing Share Option

Scheme”).
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Post IPO Share Option Scheme

The Post IPO Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company
on 30 May 2005 and remained in force until 29 May 2015, being 10
years after the date of its adoption. No further option could be granted
thereafter but the provisions of the Post IPO Share Option Scheme shall
remain in full and effect in other respects.

The purpose of the Post IPO Share Option Scheme was to provide
incentives to its participants which included any employee, executive
Director and such other persons as the Directors might consider
appropriate.

On 12 December 2008, a resolution to renew the 10% general
limit of the Post IPO Share Option Scheme was duly passed by the
Shareholders. The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options might be granted under the Post IPO Share Option Scheme
must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at 12 December 2008
(i.e. 151,749,000 shares, which represent approximately 7.08% of the
issued shares of the Company as at the date of this report) and in any
event the total maximum number of shares which might be issued or
issuable upon exercise of all outstanding options should not exceed
30% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors, there was no
performance target and no minimum period for which an option must
be held before it could be exercised under the Post IPO Share Option
Scheme.

The acceptance of an option granted under the Post IPO Share Option
Scheme, if accepted, must be made within 5 business days from the
date of grant. No consideration was required to be paid by the grantee
for the grant of options.

An option might be exercised by the grantee at any time during the
period of 10 years commencing on the date of grant.

The exercise price of an option granted under the Post IPO Share Option
Scheme must be the highest of (i) the closing price of the share on the
grant date; (ii) the average closing price of the share for the 5 trading
days immediately preceding the grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
share.

On 19 July 2013, the Company granted an aggregate of 63,000,000
share options under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme to eligible
participants thereof, including certain employees and business partners
of the Group, which would entitle them to subscribe for an aggregate of
63,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the share capital
of the Company upon exercise in full.
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Unless approved by shareholders in general meeting, the Board shall
not grant options to any grantee if the acceptance of those options
would result in the total number of shares issued and to be issued to
that grantee on exercise of his options during any 12-month period

exceeding 1% of the total shares then in issue.

Where any further grant of options to a grantee, if exercised in full,
would result in the total number of shares already issued or to be
issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be granted to such
grantee (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period up to and including the date of such further grant
exceeding 1% of the total number of shares in issue, such further grant
must be separately approved by the shareholders in general meeting

with such participant and his associates abstaining from voting.

All of the 51,496,000 outstanding options under the Post IPO Share
Option Scheme as at 1 January 2023 were lapsed during the Year.
Details of movements in the Post IPO Share Option Scheme are set out

in note 36 of the consolidated financial statements.

Existing Share Option Scheme
The Existing Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on 1
June 2016. Unless otherwise terminated or amended, it shall remain in

force until 1 June 2026, being 10 years after the date of its adoption.

The purpose of the Existing Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to eligible participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to
recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources
that are valuable to the Group and any entity in which the Group holds

an equity interest (“Invested Entity”).
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The Directors may, subject to the provisions of the Existing Share Option

Scheme and the Listing Rules, invite any person belonging to any of the

following classes of participants to take up the options:

(@

any employee (whether full time or part time, including any
executive Director but excluding any non-executive Director) of

the Company, any of its subsidiary or any Invested Entity;

any non-executive Director (including independent non-executive
Directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or

any Invested Entity;

any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to any member of the Group or any

Invested Entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of the

Group or any Invested Entity; and

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area
of business or business development of any member of the Group

or any Invested Entity;

and, for the purposes of the Existing Share Option Scheme, the offer

may be made to any company wholly-owned by one or more persons

belonging to any of the above classes of eligible participants.
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The total number of shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all options granted under the Existing Share Option Scheme
and any other schemes must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
aggregate number of the issued shares of the Company at the day
on which the Existing Share Option Scheme was adopted, which was
255,789,630 shares, representing approximately 11.93% of the issued
shares of the Company as at the date of this report. The maximum
number of shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Existing
Share Option Scheme and any other schemes must not in aggregate

exceed 30% of aggregate number of issued Shares from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted under the Existing Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes (including exercised, cancelled or outstanding options) to each
participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the aggregate
number of issued shares of the Company from time to time. Share
options granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company or any of their respective associates must be approved
by the independent non-executive Directors (excluding independent
non-executive Director who or whose associate is the grantee of the
options). Where any grant of options would result in the shares issued or
to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted to a substantial
shareholder of the Company or an independent non-executive Director
or any of their respective associates in excess of 0.1% of the aggregate
number of issued shares and having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the shares at the date of grant, in excess of HK$5 million
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant, such
further grant of options must be approved by the shareholders of the

Company in general meeting.

The subscription price for shares under the Existing Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the offer date, which must be
a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share. A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 was payable on acceptance

of the grant of an option.
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An option might be accepted by a participant for grant of the option
within such time as may be specified in the offer which shall not be later

than 5 days from the date of the offer.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the offer
for the grant of options to grantees, there is no performance target and
no minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be

exercised under the Existing Share Option Scheme.

An option might be exercised during such period as the Directors might
determine, save that such period shall not be more than 10 years from

the date of grant.

No option has ever been granted under the Existing Share Option

Scheme since its adoption.

In view of the new requirements under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules
which became effective on 1 January 2023 (“New Share Scheme
Rules”), share options under the Existing Share Option Scheme shall
only be granted in accordance with and as permitted by the New Share
Scheme Rules. No dividend will be payable and no voting rights will be

exercisable in relation to an option that has not been exercised.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 30 September 2020, the Company adopted a share award scheme
(“Share Award Scheme”) involving existing shares of the Company.
According to the rules of the Share Award Scheme, unless otherwise
terminated or amended, it would remain in force until 29 September
2030. The Share Award Scheme was terminated by the Company on 13
March 2024, having considered the Company’s overall policy and the

cost and benefit of maintaining the Share Award Scheme.

The purposes of the Share Award Scheme were to recognise the
contributions made by certain eligible persons and to give incentives
thereto in order to retain them for the continuing operation and
development of the Group and to attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group. Such eligible persons included any Director,
any employee of the Group, any director of the Company’s subsidiaries

and any consultant of the Group.
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The total number of shares awarded or to be awarded under the Share
Award Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate number of the
issued shares of the Company at the day on which the Share Award
Scheme was adopted, which was 236,509,030 shares, representing
approximately 11.03% of the issued shares of the Company as at the
date of this report. In any 12-month period, the maximum number of
shares which might be awarded to a selected grantee shall not exceed
1% of the aggregate number of the issued shares of the Company at the

day on which the Share Award Scheme was adopted.

The rules of the Share Award Scheme did not prescribe any uniform or
specific vesting period for share awards granted thereunder. Subject to
the terms and conditions of the Share Award Scheme and the fulfilment
of all relevant vesting conditions (if any), the awarded shares shall
vest in the selected grantee in accordance with a vesting schedule

determined at the discretion of the Board.

As at 1 January 2023, no share was awarded pursuant to the Share
Award Scheme. Details of the award of shares pursuant to the Share

Award Scheme during the Year are as follows:

Name of grantee Date of grant

ERAMEE RHEBH

Mr. Wong Cho Tung 14 December 2023
FrERSLE —EC=F+ZA+WA
Ms. Yeung Man Ying 14 December 2023

5 B2+ ZE-=F+=-A+WA

The closing price of the shares immediately before the day on which the
above awards were granted was HK$0.295 per share. The total number
of awards vested during the Year was 41,630,000. The weighted
average closing price of the shares immediately before the date on

which the above awards were vested was HK$0.3 per share.

The fair value of the above awards at the date of grant was
approximately HK$12.5 million. The Company measured the fair value
of the share awards granted at the vested date, based on the weighed
average closing price of the shares immediately before the date on

which the above awards were vested.

Shares awarded

SRERG

20,814,000

20,816,000
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SEH

1 day (vested on 15 December 2023)
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Existing Share Option Scheme and the Share Award
Scheme, at no time during the Year nor at the end of the Year was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures

of, the Company or any other body corporate.

As disclosed above, Mr. Wong Cho Tung and Ms. Yeung Man Ying
were granted 20,814,000 and 20,816,000 shares respectively under
the Share Award Scheme on 14 December 2023. The awarded shares
vested in them on 15 December 2023.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,

ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance (as defined
in the Listing Rules), to which the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any

time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company and the

Group was entered into or existed during the Year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance was entered into by, and/or subsisted
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries with the controlling
Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the Year; and there is
no contract of significance in relation to provision of services by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholder or any

of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'’
INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

No Directors nor the controlling Shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interest in a business apart from the Company’s
business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or

indirectly, with the business of the Group during the Year.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board confirms that the related party transactions during the Year
as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements did not
fall under the definition of “connected transactions” nor “continuing
connected transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has, where
applicable, complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION
As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any connected

transaction.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Year and up to the date of this Report, permitted indemnity
provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies (Directors’ Report)
Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong) was and is being

in force for the benefit of the Directors.

The Company has also arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers for their liabilities arising out of

corporate affairs. The insurance coverage is reviewed annually.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ OR OTHERS’

INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
As at 31 December 2023, the interests or short positions of substantial
Shareholders and other persons (other than Directors or chief executives
of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name of shareholder Nature of interest

BRREE fEEtyE

Info Dynasty (note 2) Personal interest

(K22 B A=

Intellipower (note 3) Personal interest

(H17£3) B A=

Notes:

1. Calculation of percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued

share capital of 2,143,351,300 shares of the Company as at 31 December
2023.

2. The relationship between Info Dynasty and Mr. Wong and the relationship
between Info Dynasty and Mrs. Wong are disclosed under the section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Position in Shares” above.

3. The relationship between Intellipower and Mr. Wong is disclosed under the
section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Position in
Shares” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, there is no other
substantial Shareholders or persons who had any interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence

with reference to the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company considers all of the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent. Particular consideration is paid in assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Director who has been
serving on the Board for more than 9 years and will be seeking to be
re-elected in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(“Annual General Meeting”). When appropriate, reasons will be given
in the circular to explain why the Board believes he is still independent

and should be re-elected.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are set out

in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the
laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares

on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

At the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this Report, based on
information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company
has maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing

Rules.
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ESEHRE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the Year, the five largest customers accounted for 44.17% of the
Group’s total sales and the largest customer accounted for 13.09% of

the Group’s total sales.

For the Year, the percentage of the Group’s total purchases attributable

to the five largest suppliers was less than 30%.

At no time during the Year did any Director, any close associate of a
Director or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had an interest in

any of the Group’s five largest customers.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been audited by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who are due to retire and, being eligible, shall
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General

Meeting.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the

preceding three financial years.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The fair review, financial key performance indicators and indication of
future development of the Group for the Year are set out in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion &
Analysis” in this Report. That discussion forms part of this report of the

Directors.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations of

TERRRTHBEER
SERRTEFEAEELEREBEE - =

the Group. Major risks are summarized below. EREEBMmnT o

In 2023, affected by macroeconomic fluctuations, part of the
demand in 2022 reduced by the pandemic was released in the
first half of 2023. While market demand turned weak in the
third quarter, there was a significant rise in market demand in
the fourth quarter. The production capacity of the upstream
supply chain was unable to fully match the rapid fluctuations
in market demand, and supply of certain materials of the
upstream supply chain, such as memory and radio-frequency
materials, was tight:

The COVID-19 pandemic that lasted for three years has led to
instability in production around the world, particularly in countries
and regions severely hit by the pandemic. The sustained
COVID-19 pandemic restrained consumption demand, resulting
in certain players in the upper and lower industrial chains
actively scaling down their production capacity or even ceasing
operations. The same demand from the Group’s customers
declined in 2023, therefore slowed down their pick-up speed of
the goods, resulting in slow digestion of the Group’s inventory.
The small and medium-sized enterprises in the upstream supply
chain, particularly peripheral custom-made materials suppliers,
have comparatively weaker risk aversion abilities, they may
encounter cash flow issues due to backlogged inventories as
a result of customers’ failure to pick up goods. In this regard,
the Group has closely monitored the operation of its business
partners and regularly took stock of the undelivered materials
in the production and preparation of its business partners, so
as to prevent and avoid the upstream supply chain from closing
down and interrupting the supply, which would in turn affect
the production and delivery of the Group’s products. The Group
have started to identify additional secondary suppliers since early
2020 but still cannot fully eliminate their exposure in supply and
delivery. To this end, the Group kept enhancing its supply chain
management and spent considerable effort to monitor the delivery
capabilities and quality of upstream suppliers. To minimize the
risk of delayed delivery, the Group has been actively identifying
additional secondary suppliers and preparing their replacement
certification so that they are able to replace any custom-made

materials suppliers that may expose the Group to any risk.
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Property leasing: Certain tenants may experience insufficient
cash flow amidst the novel coronavirus outbreak and there will
be risk of lease termination

In the post-pandemic era, affected by the overall economic
downturn at home and abroad, enterprises and shops leasing
the Group’s properties are also more or less facing the plight
of shrinking business and impaired performance. For small
enterprises with weak risk aversion abilities, their cash flow is
prone to shortage and they may go bankrupt. The Group may
therefore lose tenants and rental payments. The Group took
the initiative to reduce or waive the leasing fees for some of the
tenants who renewed their leases in 2023 so as to help them
ride out the storm. Even so, certain enterprises have inevitably

terminated the lease.

In 2023, the Group’s refined management structure, optimised
personnel costs as well as high material inventory had occupied
large amount of funds, and capital investment in new business
directions continued to increase

In 2023, the Group continued to adjust its management
structure and optimise its business composition, with handheld-
type industrial products such as POS, POC, PDA and wearable
watches, AR and other products merged into the ODM business
department for unified management; digital communication
products such as routers and IP cameras were operated
independently; redundant posts were dispelled within the Group
to reduce labour costs; and a large amount of staff optimisation
compensation costs has arose from the relocation of the Group’s
manufacturing plant in Shanghai, the PRC, in the second half
of 2023. The number of sales and despatch of routers and IP
cameras in 2023 were not as expected, resulting in slow digestion
of inventory of chips. The Group’s investment in the in-vehicle
business of its associated companies increased in 2023, and

such investment is expected to continue in 2024.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS
The Group’s success also depends on the support from key relationships

with employees, suppliers and customers.

1. Employees
The Company is committed to value every talent and emphasizes
that excellent employees are valuable assets for the Company. The
Group pay attention to self-improvement of staff and give them a
working environment full of fairness, openness, sincerity, warmth
and opportunities. The Group’s competitive remuneration system
brings long-term and stable return for staff and also takes into
account the long-term and stable development of the Company.
The Group determine staffs’ remuneration and promotion based
on their capacity and contribution to the Group. The Company
recognizes staff with outstanding performance and the same
values with the Company as valuable assets. We keep trying our
best to provide promising career prospect and a platform for
them to display their talents fully. Therefore, the Company not
only helps our employees to improve their knowledge, skills and
experience through performing their own duties, but also creates
good conditions in facilities and environment suitable for their
development. To facilitate the proper allocation and development
of high caliber talents, the Company has set up an employee
career development system which focuses on both management
and technical skills. Through this system, each outperforming key
member can seize the opportunity to improve overall abilities by
various ways. The Company aims to create conducive conditions
for talents to demonstrate themselves and grow through career,

and also build solid team with talents.
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Suppliers

The Company selects and enters into strategic cooperation with
suppliers with good reputation in accordance with the principle of
mutually beneficial cooperation and international standards such
as 1S09001, 1S014001 and OHSAS18001. We use a strict social
responsibility management system to manage our suppliers,
ensure that the quality of materials provided by the supplies meets
our requirements and their production management systems also
comply with requirements on environment, occupational health
and safety management system as stated in relevant laws and
regulations. We also make cost and delivery plans in advance to

meet delivery demand.

Customers

The Group establish complete management systems in
compliance with national standards and abroad, as well as
well-known clients’ requirements, which cover product quality,
environment, occupational health and safety, information
security and product safety management. Through survey on
clients’ satisfaction we conduct every year, our clients express
their positive feedback on quality, logistics, cost and service.
Among our clients all over the world, both new and old well-
known clients supervise and inspect each management system
of the Company every year. Apart from this, our Company also
implements Key Performance Indicator (KPI), internal control
scheme, management appraisal program in every aspect. In order
to continuously enhance management systems of the Company,
we set up a specific department to supervise operation and pass

the results to the management on a regular basis to review.
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Environmental policies

Environmental protection is not only the responsibility of our business,
but the responsibility of each of us. The Group initiates and strives
to minimize its environmental impact by using water saving facilities,
saving electricity and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other
materials. The Group also operates in strict compliance with the
relevant environmental regulations and rules and possess all necessary
permission and approval from the PRC regulators. The Group also
has environment policies to reduce emission, raise efficiency use of

resources and reduce pollution.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group’s operations are carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries
in the PRC while the Company itself is listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. Our operations are regulated by Hong Kong and PRC laws.
During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Group have
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant

impact to the Group in the PRC and Hong Kong.

In particular, as the Group’s business involves manufacturing, the
Group’s operation is regulated by environmental protection laws and
regulations in the PRC. During the Year, the Group did not have any

material non-compliance with such laws and regulations.

On behalf of the Board
Wong Cho Tung

Chairman

Hong Kong
26 March 2024
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The Company’s goal is to continue to increase its transparency to
the Shareholders and the public and to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance. The principles of corporate governance adopted
by the Group emphasise a quality Board with sound internal control,

transparency, accountability and independence.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CcoD

Save as mentioned below, the Company has complied with the code
provisions laid down in the Corporate Governance Code (“Corporate
Governance Code”) as set out in part 2 of Appendix C1 to the Listing

Rules during the Year.

According to code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. On 30
September 2022, Mr. Gao Jun resigned as an executive Director and
the chief executive officer of the Group. Ever since the resignation of
Mr. Gao Jun, the Company has not been able to identify a suitable
candidate for the position of the chief executive officer and the office of
the chief executive officer therefore remains vacant. This constitutes a

deviation from code provision C.2.1.

However, a management team which takes up the roles and duties of
the chief executive officer has been set up by the Group since Mr. Gao
Jun’s resignation. The team comprises five members, including three
executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Cho Tung, Mr. Zhu Wenhui and
Mr. Zhu Qi, and two members of the management of the Company,
namely Mr. Liu Jun (the chief technical officer of the Group) and Mr.
Yang Hanjie (the chief marketing officer of the Group’s operational
headquarters in PRC). In light of the above, even though the Company
has not been able to appoint an individual to take up the role of the chief
executive officer since Mr. Gao Jun’s resignation, the Board considers
that such a deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate

Governance Code is appropriate under such circumstances.
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THE BOARD
Board functions
The Board is responsible for the promotion of the success of the
Company by directing and guiding its affairs in an accountable and
effective manner. Board members acknowledge their duty to act in
good faith, with due diligence and care, and in the best interests of the

Company and its Shareholders.

The types of decisions which are to be taken by the Board include:

1. setting the Company’s purpose, values and strategy, and ensuring

that the Company’s culture aligns with them;

2. reviewing and guiding corporate strategy; setting performance
objectives and monitoring implementation and corporate

performance;

3. monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest between

management and Board members; and

4. ensuring the integrity of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting systems, including the independent audit, and that
appropriate systems of control are in place, in particular, systems

for monitoring risk, financial control, and compliance with the law.
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Board composition and practices
As at 31 December 2023 and the date of this annual report, the Board
comprised four executive Directors, one non-executive Director and

three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Cho Tung (Chairman)
Ms. Yeung Man Ying

Mr. Zhu Wenhui

Mr. Zhu Qi

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Wong Hei, Simon

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Hing Hung

Mr. Wu Zhe (Resigned with effect from 25 January 2024)

Mr. Li Minbo

Mr. Yang Wentao (Appointed with effect from 25 January 2024)

During the Year, the Company fully complied with the requirements
under Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. No
incident of non-compliance with the aforementioned requirements was

noted by the Company during the Year.

Biographical details of the Directors and the relationships among them
are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management Profile” section on

pages 20 to 24 of this Report.

Save as disclosed in this Report, none of the Directors has any
connection (including financial, business or family relationship) with
each other as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix D2 of the

Listing Rules.
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Up to the date of 18 August 2023, the role of the chairman was
performed by Ms. Yeung Man Ying who was responsible for developing
direction and strategies of the Group. On and after 18 August 2023, the
role of the chairman was performed by Mr. Wong Cho Tung who was
responsible for formulating the direction, strategies and the development
plan of the new business of the Group. As stated above, up until 29
September 2022, the role of chief executive officer was performed by
Mr. Gao Jun who took up the responsibility of the overall management
of the Group’s product and business planning, including management
of product definition, sales, procurement, production and delivery. The
roles and duties of the chief executive officer have been taken up by the

management team set up by the Group since Mr. Gao Jun’s resignation.

The independent non-executive Directors contribute to the Company
with diversified industry expertise, advise the management on strategy
development and ensure that the Board maintains high standards of
financial and other mandatory reporting as well as provide adequate
checks and balances to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and

the Company as a whole.

Having assessed the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, the Company considers that none of the independent
non-executive Directors fails to meet one or more of such guidelines.
Accordingly, the Company still considers the independent non-executive

Directors to be independent.

The Board delegates specific tasks to the Group’s management
including the implementation of strategies and decisions approved by
the Board and the preparation of accounts for approval by the Board

before public reporting.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers for their liabilities arising out of

corporate affairs. The insurance coverage is reviewed annually.
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Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to give all Directors
an opportunity to attend. Directors may attend meetings in person
or through other means of electronic communication in accordance
with the bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-laws”). All Directors are kept
informed on a timely basis of major changes that may affect the Group’s
businesses, including relevant rules and regulations. Directors shall
have full access to information on the Group and are able to obtain
independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary by the
Directors. No request was made by any Director for such independent
professional advice during the Year. The Company Secretary shall
prepare minutes and keep records of matters discussed and decisions
resolved at all Board meetings, which will be available for inspection by

Directors upon request.

The Board held four meetings and the Company held one general
meeting in the Year. The following is the attendance record of each
Director at the Board meetings and the general meeting of the Company

for the Year:

Number of general
meeting attended/
Number of general

Number of Board
meetings attended/
Number of Board

Name of Director meeting held meetings held
Mr. Wong Cho Tung i 4/4
Ms. Yeung Man Ying 1/1 4/4
Mr. Liu Jun

(Resigned with effect from

28 September 2023) 1/1 3/3
Mr. Zhu Wenhui 1/1 4/4
Mr. Zhu Qi

(Appointed with effect from

28 September 2023) 1/1 1/1
Mr. Wong Hei, Simon 1/1 4/4
Mr. Liu Hing Hung 171 4/4
Mr. Wu Zhe

(Resigned with effect from

25 January 2024) i 4/4
Mr. Li Minbo i 4/4
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance,
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board. The
Company has adopted a board diversity policy in accordance with the

Corporate Governance Code (“Board Diversity Policy”).

According to the Board Diversity Policy, the Board takes into account
various elements of diversity including but not limited to age, gender,
race, cultural and educational background, skills, professional
knowledge, and industry experience in determining the appointment
and reappointment of the Directors and proposed candidates. All
Directors appointments are based on merits and due regard is given to

the Board’s diversity to ensure the Company can benefit from it.

In order to achieve a diversity of perspectives, skills and experience
within the Board, a range of measurable objectives will be considered
when deciding on appointments of directors and the continuation
of those appointments, including but not limited to gender, age,
race, cultural and educational background, length of service, skills,
professional experience, regional and industry experience and any
other factors that the Board deems appropriate from time to time. To
implement Board diversity, the Company shall not only appoint directors
of the same gender. In addition, in forming its perspectives on Board
diversity, the Company will also take into account its own business
model and specific needs from time to time. The Board was satisfied
with the diversity of the Board composition during the Year. As at the
date of this report, there is one female Director on the Board, namely Ms.
Yeung Man Ying. Accordingly, the Company has not set any numerical
targets or timeline for achieving gender diversity on the Board or
adopted any measures to develop a pipeline of potential successors to

the Board to achieve gender diversity.

The composition, experience and balance of skills on the Board are
regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board retains a core of members
with longstanding knowledge of the Group alongside new Director(s)
appointed from time to time who bring fresh perspectives and diverse
experiences to the Board. Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis. The Board Diversity Policy and its implementation and

effectiveness are reviewed by the Board annually.
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The Company also recognises the importance of diversity at the

workforce level. As at 31 December 2023, the gender ratio of the

workforce of the Group (including senior management) was 60:40 male

to female.

INDEPENDENT VIEWS POLICY

To ensure that independent views are available to the Board, the

Company is required to have at least three independent non-executive

Directors and has adopted a policy (“Independent Views Policy”) in

accordance with the Corporate Governance Code, pursuant to which the

independent non-executive Directors are required to, among others:

(M)

(iii)

(iv)

keep up-to-date with the Company’s business affairs and be
involved in scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving
agreed corporate goals and objectives, and monitor performance

reporting;

bring independent judgment to bear on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standards of conduct, and help review some of the Board’s major
decisions and the Company’s performance in relation to corporate

goals, and monitor performance reporting;

take the lead where potential conflicts of interest arise; and

serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the

Nomination Committee and other governance committees of the
Board, if invited.
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According to the Independent Views Policy, the independent non-
executive Directors shall allocate sufficient time to discharge their
responsibilities and should not accept an invitation to serve as an
independent non-executive Director on the Board unless they can
devote adequate time and effort to the work involved. Independent
non-executive Directors sitting on multiple boards of directors of listed
companies will need to ensure that they devote sufficient time and
dedicate adequate attention to each board and board committee. In
addition, the independent non-executive Directors shall at least annually
attend meeting with the chairman of the Board without the presence of
other Directors. The Independent Views Policy and its implementation

and effectiveness are reviewed by the Board annually.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is collectively responsible for determining the policy for the
corporate governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance functions in accordance with code provision A.2.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code. During the Year, the Board met once
with all Directors present to review the policies and practices and
compliance by the Company and reviewed and monitored the training

and continuous professional development of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial period which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows
for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have
selected appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimation that are prudent, fair and reasonable,
ensured all applicable accounting standards are followed and prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors are also
responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group and which enable the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards and regulatory
requirements. Further explanation as to how the Company generates
or preserves value over the longer term and the strategy for delivering
the Company’s objectives is set out under “Chairman’s Statement” from

pages 4 to 8 of this Report.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

During the Year, the Company has provided regular updates to the
Directors on material changes to regulatory requirements applicable
to the Directors and the Company on a timely basis and on the latest
business development of the Company. The Directors confirmed that
they complied with code provision C.1.4 of the Corporate Governance
Code on directors’ training. During the Year, all Directors namely, Mr.
Wong Cho Tung, Ms. Yeung Man Ying, Mr. Liu Jun (resigned on 28
September 2023), Mr. Zhu Wenhui, Mr. Zhu Qi (appointed on 28
September 2023), Mr. Wong Hei, Simon, Mr. Liu Hing Hung, Mr. Wu
Zhe (resigned on 25 January 2024) and Mr. Li Minbo, participated in
continuous professional development by attending seminars/in-house
briefing/reading materials to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills in areas related to their roles, functions and duties of Directors
such as corporate governance, regulatory updates and topics related to

telecommunications industry.

On 28 September 2023, Mr. Zhu Qi was appointed as an executive
Director. Mr. Zhu Qi was appointed before Rule 3.09D of the Listing
Rules becoming effective, therefore, such rule was not applicable to his

appointment.

During the Year, the Company Secretary fully complied with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of professional
training. The Company does not engage any external service provider as

its Company Secretary.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
for dealing in securities of the Company by Directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code for

the Year.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules
and the Corporate Governance Code. The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for assisting the Board in achieving its goals of providing
packages which can attract, retain and motivate Directors with required

qualities for running the Company successfully.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include: (i)
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies on such remuneration; (ii) determining the terms
of the specific remuneration package of each executive Director and
senior management; (iii) reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Board from time to time; (iv) assessing performance of the executive
Directors; and (v) reviewing and approving matters relation to share
schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee adopted by the Board are available on

the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee held four meetings during the Year to
review the remuneration packages of Directors and senior management
of the Group and approve the share awards granted to Mr. Wong Cho
Tung and Ms. Yeung Man Ying under the Share Award Scheme. The

attendance record is as follows:

Number of meeting attended/

Name of Director Number of meeting held

Mr. Liu Hing Hung 4/4
Mr. Wu Zhe 4/4
Mr. Li Minbo 4/4
Mr. Wong Cho Tung 4/4

No Director took part in any discussion about his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee consists of four members, three of whom
are independent non-executive Directors, being Mr. Liu Hing Hung, Mr.
Wu Zhe (replaced by Mr. Yang Wentao on 25 January 2024) and Mr.
Li Minbo, and one executive Director being Mr. Wong Cho Tung. They
have substantial experience in human resources management. The

Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu Hing Hung.

In addition to considering the performance of individuals and the
profitability of the Group, executive Directors, who are assisted by the
Group’s human resources department, are responsible for reviewing
all relevant remuneration information, obtaining market conditions and
proposing to the Remuneration Committee remuneration packages
for Directors and senior management for consideration and approval.
Executive Directors, however, do not participate in the determination of

their own remuneration.
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The primary objective of the remuneration policy on executive
remuneration package is to enable the Company to retain and motivate
executives in promoting the success of the Group. The remuneration
package comprises basic salary, and may include discretionary bonus

and/or share options and share awards.

Each of the executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary which is
subject to review by the Remuneration Committee after such executive

serving every period of 12 months.

Subject to the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the
Company may, at its sole discretion, grant share options and/or share
awards to executive Directors in accordance with the share option
scheme(s) and share award scheme(s) adopted by the Company from

time to time.

Each of the executive Directors is entitled to a discretionary bonus as
determined by the Remuneration Committee based on the performance

of the Group and that of the individual Director.

Mr. Wong Hei, Simon entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company to serve as a non-executive Director for a term of one year
commencing from 31 May 2023, unless terminated by not less than
one month’s notice in writing served by either party on the other and
is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election and other related

provisions as stipulated in the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

Each of Mr. Liu Hing Hung, Mr. Li Minbo and Mr. Yang Wentao
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company to serve as an
independent non-executive Director for one year commencing from 25
January 2024, unless terminated by not less than one month’s notice in
writing served by either party on the other and is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election and other related provisions as stipulated in

the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with the written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and
the Corporate Governance Code. The Company fully complied with the
requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules during the Year. No
incident of non-compliance with the aforementioned requirements was
noted by the Company during the Year. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to assist the Board to provide an independent review of
the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal control and
risk management system of the Group and oversee the audit process

and other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee members met two times in the Year to review with
senior management and the Company’s external auditors the internal
and external audit findings, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, and Listing Rules and statutory compliance, and
discussed auditing, internal controls, risk management and financial
reporting matters (including the 2022 annual financial statements and
2023 interim financial statements before recommending them to the

Board for approval).

The following is the attendance record of each member at the Audit

Committee meetings during the Year:

Number of meeting attended/

Name of Director Number of meeting held

Mr. Liu Hing Hung 2/2
Mr. Wu Zhe 2/2
Mr. Li Minbo 2/2

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Liu Hing Hung, Mr. Wu Zhe (replaced by Mr.
Yang Wentao on 25 January 2024) and Mr. Li Minbo. The Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu Hing Hung who has professional

qualifications in accountancy.

The Audit Committee has reviewed this Report.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
The Company has established the Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules

and the Corporate Governance Code.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include: (i) reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board; (ii) identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members; (iii) assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and
(iv) making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and their succession planning, in particular
the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the Group.
The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee adopted by the
Board are available on the websites of the Company and of the Stock

Exchange.

The Nomination Committee members held three meetings during the
Year to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and

matters relating to the re-election of the retiring Directors.

The following is the attendance record of each member at the

Nomination Committee meetings during the Year:

Number of meeting attended/

Name of Director Number of meeting held

Mr. Liu Hing Hung 3/3
Mr. Li Minbo 3/3
Mr. Wong Cho Tung 3/3

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, two of whom are
independent non-executive Directors, being Mr. Liu Hing Hung and Mr.
Li Minbo, and one executive Director being Mr. Wong Cho Tung. The

Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu Hing Hung.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company endeavors to ensure the Board has the appropriate
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives that are
required to support the execution of its business strategy and ensure it is

effective.

According to the nomination policy adopted by the Company,
appointments of the Board will be made on a merit basis and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria. The selection criteria used

in assessing the suitability of a candidate include:

o the candidate’s academic background and qualifications
(including professional qualifications, skills and knowledge which

are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy);

° the candidate’s relevant experience in the industry;

o the candidate’s character and integrity;

o the candidate’s willingness and capacity to devote adequate time

in discharge of a director’s duties;

o whether the candidate can contribute to the Board a diversity of
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,

skills, knowledge and length of service;

o (where the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an
independent non-executive Director) whether the candidate is in
compliance with the criteria of independence under the Listing

Rules:; and

° any other factors as may be determined by the Nomination

Committee or the Board from time to time.
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In terms of nomination procedures, any Board member may nominate
or invite a candidate for appointment as a Director, or the Nomination
Committee may invite nomination from members of the Board for
consideration. The Nomination Committee will then evaluate the
personal profile of the candidate based on the criteria set out above,
undertake due diligence in respect of such candidate and make
recommendation for the Board’s consideration and approval. For the
nomination of independent non-executive Director, the Nomination
Committee will also assess the candidate’s independence in accordance
with the Corporate Governance Code and the Listing Rules. For
re-appointment of retiring Directors, the Nomination Committee
will review the candidate’s attendance at the Board committee
meetings, Board meetings and general meetings of the Company, his/
her level of participation and performance in the Board) and make
recommendations to the Board and the Shareholders for re-election at

the general meetings of the Company.

The re-election procedure set out in the Bye-laws provides that one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple
of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at least once every three years at each Annual
General Meeting. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and
shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at which
he/she retires. The Directors to retire by rotation will be those who
have been longest in office since their last re-election or appointment
but as between persons who become or were last re-elected Directors
on the same day those retire will (unless they otherwise agree among

themselves) be determined by lot.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee has reviewed a service plan from Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu regarding their independence and objectivity and had a
meeting with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditors of the

Company, to discuss the scope of their audit and approve the scope.

The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and retention of the external auditors. For the Year, the
Company paid Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditors of the
Company, HK$2.37 million as audit fees and HK$0.50 million as non-

audit fees for reviewing the interim financial report of 2023.

The following table sets out a reconciliation of the auditors’
remunerations as disclosed above and in Note 13 to the consolidated

financial statements in this Annual Report.

Services rendered HKD'000
Audit services 2,370
Non — audit services
Interim review fee 500
Tax planning and tax advisory fee 540
Total 3,410

The auditors’ reporting responsibility is set out on pages 119 to 126 of
this Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Directors acknowledges that it is their responsibility to maintain
effective risk management and internal control system and to review
them at regular intervals. The Board does not have a designated risk

committee.

The Group’s risk management and internal control system is designed
to reduce risks, safeguard the Group’s assets, prevent and detect fraud
and protect Shareholders’ investment as well as to ensure that proper
accounting records are maintained and applicable legislation and
regulations are complied with. During the Year, through discussions
with the management and external auditors, the Board has conducted
assessments and reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk

management and internal control system in various perspectives,
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including, among others, financial control, operational and compliance
controls and risk management. The risk management and internal
control systems are reviewed by the Board annually and each review
covers a whole financial year. However, such systems are designed to
limit the risks to which the Group exposes to an acceptable level but
not eliminate them. Hence, such systems can only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatements in financial

information and record or loss.

A bottom-up and top-down approach is utilised to ensure a holistic
risk management process. The bottom-up approach is supported by
key business units to identify and prioritise risks while the top down
approach reviews and assesses if risks are comprehensively identified,
prioritised, and properly addressed by key business units to accomplish

the Group’s objectives.

The internal audit unit of the Company, which is subordinated to the
Board, formulates the internal audit plan of the Group based on the
strategic objectives analysis, business flow analysis, risk assessment
and performance evaluation and the self-inspection mechanism
with comprehensive risk management functions under the authority
of the Board and the guidance of the Audit Committee. It regularly
reports to the Audit Committee and the Board for its audit findings and

recommendations on internal control.

During the Year, the internal audit unit of the Company continuously
optimised job responsibilities and functions of different departments
according to the annual audit plan approved by the Board. Such
audit work covered financial, operation, statutory compliance and
risk management of the Group at all levels and functions, taking into
account of the manpower cost-effectiveness. During the Year, the Board
has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
material internal controls system and is of the opinion that the resources
for and qualifications of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function are adequate and sufficient. Based on information
furnished to it and on its own observations, the Board is satisfied with
the present risk management and internal control systems of the Group
and considers them effective and adequate. During the Year and up
to the date of this Report, nothing has been found which requires

substantial improvement.
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The Company has formulated policies on information disclosure and
regularly reminded Directors and employees to properly comply with
relevant policies on inside information while notifying the Directors
(who are also the senior management of the Group) and employees the
latest guidance announced by the regulatory body on such information
disclosure from time to time to keep all of them abreast of the latest

information.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit department of the Group was responsible for
conducting internal audits of the Group. Internal audits are designed to
provide the Board with reasonable assurance that the internal control
systems of the Group are effective and the risks associated with the
achievement of business objectives are being managed properly. The
department also conducts other projects and investigation work as
required. The Directors were satisfied that an effective control system
had been in operation having reviewed the material controls and all
other major components of the internal control system of the Group for
the Year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”) in
compliance with code provision F.1.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code. Declaration and payment of dividend by the Company is also
subject to the laws of Bermuda, the Bye-laws and any applicable laws,

rules and regulations.

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company can declare dividends
from time to time. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account,
inter alia, the financial performance of the Group, the Group’s expected
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements and
future expansion plans, retained earnings and distributable reserves
of the Company and each of the members of the Group, the Group’s
liquidity position, the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Group, and any other factors that the

Board deems relevant.
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The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time by
the Board and the Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally
binding commitment by the Company that any dividend will be proposed

or declared in any given period.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
COMMUNICATIONS

The Group promotes investor relations and communications by setting
up meetings with the investment community. The Group also responds
to requests for information and queries from the investment community

via the investor relations personnel.

The Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy
(“Shareholders’” Communication Policy”) which provides for different
communication channels between the Company and the Shareholders.
According to the Shareholders’ Communication Policy, in order to enable
the Shareholders to engage actively with the Company and exercise
their rights in an informed manner, the Board is committed to providing
clear and full information of the Group to Shareholders in a timely and
effective manner. As stated in the announcement of the Company
dated 9 February 2024, the Company shall make available its corporate
communications (as defined in the Listing Rules) to the Shareholders
on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
Hard copies of the same will also be provided to the Shareholders upon

request.

Shareholders are provided with designated contacts, email addresses
and enquiry lines of the Company and may at any time make a request
for the Company’s information to the extent that the same is publicly
available. In addition, shareholders are encouraged to attend or appoint
proxies to attend on their behalf the Annual General Meeting to raise
their enquires. The Annual General Meeting provides a good opportunity
for communications between the Board and Shareholders. Notice of the
Annual General Meeting and related papers are made available to the
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the meeting. The
Chairman and Directors (if applicable), or the duly appointed delegate
will answer questions from the Shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting about the Group’s business. The Company’s external auditors
will also attend the Annual General Meeting. During the Year, the
Company held its Annual General Meeting on 2 June 2023, which was

attended by members of the Board and the Company’s auditor.
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Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll. Therefore, all the resolutions

put to vote at the Annual General Meeting will be taken by way of poll.

The poll is conducted by the Company’s share registrar and the results
of the poll will be published on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. Financial and other information are made
available on the Company’s website and updated regularly. Specific
enquiries and suggestions by Shareholders can be sent in writing to the
Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s registered office in
Hong Kong at Unit 1206, 12th Floor, Billion Trade Centre, 31 Hung To
Road, Kwun Tong, Hong Kong.

In light of the above, the Board was satisfied with the implementation
and effectiveness of the Shareholders’ Communication Policy during the

Year.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE

A GENERAL MEETING/PUT FORWARD PROPOSALS

A Procedures for Shareholders to convene a general meeting

1. Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition sent to the
Company’s registered office in Hong Kong at Unit 1206, 12th
Floor, Billion Trade Centre, 31 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Hong
Kong, for the attention to the Board or the Company Secretary,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit

of such requisition.

2. The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the Shareholder(s) concerned and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or

more of those Shareholder(s).
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The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the requisition is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to convene a special general meeting by serving sufficient notice
in accordance with the statutory requirements and the Listing
Rules to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the
requisition has been verified as not in order, the Shareholder(s)
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, a

special general meeting will not be convened as requested.

The notice period to be given to all the registered Shareholders
for consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholder(s)
concerned at a special general meeting varies according to the

nature of the proposal as follows:

- at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not less than
ten (10) clear business days’ notice in writing if the
proposal constitutes a special resolution of the Company,
which cannot be amended other than to a mere clerical

amendment to correct a patent error; and

- at lease fourteen (14) clear days’ and not less than ten
(10) clear business days’ notice in writing if the proposal

constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to make proposals at general
meeting other than a proposal of a person for election as
Director

The Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of those Shareholders having the right to vote at
such meeting or not less than one hundred Shareholders, at the
expenses of the Shareholder(s) concerned, can submit a written

requisition to move a resolution at a general meeting.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in the proposed resolution, signed by all the
Shareholder(s) concerned and may consist of several documents
in like form (which between them contain the signatures of all the

Shareholder(s) concerned).

The written requisition must be deposited at Unit 1206, 12th
Floor, Billion Trade Centre, 31 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Hong
Kong, the registered office of the Company in Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary not less than six weeks
before the meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution and not less than one week in the case of any other

requisition.

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the requisition is
Proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to (i) include the resolution in the agenda for the Annual General
Meeting; or (ii) convene a special general meeting by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements
and the Listing Rules to all the registered Shareholders. On the
contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in order, the
Shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome and

accordingly, (i) the proposed resolution will not be included in the
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agenda for the Annual General Meeting; or (i) a special general o
meeting will not be convened as requested.
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS BENX M

MAFE - ARBABETHBE -

During the year, the Company did not amend its constitutional

documents.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT
SIM Technology Group Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present

the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” (the “Report”) of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (“2023" or the “Reporting Period”). This
Report describes the Group’s management measures and performance

in environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) aspects.

REPORTING SCOPE

All information contained in this Report reflects the Group’s performance
in environmental protection and social care in 2023. The management
of the Group determined the scope of disclosure of this Report after
considering the Group’s resource allocation and the operation of its
different segments. The general scope of disclosure of this Report
includes all existing business segments of the Group, namely handsets
and Internet of Things (“IOT”) terminals business and property
management business. As far as environmental data is concerned, this
Report includes entities in all segments that have significant revenue
contribution to the Group and relevantly significant ESG impact, namely
the headquarters in Shanghai, and factories in Qingpu of Shanghai,
Shenyang and Tongcheng.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix C2 “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (the “ESG Reporting Guide”)
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (the “Stock Exchange”). This Report provides an overview
of the performance of the Group in ESG aspects. The information in
this Report is derived from the official documents and statistical data
of the Group, as well as the monitoring, management and operation
information compiled by its subsidiaries in accordance with the relevant
systems of the Group. The last chapter of this Report contains a

complete content index for easy reference.
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The Group also attaches great importance to materiality, quantitative,
balance and consistency in the preparation of this Report. The Group
has applied these reporting principles in accordance with the ESG

Reporting Guide, details of which are as follows:

Materiality: During the Reporting Period, the Group analysed its material
ESG issues through materiality assessment, and regarded the identified
material issues as the focus of the preparation of this Report. The
materiality of different material issues has been reviewed and confirmed
by the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) and senior
management. For further details, please refer to the sections headed

“Communication with Stakeholders” and “Materiality Assessment”.

Quantitative: This Report, where appropriate compares quantitative
key performance indicators (the “KPIs”), and explains the standards,
methods, assumptions, and sources of key conversion factors when

calculating relevant information.

Balance: This Report provides an unbiased picture of the Group’s
performance and avoids selections, omissions, or presentation formats

that may inappropriately influence a decision or judgment by the reader.

Consistency: This Report describes the information about changes in
the public domain and calculation methods as appropriate. During
the Reporting Period, the Shenyang Factory no longer carried out
production activities, but generated income for the Group in the form of
property leasing. As the land of the Qingpu Factory was resumed by the
local government, its production lines were relocated to the Tongcheng
Factory during the Reporting Period; the relevant changes are set out
in the explanatory notes in the chapters in which the affected data are

presented.

If you are in doubt or have any recommendations in regards to this
Report, or the Group’s ESG plans, you are welcome to email us at

ir@sim.com.
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ESG STRUCTURE

The Group has established an ESG structure to ensure that ESG is in
line with the Group’s business strategy and integrated ESG into the

Group’s business operations and decision-making process.

The Board is fully responsible for the Group’s ESG matters, including
formulating strategies, monitoring the Group’s ESG performance,
ensuring the effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems, and reviewing and approving the disclosures in the ESG
reports. To promote a consistent ESG management across the Group,
the Group has established an ESG working group (the “ESG Working
Group”) to handle ESG-related matters on behalf of the Board. The
ESG Working Group is composed of senior management responsible
for ESG matters and general staff from different departments
including operations, human resources and finance departments.
The ESG Working Group is responsible for implementing the Group’s
ESG measures, collecting and analysing ESG information, making
recommendations to the Board on ESG matters, reviewing the
implementation of ESG-related matters by different departments of the
Group, as well as reporting to the Board on the progress of its work at
least once a year at a Board meeting and advising the Board on ESG
matters as and when appropriate. The Board has the appropriate skills
and experience required to meet the Group’s business needs, including
ESG related issues. The Group has also engaged the ESG consultant to
facilitate the collection and analysis of relevant data of the Group and to

provide advice on ESG management and practices.
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To further enhance the Group’s ESG performance, the Group set
environmental-related targets for the year ended 31 December 2021
(“2021"). The Board would arrange meeting and review the progress
of achieving the relevant targets at least on an annual basis for the
discussion of ESG relevant topics, review and approval of the ESG
report, and ensure that the ESG Working Group has sufficient resources
to achieve these targets. During the Reporting Period, the Group
reviewed its four environmental targets set in 2021. The Group believes
that through setting targets and implementing relevant measures,
the Group will continue to raise the ESG awareness of employees,
promote behavioural changes, and ultimately integrate the concept of

sustainability into the Group’s operations and development.

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group’s stakeholders refer to groups and individuals that have a
significant impact on the Group’s business or would be affected by the
Group’s business. The Group’s stakeholders include not only internal
directors, management and employees, but also external shareholders
and investors, customers, suppliers and partners, regulatory authorities
and government agencies, non-governmental organisations (“NGOs”),

media and other various types of community groups.

The Group is committed to achieving mutual benefits and joint
development with its customers, staff, shareholders and other
stakeholders, so as to benefit the society by sharing the fruits of
its growth. Thus, the engagement of the stakeholders is a crucial
component to the Group’s business development and fulfilment of

corporate social responsibility.

During the Reporting Period, the Group interacted with stakeholders
through a number of channels on both regular and ad hoc basis. The
following are the communication channels between the Group and
different stakeholders during the Reporting Period, and the expectations
and requirements of stakeholders that the Group understands through

these channels:
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Stakeholders Expectations and requirements
& HASEEER
Directors and management ° Compliance operation

o Economic performance
EENEEE o RS

o BRI
Employees o Remuneration and benefits

° Development and training

° Employee care

° Employee communication

° Occupational health and safety
BT . HrEN e

o BERKIEI

e EBIMWE

J BIEA

o BEimELE
Shareholders and investors ° Return on investment

° Improving product and service

quality

° Market position

° Compliance operation

o Information transparency

° Risk management

° Corporate governance
fREFLEE o RE R

s REAEMERKEE
o TG

e ARKE

. ERERE

o [ERRERE

e XER
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Internal training and seminars
Intranet

Regular meetings
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e

Internal system
Staff meetings
Training
Annual meeting
Notice board
MBS
S8TIgE
=l

Fg

NER

Social media
Mass media

Shareholders’ meetings

Annual reports, financial reports and

announcements
Website
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Stakeholders
H#hE

Customers

0%
i

Suppliers and partners

HERETA (R

Regulatory authorities and
government agencies

B ERBBUA S

NGOs and media

FEBUT AR AN 5S

Expectations and requirements

HEEER

° Customer privacy protection
° Stable relationship

° Customer service quality

o Business integrity and ethics

° Health and safety

s REFFPLRE
e  BEBRE

s  EPRBEE

o EEMEHER
o REHEHZE

° Business ethics and reputation
° Long-term relationship
° Fair tendering

s BmEREmEEE
o REIBIEEE
o DFRE

° Regulatory compliance
o Policy implementation
o Tax payment

° Responding to national strategies

o EWER
o HBURETT
o BB
o EEBIZKME

° Environmental protection
° Health and safety

o Giving back to society

° Social welfare

o RERH#E
o REFEHEZE
e [EHE®
o HEREA
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Communication channels

BEEE

Mobile applications
Social media

Website

Hotline

Satisfaction survey form
Direct communication
Free R
AR

)

mEERAEX
BEEBER

Direct communication
Regular review
Performance assessment
On-site inspection
HEAR

EHIRrE

BHIRT L

BIGER

Qualification review
Meetings
Direct communication

AHTE
E

BEERBR

Mass media
Mobile applications
Website

Social media

Visits
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The operation of the Group affects its stakeholders who have different
expectations of the Group. Looking forward, the Group will continue
to maintain and enhance its communication with stakeholders, collect
opinions from stakeholders through various channels more extensively,
so as to present the content and information of the ESG reports in a way
that meets the expectations of stakeholders better.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group determines the scope of its ESG disclosures with reference
to the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide. The Board and the
ESG Working Group identify a series of material ESG-related issues by
regularly considering the Group’s business operations and industry
standards, and regularly inviting the Group’s stakeholders to conduct
materiality assessment. The priorities of these material issues are
assessed based on their importance to the sustainable development of
the Group and its stakeholders. The assessment relates to the current
stage of development of the Group and may change in the future. The
following matrix is a summary of the Group’s material ESG issues:
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REAHRBNHE

EZRBFHERMEE

Ha
g
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Occupational safety and health
BEZ R LR

2=

Training and development \e
Emissions management )% 9=3

BER

Commumt{ ngagemem —e Energy and water saving

HEes ERRIBEIR R FR7K

Influence on stakeholder assessment
HIFMENY

Greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions
BERE (DREERM]) fik

Waste management

Low

Materiality Assessment Matrix

Salary and benefit of employees
B THM &?aaﬂ

Privacy protection and data secumy

Countermeasures to climate change /" Diversity and equal opponumtles

EHRRB(E L RFE

Prohibition of child labour and forced labour
EEE b BT RIS T

Product design and lifecycle management
ERRat REGBREE

Customer serwce quality

\ i HRE

Supp\y cham managemem

Anti-corruption
REE

L
@
=

&

HAKBEXBOTE

Influence on the Group’s business

Tt

The Group regards the results of the materiality assessment as an
important indicator for the Group’s future ESG planning and policy
formulation, and continuously promotes the Group’s sustainable
development process based on these material issues.
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ENVIRONMENTAL
EMISSIONS

As an industry-leading mobile communication and 10T enterprise,
the Group insists on operating its business in an environmentally
responsible manner, adheres to the concept of sustainable development
and adopts various measures to reduce the potential impact of
production and business activities on the environment, so as to achieve
harmonious coexistence between the society, the environment and
different stakeholders. We strive to integrate innovation and green
concepts into the entire product life cycle, as well as the whole process
of research and development, production, logistics and customer
service, and make unremitting efforts to reduce energy consumption,

resource consumption and carbon dioxide emissions.

In view of the global trend of emission reduction, the Group has
established an environmental management policy, including the
“Management Manual” that is in compliance with ISO9001 and
ISO14001, as well as a set of rules and regulations, to monitor the

environmental impact of the Group’s activities.

The Group strictly complies with relevant laws and regulations, including
but not limited to the “Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution” and the “Law
of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”. To this
end, the Group regularly evaluates the sources of factory emissions, and
collects data on welding tin emissions and domestic sewage discharge
for monitoring and analysis. In terms of factory air emissions, the Group
turns on the ventilation device over its production line at appropriate
time, organises qualified entity to monitor the industrial gas outlets, and
regularly inspects and maintains the exhaust pipe to ensure that the
exhaust gas meets the emission standards. The air emissions from the
factory were not significant. The Group’s air emissions! mainly come

from the fuel used by vehicles owned by the Group.
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The Group’s air emissions are as follows:

Indicator! Unit

BE B

Nitrogen oxides tonnes

=ty NI

Sulphur oxides tonnes

ety NI

Particulate matter tonnes

Sy kY| NI

Note:

1. The information with reference to the air emissions data includes but is not

limited to “How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance

on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange.

The Group’s GHG emissions mainly come from direct (Scope 1) GHG
emissions generated by the fuel use of vehicles and other machinery
owned by the Group, and the use of natural gas and liquefied petroleum
gas (“LPG”) in staff canteens, as well as energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG
emissions from the purchased electricity. As the canteen of the Qingpu
Factory had been outsourced to a third party since 2022, emissions

from natural gas will not be included in the Group’s GHG emissions.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

REBRBERBERMT -

2023 2022
—ED=HF —E-HF
0.0400 0.0425
0.0002 0.0003
0.0033 0.0035

Bt

1. FERI BB RNER BEETRR B
EME CNERHRE - g REAWE — M
= REPERERIERERIES]D

MAKEAREREHREZRENAEEHE
BEHMEMEMOMREER  UKETRE
P {2 PR B R AR SRR AL B m SRS AR BN B % (88
B —) )R ERBEHRMINEE S PIE LR
A& (EE ) AEREHN - ARBEHLEBR
ER_F__FRHCIHBEE=TKE &
RAARRELNPRB T AREEORER
BEFEDA



The Group’s GHG emissions are as follows:

Indicator?

g

Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions

HE(HE-)RERBHERE

Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions

gLl (BE ) REREHNE

Total GHG emissions

RERBHAE

Average GHG emissions generated per
full-time employees®

BEEREETHELANREREBHNE®

Average GHG emissions generated per
square foot of factory area*

BYAREREHIESNRERBHRE

Average GHG emissions generated per
HK$'000 revenue®

BTETWR TEELNREREBHRE®

D

NIT20.0 %11,

o
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AEERRZERBHHRT

Unit
B

tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent

R EfiRE S

tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent

AP —RLREE

tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent

AP —RLREE

tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
generated per employee

AE—ErikEE EE

tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
generated per square foot

AE_EfiREE/ THR

tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
generated per HK$'000 revenue

NS tER AT

2023
—E-=F

86.22

6,436.57

6,522.79

1391

0.010

0.013

RANKEBRERAR

2022
—E-F

113.59

9,177.89

9,291.48

12.98

0.010

0.016
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Notes:

HE

This information does not include emissions generated by the Group’s tenants.
GHG emissions data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent and
is based on, but not limited to, “The GHG Protocol: A Corporate Accounting
and Reporting Standards” issued by the World Resources Institute and the
World Business Council for Sustainable Development, “How to prepare an ESG
Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by
the Stock Exchange, 2019 baseline emission factors for regional power grids
in China for emission reduction project issued by the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the People’s Republic of China, “Guidelines for Accounting
Methods and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Electronic
Equipment Manufacturers (Trial)” issued by National Development and
Reform Commission of China, “Gasoline for motor vehicles” (GB17930-2016)
and “Automobile diesel fuels” (GB19147-2016) issued by Standardisation
Administration of China, “Global Warming Potential Values” from the IPCC Fifth
Assessment Report, 2014 (ARb), and the “Energy Statistics Manual” issued by

the International Energy Agency.

The number of employees used by the Group to calculate this GHG emission
intensity as of 31 December 2023 was the number of full-time employees, i.e.
469 (as of 31 December 2022: 716 full-time employees), which are also used
for the calculation of other intensity data.

In 2023, the area used by the Group to calculate this GHG emission intensity
is the factory area and the office area of the headquarters, i.e. approximately
661,451.99 square feet (2022: approximately 902,694.24 square feet), which
are also used for calculating other intensity data. During the Reporting Period, as
the Shenyang Factory no longer carried out production activities, but generated
income for the Group in the form of property leasing, only the office area of the
Shenyang Factory actually used by the Group’s staff (i.e. 71,005.14 square feet)
was included in the gross area for the purpose of calculating the intensity data.

In 2023, the Group’s revenue used in calculating this GHG emission intensity,
which is the revenue generated from the handsets and 10T terminals business,
amounted to approximately HK$491,177,000 (2022: HK$584,673,000), which
are also used for calculating other intensity data.
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The Group set its first GHG emissions target in 2021, aiming to reduce
GHG emissions intensity (tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent/HK$'000
revenue) by 5% by the year ending 31 December 2025 (“2025”) as
compared to the level in 2021. To make meaningful comparison against
the target set in 2021, the GHG emissions intensity of the three factories
of the Group in 2023 (approximately 0.011 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent/HK$’000 revenue) decreased by approximately 31% as
compared to the level in 2021 (approximately 0.016 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent/HK$'000 revenue). The Group has been on track to
achieve this ongoing target. The GHG emissions intensity of the Group
in 2023 (approximately 0.013 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent/
HK$'000 revenue) decreased by approximately 19% as compared to the
level in 2022. This was mainly due to the discontinuation of production
activities of the Shenyang Factory. The Group will continue to review
the Group’s GHG emissions intensity and implement GHG emissions
reduction measures to ensure that the GHG emissions intensity remains

up to standard in the next reporting year.

To achieve the target, the Group actively adopts electricity saving and
energy saving measures to reduce GHG emissions, including strict
control on the use of air conditioners, lighting facilities and office
appliances. Specific measures will be described in the section headed

“Use of Resources”.

In addition, the Group has strictly complied with relevant laws and
regulations and has formulated safe operating procedures for the
collection and storage of hazardous waste. The waste generated should
be placed in special collection points and temporarily stored by trained
specialists in temporary storage of hazardous waste equipped with fire
extinguishers, storage boxes and water sources. The Group also has
stringent requirements and rules for the disposal of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes. The Group would only enter into agreements
in relation to waste disposal with companies that meet its standards.
The Group collects the relevant licences of such companies, such
as business license, the Shanghai Dangerous Materials Business
License, Road Transportation License of the PRC. During the Reporting
Period, the amount of hazardous waste generated by the Group was
insignificant, so the relevant data was not disclosed in this Report, and

the target related to hazardous waste is not applicable.
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In addition, as the Group actively implements policy on pollution,
emissions and wastage reduction, it has signed relevant undertakings
with the suppliers. The suppliers also actively cooperate in minimising
unnecessary plastic packaging of some components and parts. The
Group also encourages suppliers to recycle and reuse packaging

materials.

The performance of non-hazardous waste generated by the Group is as

follows:

Indicator Unit

HR B

Waste paper boards tonnes

FEARAR Nl

Waste plastics tonnes

REEERE AME

Total amount of non-hazardous waste © tonnes
BEEZEMAES NI

Average amount of non-hazardous waste kilogram per employee

generated per full-time employee

BREBEETHOELNEZTEEDE FTr/EE

Average amount of non-hazardous waste kilogram per square foot
generated per square foot

BYAREEFHFEENEEEEZENE TR/ATFAR

Average non-hazardous waste generated per  kilogram per HK$'000
HK$'000 revenue revenue

STBTURTHELHBESEENE Fr,/ T
Note:

6. During the Reporting Period, as the operation of the Shenyang Factory did not
generate waste paper boards and waste plastics and the Qingpu Factory was
relocated, the relevant data could not be obtained. Therefore, the total amount
of non-hazardous waste only includes the amount of non-hazardous waste
generated by Shanghai headquarters and the Tongcheng factory.
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The Group set the target for non-hazardous waste for the first time in
2021. The target is to reduce the non-hazardous waste generation
intensity (kilogram per HK$'000 revenue) by 5% in 2025 as compared
to the level in 2021. To make meaningful comparison against the target
set in 2021, the non-hazardous waste generation intensity of the three
factories of the Group in 2023 (approximately 0.027 kilograms per
HK$'000 revenue) decreased by approximately 65% as compared to the
level in 2021 (approximately 0.077 kilograms per HK$'000 revenue).
The Group has been on track to achieve this ongoing target. During
the Reporting Period, the non-hazardous waste generation intensity
(approximately 0.029 kilogram per HK$'000 revenue) of the Group
decreased by approximately 26% as compared to the level in 2022,
which was mainly due to the discontinuation of production activities
of the Shenyang Factory and the relocation of the Qingpu Factory. In
addition, the Group has set a directional goal for the last reporting year,
namely holding at least one waste reduction related activity to raise
employees’ awareness in this regard. During the Reporting Period, the

Group organised an event related to waste sorting.

To achieve this target, the Group reduces the generation of waste
through the adoption of automated testing robots, technological
innovation, replacement of aging equipment, personnel integration, and

addition of automated assembly lines.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any incidents
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that had a significant
impact on the Group relating to air and GHG emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste,
including but not limited to the “Air Pollution Control Ordinance” and
the “Waste Disposal Ordinance” in Hong Kong, and the “Law of the
PRC on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution”, the “Law

of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”.
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USE OF RESOURCES

The Group is of the view that efficient use of resources is one of the
development priorities in sustainable development. Thus, improving
the efficiency of resources utilisation not only enhances environmental
performance, but also lowers cost and optimizes operational efficiency

in the long run.

The Group’s main energy consumption comes from direct energy
consumption of fuel, natural gas and LPG used by vehicles and
other equipments, and indirect energy consumption from purchased
electricity. As the canteen of the Qingpu Factory had been outsourced to

a third party since 2022, the consumption of natural gas generated from

the canteen was not included in the Group’s total energy consumption.

The performance of energy consumption by the Group is as follows:

Indicator” Unit
it Y By
Direct energy consumption MWh
HERER KL
Indirect energy consumption MWh
Mz e R B JKELB
Total energy consumption MWh
B S JKELBF

Average energy consumption per full-time

MWh per employee

employee
BREBERTIRRERE KEE1RE
Average energy consumption per square foot MWh per square foot
Y AREEFIRREREE KEE,TFHR

Average energy consumption per HK$'000

MWh per HK$'000 revenue

revenue
BTETHEFIRRERE KRR, FE T
Note:
7. This information does not include emissions generated by the Group’s tenants.

The data used in the calculation of energy consumption conversion include,

but are not limited to: “How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting

Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange and the

“Guidelines for Accounting Methods and Reporting of GHG Emissions from

Electronic Equipment Manufacturers (Trial)” issued by National Development

and Reform Commission of China.
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The Group set its first target for energy use in 2021. The target is to
reduce the energy consumption intensity (MWh per HK$'000 revenue)
by 5% in 2025 as compared to the level in 2021. To make meaningful
comparison against the target set in 2021, the energy consumption
intensity of the three factories of the Group in 2023 (approximately
0.014 MWh per HK$'000 revenue) decreased by approximately 22% as
compared to the level in 2021 (approximately 0.018 MWh per HK$'000
revenue). The Group has been on track to achieve this ongoing
target. During the Reporting Period, the energy consumption intensity
(approximately 0.017 MWh per HK$'000 revenue) of the three factories
of the Group decreased by approximately 15% as compared to the level
of 2022, which was mainly due to the discontinuation of production
activities of the Shenyang Factory. The Group will continue to review
the Group’s energy consumption intensity and implement energy-saving
measures to ensure that the energy consumption intensity remains up

to standard in the next reporting year.

To achieve this target, the Group has strengthened internal efforts on the
promotion and control measures of energy conservation. For example, it
reduces electricity consumption of air conditioners in winter by utilising
the residual heat of patch production lines, while adopting cold-water

air-conditioning and energy saving lighting systems in summer.

The Group maintains strict compliance with the “Directive on the
Restriction of the “Use of Certain Hazardous Substances in Electrical
and Electronic Equipment” (“ROHS”) and “Registration, Evaluation,
(“REACH”) in product

design and manufacturing, so that its products meet the environmental

Authorisation and Restriction of Chemicals”

quality standards for exportation to the European Union.

The Group consumes water supplied by the municipal tap water

company and has not encountered any issues in sourcing water that is

fit for purpose.
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The performance of water consumption by the Group is as follows:

Indicator Unit
BE B

Total water consumption® cubic meter
Fokumee SIAAK
Average water consumption per full-time cubic meter per employee
employee

BREBREEFHREKE

average water consumption per square foot

SRR

SEFARAEFIEKE LK/ FHR

average water consumption per HK$'000 cubic meter per HK$'000
revenue revenue

BFATYNETEFEKE SR T TG

Note:

8. This information does not include water consumption by the Group’s tenants.

The Group set the target of water consumption for the first time in 2021,
which is to reduce the water consumption intensity (cubic meter per
HK$'000 revenue) by 5% in 2025 as compared to the level in 2021.
To make meaningful comparison against the target set in 2021, the
water consumption intensity of the three factories of the Group in 2023
(approximately 0.10 cubic meter per HK$'000 revenue) decreased by
approximately 33% as compared to the level in 2021 (approximately
0.15 cubic meter per HK$'000 revenue). The Group has been on track
to achieve this ongoing target. During the Reporting Period, the water
consumption intensity (approximately 0.13 cubic meter per HK$'000
revenue) of the Group decreased by approximately 19% as compared
to the level in 2022, which was mainly due to the discontinuation of
production activities of the Shenyang factory. The Group will continue
to review the water consumption intensity of the Group and implement
water conservation measures to ensure that the water consumption

intensity remains up to standard in the next reporting year.
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To achieve this target, the main water efficiency initiatives of the Group

are as follows:

° We do a good job in energy and water conservation promotion
and education, so that every employee of the Group can fully
understand the importance of water conservation, their sense
of responsibility is enhanced, and we widely encourage every
employee to actively and consciously achieve and develop a habit

of water conservation;

o Promote the use of water-saving sanitary ware in the Group to

reduce waste and save water; and

° A regular inspection system has been established, and designated
personnel are responsible for inspecting and recording the water
supply facilities within the Group to ensure normal use of water
by the Group. If problems are found, measures will be taken to

prevent water leakage in a timely manner.

As for the consumption of packaging materials, the recyclable packaging
containers and packaging component materials of all the Group’s
finished products have identification marks and labels in accordance
with the requirements of “GB/T 18455-2010 Packaging Recycling
Marks”.

The performance of consumption of packaging materials by the Group is

as follows:

Indicator Unit
BE B
Total packaging material consumption® Tonnes
PR EREE S0 NI

Average packaging materials used for finished kilogram per finished mobile

mobile phones per unit phone
FEMFHRIUKQOTFHREMEEREE TR/ FREKR
Note:
9. In 2023, the Group calculated the packaging material intensity by using

approximately 325,238 (2022: 738,000) mobile phone finished products.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group’s average packaging materials
used for finished mobile phones per unit (kilogram per finished mobile
phone) increased significantly from the level in 2022, mainly due to
the difference in product portfolio between 2023 and 2022. In 2023,
the size of some products was larger, and therefore the size of the
packaging materials required was slightly larger, leading to an increase

in the average amount of packaging materials used.

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

The factories of the Group are primarily engaged in manufacturing
handsets and 0T terminals, the process of which may give rise to noise
pollution and chemical leakage. To reduce the impact of noise pollution
and to aim at complying with the noise emission industry standards,
the Group educates employees on the prevention of diseases caused
by noise pollution, supervises employees to equip themselves with
the necessary ear plugs, earmuffs, cotton balls and other protective
equipments at work. At the same time, the Group also regularly
monitors the noise in the workplace. In terms of chemical leakage
management, the Group has also formulated a series of management
measures, including checking whether there is any sign of chemical
leakage and ground hardening at any time. Once a chemical leakage
is found, the Group will rectify it in a timely manner in accordance with
its “Chemical or Oil Leakage Emergency Plan”. In addition, the Group
has also established relevant guidelines for the collection, storage and
transfer of hazardous waste, and regularly inspects the disposal of waste
chemicals. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify any

issues related to chemical leakage.

In order to control the environmental impact of its business activities,
the Group has formulated a number of procedural documents, namely
the “SC22-QP5.04 Procedures for Identification, Evaluation and
Control of Environmental Factors” and “SC22-QP5.06 Procedures for
|dentification, Evaluation and Control of Laws and Regulations and Other
Requirements”, as well as to ensure the effective implementation of this

environmental protection system.
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The Group has also formulated the “SC22-QP8.10 Monitoring,
Measurement and Control Procedures for Environment and
Occupational Health and Safety” to closely monitor and assess the
environmental impact of its business activities, so as to facilitate timely
identification, monitoring and management of material environmental
issues. The Group also ensures that all products designed and
manufactured are in compliance with the requirements under the
internal document “SC22-042 Restricted Use of Hazardous Substances
Management Regulation”. To reduce impact on the environment and
natural resources, all of the production processes of the Group are in
compliance with the ROHS green standards, including the utilisation of
materials that are of ROHS green standards in the process of mounting
with the surface mount technology, the testing of printed circuit board

assembly and the assembling and packaging process.

The Group adopts a green management system in various business
aspects, including research and development, resources development,
standardisation of materials, supplier management, product
development and quality management, and establishes green indicators
to enhance the safety, environmental friendliness and energy saving
performance of its products, services and operations, as well as to

facilitate effective utilisation of resources.

The Group strictly follows and implements the requirements and
standards of various laws and regulations of the European Union such
as ROHS and REACH. The Group has also set up internal management
standards in compliance with the national limits on toxic and hazardous
substances in electronic information products in the PRC. In addition,
the Group has introduced comprehensive assessment procedures for
new materials that take into account the environmental requirements,
their price and quality. The Group estimates the feasibility of designing
using green materials when sample raw materials are delivered and
attaches extra care and attention to the specification of restricted
materials in design, research and development, so as to minimise the use

of restricted materials.
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CLIMATE CHANGE

The impact of global climate change on the global ecology and different
industries is becoming increasingly significant, and the Group is fully
aware that climate change will affect its business operations in different
aspects. Therefore, while practicing green and low-carbon operations,
the Group has incorporated climate-related topics into its internal control
procedures, and formulated “Climate Change Policies” to identify,
monitor and manage climate change-related risks, assess relevant
impacts, and formulate response strategies. Based on these policy

procedures, the Group has identified the following climate-related risks:

Physical risks

First of all, climate change has brought about more frequent and more
severe extreme weather events such as typhoons, floods, heavy rains,
etc., which may cause interruptions to transportation services, resulting
in delays in delivery of raw materials and the Group’s products. At the
same time, the rising global temperature may lead to an increase in
electricity consumption in the production process, which will in turn
drive up the cost of raw materials. The Group’s supply chain may be
adversely affected in view of the possible increase in raw material costs
and transportation disruptions due to climate change. In addition,
flooding caused by extreme weather or rising sea levels may also cause
physical damage to the operating sites owned by the Group, increasing
the Group’s maintenance, disaster response and insurance related
expenses. In serious cases, the normal operation of the Group may be
affected, and the personal safety of employees may also be threatened.
If the Group does not deal with such incidents properly, it may also have

a negative impact on the Group’s reputation.

In response to these physical risks, the Group has purchased insurance
for employees and its related assets to protect related interests and
reduce potential financial losses. In addition, the Group has backed
up the IT system and job-related files stored on the server and offsite
locations to minimise the potential impact of business interruption
events and their impact on the Group’s business. In addition, the Group
reviews and updates its business continuity plan on a regular basis to
ensure the normal operation and proper execution of core business

functions in case of any significant events.
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Transition risks

In addition to the physical risks mentioned above, the Group is also
exposed to transition risks arising from the transition to low-carbon
economy. The transition to low-carbon economy, which is subject to
constantly evolving and more stringent environmental regulations,
and the related innovations in energy-saving materials, processes and
methods of operation, may lead to an increase in the cost of goods and
services. Such transition risk may increase the cost of raw materials
used by and production of the Group. In addition, more stringent
environmental laws and regulations may increase the risk of claims and
litigation arising from its failure to comply with compliance requirements,
which may in turn affect the Group’s reputation. As a result of these
risks, the Group’s related capital investment and compliance costs may

also increase.

In response to these transition risks, the Group regularly monitors
current and emerging climate-related trends, policies and regulations,
and is prepared to alert senior management where necessary to avoid
reputational risk arising from increased costs, non-compliance fines
or delayed response. The Group has also set targets to reduce energy
consumption and GHG emissions in 2021 to facilitate the Group’s
sustainable development progress. In addition, the Group also actively
explores low-carbon and energy-saving materials and production
methods in order to seize any opportunities arose during the transition

to low-carbon economy and to maintain competitiveness in the market.
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SOCIAL
EMPLOYMENT

The Group regards its employees as its greatest asset. Thus, it fully
respects and protects their legitimate rights by establishing relevant
rules and systems. The Group issues the “Staff Manual” to employees
when they join the Group to ensure they are fully aware of their rights

and duties.

The Group treats all employees equally and provides them with
opportunities to develop their talents. When recruiting new staff, the
Group comprehensively analyses and gives fair consideration to each
applicant’s knowledge, abilities, experience, integrity, health conditions
and suitability to the position. As for remuneration and promotion,
the Group takes into account the abilities, efficiency, development of
abilities and knowledge as well as future development potential of each
employee based on his/her performance evaluation, thereby offering
employees the appropriate remuneration and development. The Group is
of the view that diversity in gender, culture, background and experience
will bring vitality and creativity to the development of the Company. The
Group has implemented related policies on compensation and dismissal,
working hours and holidays and anti-discrimination in compliance with
the relevant laws of the PRC and Hong Kong as stated in the section of
“Labour Standards” in this Report, such as providing sufficient notice
upon dismissal, providing statutory compensation and holidays. The
Group is also against discrimination on the grounds of religion, race or

gender, details of which are set out in the “Staff Manual”.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any incidents
of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that had
a significant impact on the Group relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare, including but not limited to the “Employment Ordinance” in
Hong Kong, and the “Chinese Labor Law” and “Chinese Labor Contract
Law” in PRC.
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 688 employees (as =

—
/
RE -HERERBRE ’—\

=T -A=t—HIE *EEHXEF

at 31 December 2022: 1,088 employees). The number and proportion 688ZET (M _E-_—F+_-_A=+—H1t:

of employees by gender, employment type, age group and geographical 1,088%)  #&I1ER - EIEEA - FhesAR Kits
region are as follows: @EDHE T AL FIAT -
2023 2022
—EB=HF —EC-_F
Number of Percentage Number of Percentage
Gender employees (%) employees (%)
4 Bl BIAE B2 (%) BT A B2tk (%)
Male B 411 59.7 670 61.6
Female g 277 40.3 418 38.4
2023 2022
—EB=HF —E-_F
Number of Percentage Number of Percentage
Employment type employees (%) employees (%)
EEER BIAE B 5 (%) BETAH B2t (%)
Full-time 5] 469 68.2 716 65.8
Temporary/part-time A 3 219 31.8 372 34.2
2023 2022
—EB=HF —E-_F
Number of Percentage Number of Percentage
Age Group employees (%) employees (%)
FH AR BIAE B2 (%) BETAH B2t (%)
Under 30 years old 308 AT 249 36.2 394 36.2
30 - 50 years old 30-507% 405 58.9 649 59.7
Over 50 years old HBiB505% 34 49 45 4.1
2023 2022
—EB-=F —E-
Number of Percentage Number of Percentage
Region employees (%) employees (%)
hE BT A B2 (%) BTAH B 7t (%)
Mainland China Gy N 685 99.6 1,085 99.7
Hong Kong, PRC REIES 3 0.4 3 03
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RRE A - AREBERTAEILAF221.2%
—ET - F 1 #9193.3%) BEEXEEENE
P T IR - b 4 BT (1 R+ A E AR R B AR T
B BHARERERABSSHIMETL
WEFERRBBEFET - IR - Fht4A

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s employee turnover rate!°
was approximately 221.2% (2022: approximately 193.3%), which was
mainly because the land of the Qingpu Factory was resumed by the
local government and its production lines have been relocated to the

Tongcheng Factory, resulting in the need for the Company to lay off

92

most of the employees in Qingpu factory and hire new employees in

Tongcheng. The employee turnover rate!® by gender, age group and

geographical region is as follows:

RIRIBRE S H) B TRk ERomMT -

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-CE
Number of Number of
employee Turnover employee Turnover
Gender turnover rate (%) turnover rate (%)
5l REABTAE MK (%) RERETAE MKZE(%)
Male Bt 1,005 244.5 1,350 201.5
Female pegis 517 186.6 753 180.1
2023 2022
—E-=HF B
Number of Number of
employee Turnover employee Turnover
Age Group turnover rate (%) turnover rate (%)
F i Bl REBTAE RKZE(%) REETAE RKZE(%)
Under 30 years old 305 AT 833 3345 1,100 279.2
30 - 50 years old 30-507% 667 164.7 965 148.7
Over 50 years old HRiB505% 22 64.7 38 84.4
2023 2022
—E-=HF bl S - =
Number of Number of
employee Turnover employee Turnover
Region turnover rate (%) turnover rate (%)
& MARETA™ RKZE(%) REAETAE RKZE(%)
Mainland China KR 1,522 222.2 2,103 193.8
Hong Kong, PRC FEIES - - - -
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Note:

10. The employee turnover rate of the Group is calculated by dividing the total
number of employees in the category who left the Group in the financial year by
the total number of employees in the category as of the end of the financial year
and multiplying by 100.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

In product design and manufacturing, the Group attaches great
significance to the aspects of product quality and safety, environmental
protection, energy conservation, comprehensive utilisation of resources
and public health. It adopts a green management system to ensure a
safe workplace for staff and protects them from occupational hazards.
The Group has also developed robust monitoring and assessment
procedures in relation to environmental protection and occupational
safety and health. According to relevant procedures, the Human
Resources and Administration Department is responsible for the
supervision and inspection of the prevention of fire and danger,
hazardous substances and safe production, as well as the regular
assessment of compliance with laws and regulations, cooperating with
the supervision, review and assessment of the government and relevant
departments, as well as the inspection of labor discipline, position and
staffing, and the awareness and training of employees and related
parties. The Manufacturing Department is responsible for the safety
management of production sites, daily supervision and inspection of
environmental and occupational health and safety conditions and safety
of production equipment. The person in charge of each department also
regularly conducts self-inspection and supervises the implementation
and effectiveness of the environmental and occupational health and

safety activities of the relevant department.

The Group acts in a socially responsible manner and takes responsibility
for its staff’s health and safety. It maintains strict compliance with laws
and regulations while adopting a “green” management approach. It
also diligently implements the 1ISO9001:2015 quality management
standards, 1SO14001:2015 environmental management standards,
IS045001:2018 occupational health and safety management standards
and ROHS directive.
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As the COVID-19 pandemic has subsided, the Group discontinued its
relevant epidemic prevention measures. However, although we are
no longer implementing specific preventive measures, we will remain

vigilant and flexible in responding to any changes that may occur.

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded 30 days (2022: 83
days) lost due to work injury in one case. Such employee fell down due
to the slippery ground on a rainy day. In order to prevent the recurrence
of similar accidents, the Group has taken the following measures,
including but not limited to: (1) to arrange specialised personnel to
clean up the rainwater on the ground at the entrances, exits and
lobbies in a timely manner; (2) to place waterproof mats or carpets on
the floor of the entrances, exits and lobbies; and (3) to place “Caution
Wet Floor” reminder boards in conspicuous positions at the entrances
and exits to remind the staff of safety. Additionally, the Group provided
assistance to the injured employee by arranging sufficient leave for
work-related injuries in accordance with the relevant policies and the
injured employee was paid a one-off disability employment benefit in

accordance with the relevant national laws.

In addition, there were no work-related fatalities recorded in the past
three years including the Reporting Period, and the rate of work-related

deaths was 0%.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with health and safety-related laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the “Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases” and the “Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance” of Hong Kong that would have a significant impact

on the Group.
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group advocates the corporate culture of “attracting talents with
success and pursuing success with talents”, which promotes staff
enhancement driven by business growth while supporting corporate
development with staff enrichment. The Group has a comprehensive
training system in place that establishes a network-based career
path for its employees. It also creates ample learning opportunities
and a knowledge sharing environment for its staff through a series
of measures, including position and ability management, skills
enhancement programme, various training opportunities, online learning
programme, internal promotion system, key employees development
programme, succession plans for key positions and leadership
development programme. Such comprehensive training system allows
employees to improve their abilities comprehensively and acquire more
opportunities of personal development in the process of promoting the

development of the Group.

The Human Resources Department keeps a personnel file for each
employee since the day of interview. Meanwhile, the Group’s internal
human resources consultants carry out career planning through
communication with staff. Depending on the development needs of
different departments and businesses, career plans of the employees
are subject to changes from time to time. In terms of staff education and
training, on one hand, the Group offers generic courses and trainings
based on the operational needs and job requirements; on the other
hand, it customises employees’ career planning by offering focused

courses and trainings.
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The Group provides company-level and departmental-level courses
and training to its employees. In addition, it arranges external courses
and training largely based on the stages of development of the
employees. Junior staff and technical management personnel are
offered with various training sessions on technology and skills which
primarily address the operational needs and project requirements of the
Company. In most cases, employees are able to tackle actual problems
at work after they have completed the training sessions. Hence such
training sessions enable employees to achieve growth and enhance skills
as well as resolving work problems. For managerial positions, company-
level training sessions are offered in general, where staff members are
equipped with management skills required for their positions through

training that address specific issues at work.

Apart from internal training, the Group also invites external trainers to
conduct training sessions and arrange out-of-office training sessions, as
well as going out and utilising external faculty to meet the training needs
of the Group. The multi-dimensional, multi-perspective and multi-tiered
training system allows staff members to attain their goals in relation to

operational needs, career development and skills enhancement.

During the Reporting Period, the number of the Group’s employees
trained was 688 (2022: 876), representing 100%!! (2022: 81%) of
the Group’s employees, the average training hours of each employee
was approximately 6 hours!? (2022: approximately 0.3 hour). The
percentage of trained employees by gender and category of employee!®

and the average number of training hours per employee!'* are as follows:
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Percentage of Employees Trained (%) 13
ZIETIEDH (%)

Gender 45l
Male S
Female g
Category of Employee EEER
Management EIBE
Managers KIEANE
General employees —MET
Average training hours per employee (hours)!*

BT AZHIRESE (B

Gender 45l
Male S
Female g
Category of Employee EEER
Management HIEE
Managers KIEANE
General employees —MET

Notes:

11.

12.

13.

14.

The Group’s overall percentage of employees trained is calculated by dividing
the total number of employees trained during the financial year by the total

number of staff at the end of the financial year and multiplying by 100.

The total training hours per employee of the Group is calculated by dividing
the total training hours in the financial year by the total number of employees

trained in the financial year.

The Group’s employee training percentage by category is calculated by dividing
the total number of trained employees of that category during the financial year
by the total number of employees of that category at the end of the financial
year and multiplying by 100.

The Group’s average training hours per employee by category is calculated
by dividing the total training hours of employees of that category during the
financial year by the total number of employees of that category during the
financial year.
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2023 2022
—E-=F —EC-—F
100 91

100 63

100 93

100 100

100 78

2023 2022
—E-=F —EC-—F
6.0 0.2

6.0 0.5

6.0 1.3

6.0 1.1

6.0 0.2
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LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group is committed to taking up social responsibilities. It complies
with and incorporates relevant laws and regulations into the rules and
codes of the Group. Apart from the “Staff Manual”, the procedures of
the Group also stipulate specific requirements on prevention of child

and forced labour.

To prevent child labour, the Group has clearly specified that all
employees must be 18 years old or above in its recruitment and
employment management system. During the recruitment process,
the Group requires candidates to provide true and accurate personal
information, which shall be handed over to personnel responsible for
recruitment for a rigorous examination, including academic credentials,
identity cards, etc. The Group has set up an established recruitment
process that requires checking of candidates’ backgrounds and a formal
reporting procedure to deal with any exceptions, it would also conduct
regular reviews and checks to prevent any child labour in its operations.
If a child labourer is found to have been wrongfully employed, the Group
will immediately stop the child labourer’s work and follow up on the

situation.

In order to protect employees’ entitlement on rest hours and holidays,
it has expressly stipulated relevant provisions relating to working hours,
rest hours and holidays, labour protection and working conditions in
the employment contracts and attendance system. The Group currently
implements a five-day work scheme with 8 working hours per day,
and prohibits forced labour and forced overtime work. When any
violation is discovered, the Group will promptly investigate and report
the investigation to the management for appropriate punishment or
dismissal of the employees concerned. If necessary, the Group will

further improve the labour mechanism in response to violations.
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The Group follows the relevant employment regulations, policies and
guidelines of the jurisdictions in which it operates, including but not
limited to the “Employment Ordinance”, “Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance” and “Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance” in Hong
Kong and the “Labour Law of the PRC”, “Labour Contract Law of the
PRC” and “Law on the Protection of Persons with Disabilities of the
PRC” in the PRC, to protect the human rights of the employees and

prevent child and forced labour.

In 2023, the Group was not aware of any incidents of non-compliance
with laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

OPERATING PRACTICES
SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group requires upstream suppliers to follow its policies on
environmental protection and sustainable development. To uphold
the Group’s reputation, suppliers are requested to give undertakings
regarding environmental protection requirements as well as health,

safety and social responsibility standards.

The Group has a supplier assessment team, comprising staff from the
Purchasing Management Department, the Resources Department,
the Research and Development Department and the Supplier Quality
Management Department. This assessment team strictly enforces
supplier-related policies and systems such as the “Supplier Evaluation
and Control Procedure”, “Procurement Control Procedure” and “New
Materials Introduction Procedure”, and requires suppliers to comply
with relevant policies to ensure the implementation of measures such as
environmental protection, health and safety. Pursuant to the procedures,
the Group will inspect and evaluate each of the suppliers to monitor
and ensure their compliance with the relevant standards, laws and
regulations. In case where suppliers are in breach of such regulations
or standards, they will be removed from the suppliers list of the Group

unless they rectify the breaches within a prescribed time limit.
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The Group attaches great significance to the management of potential
environmental and social risks in the supply chain. In the procurement
process, the Group evaluates the environmental and social performance
of suppliers to ensure that suppliers understand the social, ethical
and environmental issues related to their business, and requires major
suppliers to have a management system to deal with relevant issues
and risks. In addition, the Group is committed to supporting the local
economy and giving priority to local suppliers to reduce carbon footprint
during transportation. The Group also has strict requirements for
selecting and evaluating qualified green suppliers, and has established
a management system for suppliers’ environment and hazardous
substances matters, implemented a special inspection and evaluation
process, required suppliers to provide green compliance test reports
and hazardous substance data summary forms, and sign the “Green
Supplier Commitment Letter” to ensure that the materials supplied must
meet the requirements of restricted substances. The Group will continue
to review regularly the performance of its suppliers along the supply
chain and the environmental and social standards in order to minimise

the potential environmental and social risks in the supply chain.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 491 major
suppliers (2022: 538 suppliers). All major suppliers have passed the
review of the above practices during the Reporting Period. During the
Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any major suppliers
having any significant negative impact on business ethics, environmental

protection, human rights and labour practices.
Number of suppliers of the Group by geographical location is as follows:

Location of suppliers

HERE

Mainland China ESEipN
Hong Kong, PRC PEEE
Taiwan a8&
Other countries EMBER
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PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group has always been customer-oriented, actively developing
products in multiple fields, focusing on industry applications, and
creating 5G + Al scenario solutions, including but not limited to express
logistics, financial payment, aviation and heavy industry inspection,
smart home, police affairs, elderly care management, education,
medical health, among other fields. In addition, the Group independently
developed a big data platform to provide customers in various industries

with integrated “cloud + terminal” system solutions.

The Group and its products received the following honours during the

Reporting Period:

° The smart watch A4100, which is independently developed by
the Group, and the “Autonomous and Controllable Human Life
Information Health Management Platform”, were awarded two
invention patents and two software copyrights, and the smart
watch A4100 was also honoured with the “Top 10” “Outstanding
Technology and Innovation Project Award (8 55/ £ All¥7 78 B £8)”
by the Linkong Zone (FRZ=E&) in 2023.

° Shanghai Simcom Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, was
awarded the “Technology Innovation Award (EHX &I#74)” in the
“Sail of Shanghai (_£)8 2 11)” Economic and Trade (Humanities)
Exhibition 2023 jointly presented by Shanghai Industrial Economy
Association, Shanghai Modern Service Industry Association and

Shanghai Public Diplomacy Association.
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The Group strives to ensure product safety. The Group’s main
businesses, namely handsets and I0T terminals business, IOT system
and operation business, as well as the intelligent manufacturing
business, place product safety as their first priority. In the course of
production, the Group always adheres to stringent product quality and
control standards, so as to maintain product quality and safety as well
as compliance with the ISO9001 quality management standards. During
the Reporting Period, none of the products produced by the Group and
sold was recalled for safety and health reasons.

The Group values customers’ feedback and complaints, which serve
as an important reference to improve and enhance product quality and
corporate competitiveness. The Group has a set of rules and procedures
designed for managing customers and product complaints, which are
handled by a dedicated department. Customer feedback received
during the course of product design, research and development is usually
addressed in a timely manner. During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not receive any material complaints regarding product quality and

services.

In relation to observing and protecting intellectual property rights,
the Group has assigned dedicated personnel to take charge of the
management of intellectual property, maintenance of a list of intellectual
property, filing and classification of intellectual property based on its
actual value-creating potential, materiality to the Group’s development
and maintenance costs. The Group has its own intellectual property
data platform, enabling it to closely monitor the latest international
and domestic developments so as to avoid waste of resources due
to repeated research efforts and prevent infringement of intellectual
property rights. The Group recognises the importance of safeguarding
the Group’s interests by the comprehensive utilisation of intellectual
property rights. With reference to cost and expected return analysis,
the Group applies for registration of intellectual property rights that
may have material impact on the Group, such as trademarks, patents,
copyrights and domains, thereby protecting the Company’s interests
as far as possible. When cooperating with other entities or individuals,
provisions regarding the ownership, scope of authorisation, term,
allocation of subsequent research outcomes of the intellectual property
involved are set out in detail in the relevant legal documents to be
entered into between the Group and other entities or individuals. In
practice, the comprehensive utilisation of intellectual property rights
effectively protects the interests of the Group.
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The Group has established regulations on product quality assurance
and recall procedures. The Group has established various control
procedures for design, development and production processes, such as
“Environmental and Occupational Health Monitoring and Measurement
Control Procedures” and control procedures for logistics, storage,
packaging, protection and delivery, which sets out the requirements
for raw materials, auxiliary materials, packaging materials, semifinished
products and various inspection items of finished products,
inspection methods and contents. Its Inspection Department, New
Product Introduction Department and Manufacturing Department
also follow rigorous quality assurance procedures to facilitate timely
identification of quality issues and hidden risks by such departments.
These departments will also address those issues promptly, if any, to
ensure the product pass rate is in compliance with the contractual
requirements. In recent years, the Group has also actively carried out
digital transformation and recorded all the data of each procedure in
the production process in the database to achieve process traceability.
Through big data analysis and mining, the direction of improving
product quality is exported. During the Reporting Period, the Group was
not aware of any material non-compliance with laws and regulations

relating to product and service quality.

The Group’s policies in connection with advertising and labelling of the
Group’s products and services are in compliance with all the laws and
regulations, such as “Advertising Law in the PRC” and “Law of the PRC
on Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests”, to ensure that they are
not misleading to the Group’s customers. The Group provides users with
clear instructions manual and labels to facilitate their understanding
of its products. During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any matters of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that had a significant impact on the Group relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters concerning the Group’s

products and services.
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The Group puts great emphasis on information security and
confidentiality, especially those related to clients and consumers. The
“Staff Manual” sets out strict and clear regulations on confidentiality,
intellectual property, business rules, professional ethics of employees,
conflict of interests and relevant awards and penalties. In addition, the
Group has also established the “Information Security and Confidentiality
Regulation”, which includes details of related descriptions and
requirements of information security and confidentiality so as to ensure
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations such as “Regulations
of the PRC on the Prohibition of Infringements upon Trade Secrets” and
“Regulations of the PRC for Safety Protection of Computer Information
Systems”. All employees have entered into information security and
confidentiality agreements with the Group, under which they are
obliged to keep the information of clients and customers private and
confidential. Every year, the Group organises a number of trainings on
confidentiality, ensuring that every staff member is involved and trained.
The Information Department of the Group attaches great importance to
the security of the information system. Thus, dedicated personnel are
assigned for the system’s maintenance to ensure a safe and effective
operation of the system.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group has established relevant systems such as “Business and
Ethics Requirements Control Procedure”, “Anticorruption Operation
Control Procedure”, while the Group’s “Staff Manual” also sets out its
anti-corruption rules and guidelines. The Legal Affairs Department of the
Group supervises the implementation of procedures with reference to
relevant standards and legal requirements, such as “Interim Provisions
on Banning Commercial Bribery” while the Human Resources and
Administration Department of the Group handles complaints of
behaviours that are in breach of the Group’s rules and regulations on
anti-corruption, with the aim of stopping unethical behaviour arising
from the Company’s operation. Each year, the Group provides its
Directors and employees with anti-corruption training or learning
materials. During the Reporting Period, 5 Directors and 43 employees of
the Group received online training courses in relation to anti-corruption,
of which the total number of training hours for Directors amounted to
approximately 10 hours and the total number of training hours for staff
amounted to approximately 86 hours. Through the relevant training, the
Directors and employees at different levels have more clearly defined
their corresponding roles and responsibilities in anti-corruption and
business ethics, as well as the precautions for compliant operation.
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The Group has in place detailed whistle-blowing procedures. Employees
can report any fraudulent activities for seeking illegitimate benefits
by means of telephone, email, letter, etc. The Group is responsible
for managing the relevant reports, conducting internal assessments,
carrying out investigations and preparing written records, and reporting
the investigation results to the management or the Board in a timely
manner for proper handling. The “Whistle-blowing Policy” also ensures
the protection of whistle-blowers, including confidentiality of identity and

personal information, against reprisal for reporting in good faith.

The Group also has set out detailed regulations and clear requirements
on anti-corruption, prevention and investigation of bribery, extortion
and money laundering, in the “Staff Manual”. It also implements the

following measures to fight against corruption:

1. enhance promotional efforts to create a suitable environment for

efficiency monitoring.

2. improve investigation and adopt active monitoring in replacement
of passive monitoring. The Group focuses on monitoring key
areas in production and operation, such as major projects,
material procurement, waste disposal and writing off of bad and
doubtful debts, thereby further enhancing efficiency monitoring
on specific issues. The Group also actively participates in major
management activities so as to gather information on operational

and management decision-making and implementation.

3. establish rules and procedures for comprehensive governance,
with a view of treating both the symptoms and the root cause

instead of just treating the symptomes.

4, attach importance on rectification, directly identify and close the

loopholes in management through investigation and prevention.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any concluded
legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or

other employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with laws and regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering, including but not limited to the “Criminal Law
of the PRC”, the “Company Law of the PRC”, the “Bidding Law of the
PRC” and the “Anti-unfair Competition Law of the PRC” of Mainland
China and the “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong” that

would have a significant impact on the Group.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group has a long-standing commitment to serving the community
and creating positive value, and has established a set of “Community
Investment Policy” to encourage the Group’s employees to actively
participate in social and community activities, understand the needs
of the society where they are located, and create effective and lasting
benefits for the community by considering community investment. Ms.
Yeung Man Ying (“Mrs. Wong”), en executive Director of the Group,
was a recipient of the China Charity Award which was awarded by the
Ministry of Civil Affairs of the PRC in recognition of her outstanding

achievement to support the community.

Mrs. Wong founded the Shanghai Sunrise Charity Foundation in 2021,
along with other employees who were passionate about charity. During
the Reporting Period, the donations (including materials) by the Group
and Directors personally to the Shanghai Sunrise Charity Foundation
were approximately RMB3,586,000, and were used to support the

following projects:
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Organising the “99 Charity Bazaar (992 & L& E)” and
donated all proceeds from the resale of unused items to children
in mountainous areas to improve their educational environment

and bring them a better future;

Donating office computers to schools in Lvchun County, Yunnan
Province, for use by rural teachers in teaching to facilitate 1T-

based education; and

Mr. Wong Cho Tung, the chairman of the Board and an executive
Director, and his sponse Mrs. Wong made a targeted donation
through the Shanghai Sunrise Charity Foundation for poverty

alleviation.
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In addition, the Group’s staff provided more than 260 hours of volunteer o REBETRN ST -ZFRHETHB

services in 2023, including but not limited to the following activities: 260/ E TARTS - EBRNA BB ETRER
R
. Participating in charity bazaars and donating all the proceeds . 2EAGMEGE  ITREEREY®
from the sale of unused items to children in mountainous areas; ESMHESETSUEEAILEEZE
. Participating in voluntary services such as road traffic duty, . L2HEBERBNEY  IRIBEEER K&
environmental hygiene improvement and depositing of shared ZEHEBENSERRS &
bicycles; and

. Participating in volunteer activities to respect and care for the . LEMEETELEREE - AIERERE
elderly, including visiting elderly homes, performing shows and BEA REFHE - WxrEge o

giving away gift packs.
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The Shanghai Sunrise Charity Foundation actively fulfilled its corporate
social responsibility and promoted social harmony and stability through
the care program for children in mountainous areas, which is designed
to help children in mountainous areas to “have a better school” on
the basis of “having a school”, solving problems such as insufficient
infrastructural facilities, lack of educational resources and lack of
advanced equipment. To this end, the foundation has provided long-
term and precise assistance to children in the mountainous areas
of Yunnan Province by donating desks, computers, printers, sports
equipment, dining tables and chairs, water heaters, etc., so as to

practically improve their learning and living conditions.
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THE CONTENT INDEX OF “ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING
GUIDE"” OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG

EBMERZMAERAANCER
5 HEREABEEID AR
#ol&

KONG LIMITED

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

Section/Statement

BENERE

-1

Governance Structure

Environmental, Social and

Governance Structure

BaRE

RE - g REARE

Reporting Principles

Reporting Principles

P 3% R b 2 R Al
Reporting Scope Reporting Scope
P& 3R E W HE
“Comply or explain” Provisions | Description Section/Statement
[ FREFRARRE R it =8,/ 88
Aspect Al: Emissions
EEAL : HMY
General Disclosure Information on: Emissions

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges

into water and land, and generation of hazardous and

non-hazardous waste.
— MR BHERIOAEREYER - MUKR IO EET - B RESE | B

FEEMREEZH

(@ BE: R

(b) BEFHBITABERZEOEBERERADINER
KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions
BB RUEIRALL PERU ISR S AR R B B R - BER)
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“Comply or explain” Provisions | Description Section/Statement

[ FEFRARRE R iU =8, 88

KPI'Al1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse | Emissions
gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

RS IEIRAL2 HE(BELD RLREE (BE2) REREENE CAMETE) | BEW
R (@Em) & E (WA SEE BN - FEBEE) -

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Emissions
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

BARERUEIRAL3 FTEAEEEEYRE CABEETE) kK (EA) ZE (WAE | By
EREBN - FERETE) -

KPI Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where | Emissions
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

RSB BUEIZEALA FIEAREZEEYRE UEHE) K (ER) BE (AT | Y
ERBN - FERETE) -

KPI Al.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to Emissions
achieve them.

BSR4 IETRALS HPAET I AR E B IR R R ED S B IRFEREA P8R o | BEW

KPI Al.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes Emissions
are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

RSB BUEIRALG MR EEREEEFEYN L - RIEMATET 8RR | B

BERAEREL B IRFTIREH) 28R o

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BHEA2 : ERERA

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

Use of Resources
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RiIE - HEBREBRS

electricity, gas or ail) in total (kWh in ‘O00s) and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).

“Comply or explain” Provisions | Description Section/Statement
[ FREFRERRE R it =5,/ 88
KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. Use of Resources

R RIERA2.]

BB MEER, AR (NE - Sah) BRE
A FETREE) RS (ASER Bl - SHEREH
%) -

BIREA

that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of Use of Resources
production volume, per facility).

RS B TEA2.2 BIKEREE (WABESEA - BIEREAE) © B R{E

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps Use of Resources
taken to achieve them.

BB RUEIRA2.3 HHPTRT M BVREIR A e B iR R E L B R AR | BRE A
o

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water Use of Resources

RASRIEIRIZEA2.4

L SREGE A /KR LRI AR - AR PARTSZE) A7k 3at
AR R AEDEL B RATIRE 5 o

BREM

KPI'A2.5

Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

Use of Resources

BB IEIRA2.5

SRR AT B EM B EE ANEETE) K (iER) 84 EE
(5= -

BIREM

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

EHA3 : RIERRRER

General Disclosure

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the
environment and natural resources.

The Environment and

Natural Resources

—RIE

REBEITASRBERAARERERERZENEER -

RENRAER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERESRE

“Comply or explain” Provisions | Description Section/Statement

[ FEFRARRE R iU =8, 88

KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the The Environment and
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to | Natural Resources
manage them.

RS EIRA3.1 M EB ST HIRRERAARERNEATZEREHNERE | REERRAER

AR BT -

Aspect A4: Climate Change

EHA4 : RIRZL

General Disclosure

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-
related issues which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer.

Climate Change

—RAREE BRARESELRAESHETAEEATENSEARIGER | RIEE (L
EERBUR ©
KPI'A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which Climate Change

have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them.

RAR A BUEIEAL.L

D E R BT AELEF ENEARGHERSZE

K EHTTE o

TIREE

Aspect B1: Employment

[EEB1 : EE

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

Employment

—RIEE

BRI MR BELEA  TIERS - BREY - FEK
g Znfk - REBUAREARFBREFA -

(@ BX: R

(b) ETHEITABEAVENBRZERBROINER -

(=

KPIB1.1

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example,
full- or part-time), age group and geographical region.

Employment

RS AEIE1EB1.1

IR R N2 REERE) - FEAER MRS W
BEREH -

=
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RiIE - HEBREBRS

“Comply or explain” Provisions | Description Section/Statement

[FETHER]EX i pu a0 Ll

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Employment
geographical region.

RARERIEIEBL.2 RILR - FiRERIREEDEESMKLLE - =

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

[EEB2 : RERZE

General Disclosure

Information on:
(a)
(b)

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.

Health and Safety

the past three years including the reporting year.

— AR ER FARHZE2TFRRRRBEESREBELEEN fEEMET S
(@ HE: K
(b) EFEBEITABERTENERERNROIKER -
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of | Health and Safety

MR IE1RB2.1

BE=ZF (BRERFE) BFRTTHOABMRLEE -

fpEZE

fRIL PRV B R IZ R B e 24808 - DASERE T R EER T
E e

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety

RSB IEEB2.2 BAIEEETIERE - fEREL S

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures Health and Safety
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.

RARERIEIEB2.3 RS S

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[EEB3 : #RERIEI

General Disclosure

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

Development and
Training

—RIE

BRARTHE B IETT TIERE MM LA BEMBUR - Rtz 3)l
mE o

R RIE
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“Comply or explain” Provisions | Description Section/Statement

[ FEFRARRE R iU =8, 88

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and Development and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle Training
management).

BB BUIEIRB3.1 ZURIREEEMN(ERERE PRERE) SOOI | R EE

BEASL -

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by Development and
gender and employee category. Training
RASE4A N E1EB3.2 EMRIREBSERE D - BREETHZIINFHERE - | FREEEI
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
EEBA : B TR
General Disclosure Information on: Labour Standards
(a)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
—RAREE BEMIEETSRH S TH 25 TAER|
(@) HEER: R
(b) EBTFHBETABERFZENHRBEEERROIER -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to Labour Standards
avoid child and forced labour.
RS AR IETEBA.1 R FT RIS E AR AR S E T MoaH|S T - & TR
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when | Labour Standards
discovered.
RS AE K IE1EB4.2 M IR B R IE R R BB B BB TR AU 288 &5 TAER|
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EMEBS : {fEgEEE
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the Supply Chain
supply chain. Management
—RIREE ERHEENIRE S RREBUR HEHEEIR

RANMREBRERAR —T - —FFH

O
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

O

RiIE - HEBREBRS

“Comply or explain” Provisions | Description Section/Statement

[ FREFRERRE R it =5,/ 88

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain

Management

RS2 4 IETEB5.1 i@ E D HEREE - HEHE IR

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, Supply Chain
number of suppliers where the practices are being Management
implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored.

R ERUEIEBS.2 A RERRERNES - MEARITHEREOIMNEERE | HERERE
B - ARMEBESITRERGE -

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental Supply Chain
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are Management
implemented and monitored.

RSB RUEIEBS.3 G R LR S EIR TR IR IR Rt G R aVEHl - A | EEER
RABBERITREER A -

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally Supply Chain
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, Management
and how they are implemented and monitored.

RSB BUIEIEBS.4 HMEBCE HIE R RE (R 2 AIRRE B RARISEED] - AR | ftERER
MHBEITREER A -

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EEB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy

matters relating to products and services provided and

methods of redress.

Product Responsibility

—RER

BRAMMEHERMNBBNEERLZS - BE  SFELALES
BRI AR
() HEER: R

(b) B THEITABERTENBRZEZRLAOINER
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“Comply or explain” Provisions | Description Section/Statement
[ FEFRARRE R iU =8, 88
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls | Product Responsibility

for safety and health reasons.

RS AE 1513861

EEXDEX
Lt -

Em@EH R REFEMMARNN A D

EmAd

KPI B6.2

Number of products and service related complaints received
and how they are dealt with.

Product Responsibility

FABAEIE1RB6.2

RERNERMRE IR B AR EE X -

]
ank

Mt

i

(E

KPI B6.3

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

Product Responsibility

B AE 151586 .3

1o L e S R IE AR E R B AR IE I -

i

B fE

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Product Responsibility
procedures.

R B RUEIRB6.4 IS ERERERERERERT - EmEF

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, | Product Responsibility

and how they are implemented and monitored.

BB IE12B6.5

AU B E ERMRE R ALBER - AR ABRs T MBS
P

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

[E®EB7 : RES

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Anti-corruption

—RIE

BRI IEEEE - $1R - BEFREREM
() HEER: K
(b) ETFHBITABERFENREEAERLEMNNER -

RANMREBRERAR —T - —FFH
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RiIE - HEBREBRS

brought against the issuer or its employees during the
reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.

“Comply or explain” Provisions | Description Section/Statement
[ FREFRERRE R it =5,/ 88
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices | Anti-corruption

R EMIE1EBT .1

RERAAREEITAREBBIRNI D EENESRARN
HE B MR AAER -

k&5

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Anti-corruption
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.

RASEAEIEIERT .2 FEIm S E e S BB ERAR T - AR T R EE B 90K o R&R

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors Anti-corruption
and staff.

RRERUEREBT.3 HmEEREIRENRESHE - RE[

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EEBS : HERE

General Disclosure

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to
ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’

Community Investment

concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).

interests.

—RHRER BN ESERBEREEMTHRTZENBREER LS | HERE
ERBMRFEAIBER o

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental Community Investment

BSRERIE1EB8.1

WEERRE (AT BB STHL B X
£ 8%

o

e

HEIRE

KPI B8.2

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

Community Investment

RSB IE1EBR.2

EFIREMPAER (N ELHER) -

HEREE
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF SIM TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

Independent Auditor’s Rep'ort
B ZBENHRE

fRED

BEANKREBERATKRR
(REFEK T EIR A A)

=R

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SIM
Technology Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 127
to 273 which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

AizEEm CATEE [3HF) DEIIENE 127 =
273 ARNREARHEBRBER AR UATEHE [ERR)
REMWBEAR CATHME [EEE]) MR MB®RE -
HMEHREREER TS =F+=_A=+—HA0i4
MR KREBEZ A ILFENGEBERIGEE
SN EMEERER  GERREHRNGEARER
BXR  UREEMBHREAMT  BRERSHERRR
Hib AR -

BMRE  ZEREVBRERERE (BEBRTERS
ZAD(BEBEGBRELNNEEmMF 5B T &
EERN T =F+ "=+ HARNEEHEIRIE
HEZALFENGAMBRARGEESRE © I
EEREE (RalEH) MEEEREZ AEE -

ERMER

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

HAERE (BFRFEAD (BIFRFS L) E1T
it o REZFEN T AENETEERRS (&
AN B SR & SRR AR B L] S P IE#E—
FRA - RIBEERSETEERRHEZ BSRMN (F
Egrtenamsl)) () BfIBIR &E8E-
WEEITTRIFHEMEREE - HIUEE - HiFIPT
ERNETREERE LEE AR MNETERE
IR

RABMEEBERAR —F - =FFH
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B X EE RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

BEEITEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

MREAFRSRERMNEZAE - RALARELR
EUBRRNETRREENSEIE - GEFRLER
IR BBGE AV EHRER M AS R ETRIER o
BT ELSTHEHEBNESR -

these matters.

Key audit matter

Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of
investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the
balance to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and the
significant estimates associated with
the determination of the fair value of
investment properties.

All'investment properties of the Group
are measured at fair value based

on the valuations performed by an
independent qualified professional
valuer (the “Valuer”) engaged by

the Company and the chief financial
officer of the Group works closely with
the Valuer to establish and determine
the appropriate valuation techniques
and key inputs. The valuer adopted
income capitalisation approach to
arrive at the valuation of investment
properties as at 31 December 2023.
Details of the valuation techniques
and key inputs, namely capitalisation
rates and market rentals used in the
valuations are disclosed in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.
The Group's investment properties
amounted to HK$640,111,000 as at
31 December 2023. Loss on changes
in fair value of investment properties
of HK$16,000,000 was recognised
during the year ended 31 December
2023.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Qur audit procedures to assess the
valuation of investment properties
included the following:

o Understanding management’s
process over the valuation of
investment properties, including
the involvement of the Valuer
engaged by the Company;

o Evaluating the competence,

capabilities and objectivity of the
Valuer engaged by the Company;

o Understanding the valuation
techniques and key inputs
applied on selected investment
properties by holding discussion
with the management and the
Valuer, with the involvement of

our internal valuation specialists;

o Checking, on a sample basis,

the tenancy information included

in the valuation models with
underlying lease contracts; and

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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Key audit matter

Valuation of investment properties
(continued)

Impairment assessment on property,
plant and equipment, right-of-

use assets and intangible assets in
handsets and 10T terminal business

We identified the impairment
assessment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets with finite useful lives
allocated to the single cash-generating
unit (“CGU") of handsets and 10T
terminal business as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the
balances to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and the
significant degree of judgement made
by the management in determining
the recoverable amounts of these
assets in handsets and 10T terminal
business.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

o Assessing, with the involvement
of our internal valuation
specialists, valuation techniques
and the reasonableness of key
inputs used in the valuation on
selected investment properties
including on capitalisation rates,
and market rentals of similar
properties.

Qur procedures in relation to the
impairment assessment of property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets in handsets and 10T
terminal business included:

o Understanding management's
process over the impairment
assessment, including the
involvement of the Valuer
engaged by the Company;

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Key audit matter

Impairment assessment on property,
plant and equipment, right-of-

use assets and intangible assets in
handsets and IOT terminal business
(continued)

As disclosed in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements,
the management concluded that
there was an indication of impairment
in the handsets and 10T terminal
business and performed impairment
assessment by estimating the
recoverable amounts based on value-
in-use calculation. The key inputs and
assumptions adopted by the Valuer
engaged by the Company engaged by
the Company and the chief financial
officer of the Group works closely
with the Valuer to establish and
determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and key inputs including
budgeted sales, gross profit margin,
annual and terminal growth rates
and discount rate. Based on the
result of management's assessment,
no impairment loss was recognised
against the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets
with finite useful lives, respectively
during the year ended 31 December
2023. After the impairment
assessment, the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets
of the Group were HK$49,229,000,
HK$4,907,000 and HK553,000,
respectively.

Independent Auditor’s Report

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Evaluating the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the
Valuer engaged by the Company;

Understanding the valuation
techniques, key inputs and
assumptions applied in the
value-in-use calculation by
holding discussion with the
management and the Valuer, with
the involvement of our internal
valuation specialists;

Assessing, with the involvement
of our internal specialists, the
valuation techniques and the
discount rate applied; and

Assessing the reasonableness

of the budgeted sales, gross
profit margin and annual and
terminal growth rates against
historical and current financial
performance of the Group, and
with reference to relevant market
information.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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OTHER INFORMATION

oy

Independent Auditor’s Report
B B AR S

Ht &

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

BERARESFHHMENAR - HtEMSETEHR
FHAMER @ BETBEFS M BRER R EFIHRE
¥R

B EAMBEHRRNERL NREEMET - i
FTEZEELMERBEREAANET SR

FBEUMERAMBHRENTT - RANKEEHHE
HiE - HUiBRT - ZEEMEMESEEFAR
BRERIBPIERTBIETEENEAFEENE
BREUTFFEEAERRAMER - ERERFAZH
ﬁH’JI1’E WREMRAEMERFEEABRRAL -
HMFERELEE - A& | BB EFRSE °

EERAEEBRES
HEE

PR RAR AR

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors of the Company determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

ERRERAAERBEERMBEHREENREERF
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B X EE RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

%ﬁ%%%ﬁ%é%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%mﬁ

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

HMNHEER  EHEEMBHRREEBES MFEAR
HEF AR M SN EAH RS IBRE - X
R (AREQRE) £ 0 KNRTERZRR
HABEEFIE R OREENRE © FRILLASN - FAfIE
WENAMIERMARE - ATETHATHREZAR
HEMEMATABEAREREIENES - /12
RBRBRERRE - BTRERERREREER
EITHRET - AR —BEAHRAFERBREER -
S8 AR AT A R ARRF SR EERR S - AR & B TR A1
B8 YR ok M AR R R AT RE R B AR S BA TS IR 2 PR A KRB B
BRRFIEHREERTE - RIA BRI AT R AR
fEERX °

ERBBEREHERETEMERED - HAERT
BEAME - RIT T ERBEREE o AT

o BHIAMFHEHNEFERER M BB A MR
REEBRFERRANER - REFRATER
R AR E LR - ARERFEFEE
BIURE  EREMERMER - ARFEA
RRPRER Bl FRER  EREL - 3%
BEENABES 2 £ - FIt REEBRERFEM
BHMEAFERFENER SN AR R
RMEBHER RGN R -

o  ERBERTHEMMARES  URMEENE
2 BEMLIEYE BEREREHINEG
MMEBERER -



o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B X EE RS

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Yeung Pik Fung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss - S
mERmR s

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-ZT-_=F+-_A=t—BHLLFE

2023 2022
—EC=F —E-—F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
KiaE FET FAET
Revenue WA 5 543,940 638,017
Cost of sales and services SHE K ARTGA AR (423,611) (650,107)
Gross profit (loss) EFEE) 120,329 (12,090)
Other income E A 7 57,099 30,474
Other gains and losses H b Uas & EsiE 7 508,947 (28,619)
Impairment losses under expected TEEEEEEEA T Z
credit loss model, net of reversal TREEE - MkREE 8 (17,607) (35,292)
Research and development expenses HERHEERH (136,926) (245,282)
Selling and distribution costs SHE & SR A (24,368) (34,724)
Administrative expenses TS (81,618) (173,806)
Share of results of associates PaK[aY T EANCIE S 22 (3,940) 4,940
Finance costs & A 9 (4,973) (4,916)
Profit (loss) before taxation BRA% A A (B518) 416,943 (499,315)
Taxation IR 11 (83,769) (8,507)
Profit (loss) for the year AN A (B518) 13 333,174 (507,822)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: TS IBEGFEE RN (B8)
Owners of the Company PIN/NETL S 344,285 (509,453)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR b 2 (11,111) 1,631
333,174 (507,822)
Earning (loss) per share (HK cents) BREF (F8) GBI 15
— Basic HAK 16.07 (23.24)
— Diluted e 16.07 (23.24)
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= Consoliated Statement of Pofit o Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
D BAREREMRZERER

- At 31 December 2023
RZFBZ=F+=-A=+—H

Profit (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income (expense)

Items that will not be subsequently reclassified

to profit or loss during the year:

Surplus on transfer of right-of-use assets
and property, plant and equipment to
investment properties at fair value

Fair value gain on investment in equity
instrument at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Deferred tax relating to items that will not
be reclassified to profit or loss

Exchange difference arising on translation
to presentation currency

Other comprehensive expense

Total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year

Total comprehensive income (expense)
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

128 SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

AE R m A (B518)
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BRERRAFEFT AR
EHEWEMBRATA
Z A FEWES
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BHES2EREL L
ERER
H A 2

AEE 2R (F) #5HE

TFBIR S 2 s (R0
B
EA/NSIE ZEDN
FEER R R

2023 2022
—E-=E —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
333,174 (507,822)
1,305 96,685
10,618 630
(2,981) (21,786)
(21,803) (122,784)
(12,861) (47,255)
320,313 (555,077)
331,424 (556,269)
(11,111) 1,192
320,313 (555,077)




Non-current assets
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Interests in associates

Equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)

Consideration receivables

Current assets

Inventories

Properties held for sale

Trade and notes receivables

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Consideration receivables

Amounts due from associates

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL")

Pledged bank deposits

Short-term bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Assets held for disposal

Consolidated Statement of Financial Posifion
A MR R &R

At 31 December 2023
RZBZ=F+=-A=+—H

2023 2022
—E-=E T F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Mt FTHT FHIT
FRBEE
BBy 16 640,111 664,865
M - BE REE 17 56,243 82,218
EREEE 18 17,482 67,196
EREE 19 553 565
REE N R 2 R 22 46,616 60,056
BAFE AR M2k
(HEAFEFTAEMEE
Wiz ) ZBEATA 23 68,130 61,376
FEURE 26 - 17,227
829,135 953,503
REEE
=& 24 86,323 185,779
BHEHE M 25 469 8,093
FEWE ZERREE 26 82,440 77,803
Hib AR - 12e
R IEAFRIE 26 360,807 67,418
FEWARAB 26 - 25,147
JRE LB & 1 R ROE 26 - 5,772
BAFESABRRE ((RATE
FTABR]) 2 emEE 23 468 1,602
BRI TR 27 22,000 165,846
R HARITIF X 27 693,679 168,122
RITHEBRERS 27 74,219 191,814
1,320,405 897,396
HIEREZBE 12 - 202,955
1,320,405 1,100,351

RAMEEBERAR —F - =FFH
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 31 December 2023
R=B==#+=A=+-~

Current liabilities
Trade and notes payables
Deposits from tenants
Deferred income
Other payables and accruals
Contract liabilities
Bank borrowings
Lease liabilities
Tax payables

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Deposits from tenants
Lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred income

NOTES
et

REBEE

ENEZERLEE 28
e 28
FRIEUA 28
Hb AR LB R 28
AHaE 29
RITEE 30
HEAE 31
FEATFRIB
REBEEFE
REERABEE
BARHE
&N 32
] 33
AARHER AE(GER

FEE R RS
XM

FREBERE
AEES 28
HEafE 31
RIEFIBE E 21
TRFEUA 28

The consolidated financial statements on pages 127 to 273 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2024 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Wong Cho Tung
FHE
DIRECTOR
EF

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

2023 2022
—E-=E =B F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
77,920 157,160
3,620 2,242
1,116 1,136
75,084 48,919
80,065 105,893
33,000 240,240
2,509 6,884
122,083 33,981
395,397 596,455
925,008 503,896
1,754,143 1,457,399
214,335 219,852
1,405,591 1,074,361
1,619,926 1,294,213
(733) 14,123
1,619,193 1,308,336
6,078 6,666
2,194 6,234
89,976 96,555
36,702 39,608
134,950 149,063
1,754,143 1,457,399

ERFI27TEE2/3AZ A UBRREN TN
F=A-tRNBEE=gE  THUTEEFKRE

=

Zhu Wenhui
KXIE
DIRECTOR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Eqility N
RERRBER TN

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE-Z_=F+-_A=+—HLFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
KAAREARE
Retained

Statutory Sharehased ~ Employee  Propertis Rssets  Capital profits Non-

Share Share ~— surpls Other ~ payment share  revaluation  revluation  redemption  Translation  (accumulated controling
capital ~~ premium Tesene Tesere reseve  trustresene Tesere Tesene Tesene Tesere [osses) Total  inferests Total

v HRE  ESRB iz i &x e 2R

B5  BEER BAMR  EMAE MRRE  GHER  EGGR  EMBE  RERE  MERR (6B &it Bt &
HKS000  HKSOOD  HKSO0D  HKS00  HKSOOD  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HK$'000 HK$‘000
T TR THR Thn Th O TAn TRt TR TR TAT TR T Tl TE

Meea) Mot/ Mot 37
i) h W)
At 1 January 2022 WE-_F-f- 2191 168315 56,056 %211 B0 (16623 28820 33 N4 B0 B0 1881252 2% 18418
(Los)proft for e year RER(5R) &7 - - - - - - - - - - 04 E0dR) 1@1 ETER)
Otbercomprehensiemcome. B R
(expense) for te year RENE(RR) - - - - - - DB I - (123 - [kgl0) @) W
Toeloomprehensieincome.~~ AEF2EAE
(expense) forthe year [Fx)es = o = - - - 75,056 L] - (1235) (0943 (B56269) 119 (G507
Brercie f e opons fifeERE 105 1 - - (189 - - - - - - 36 - ¥
Repuchase of odnaryshares~ EBIE R (620 (2909 - - - - - - 823 - B30 BLI3) - B3
Tensrsttiyresene. EATETHE - - - - - - - - S YK - - -

At31 December 2022 Ho3zE
t2R=t-8 2982 746459 61469 %211 781 (16623  332% 3867 R105 855 (89430 1294213 113 13083%

Prot oss) o theyear KEERH(EE) - - - - - - - - - - 325 M5 (L) 33
Otbercomprehensie mcome.~~ AEEEf

(exense) for the year 2ENEER) - - - - - - 919 1963 - 21803) - (12860) - (12860)
Toeloomprehensieincome.~~ AEF2EAE

(expense) forthe year (%) - - - - - - 99 7963 - (1803) 344285 BLA4 (L11) 320313
Repuchase ofordnaryshares IR (517 (1278) - - - - - -5 - B (18260) - (18260)
Tensrtosautoyresene. BEZEREE - AL - - - - - - - 1 - - -
Reease upon deregitiinof AT

asubsidiary EEk - - - - - - - - - - - - (762) (762)
Roguistonofpatl merestin -~ HE-FIEAT

asubsidiary Dot - - - - - - - - - - - - (813) (813)
Roquision o a subsdiary WE-FHBAT - - - - - - - - - - - N '3[ AV i)
Transfer ut upon Land Resumption WELLA4(2 5 A& 12)

(a5 defned innoe 12) E&Y - - - - - - (59330 - - -3 - - -

Tenserupon foretureofshae - R ERERER

apton - - - - (929 - - - - - 9,269 - -
Shares graned inder teshae BETR9 B
avard scheme R - - - - - 1660 - - - - o 15 L1259

431 December 2023 Ho3zE

435 776 1927 %52 8,602 - J4%05 1180 M2 6L72 56106 1619926 (733) 161,193
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

—/

REERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

Notes:

(a)

(b)

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”), before distribution of the net profit each year,
the subsidiaries established in the PRC shall set aside 10% of their net
profit after taxation for the statutory surplus reserve fund (except where
the reserve has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered capital). The
reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the board of directors
(the “Directors”) of the relevant subsidiaries and by the relevant authority,
to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.

Other reserve is arisen from the reorganisation in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, and the difference between the considerations
paid and the relevant non-controlling interests upon the acquisition of
additional interests in subsidiaries.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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(a)

(b)
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit (loss) before taxation
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Loss on disposal of interest in an associate
Gain arising on early termination of lease
contracts
Write-off of trade receivables
Write-off of trade and other payables
Impairment loss on financial assets and other
items under expected credit loss model

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss on right-of-use assets
Impairment loss on intangible assets
Impairment loss on properties held for sale
Impairment loss on interest in associates
Impairment loss on goodwill

Gain on disposal of assets held for disposal
Share of results of associates

(Reversal of) allowance for inventories
Share-based payments expenses

Changes in fair values of investment properties
Fair value change on financial assets at FVTPL

Interest income
Dividend income from an associate and financial
assets at FVTOCI

Dividend income from financial assets at FVTPL

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
Decrease (increase) in inventories
Decrease in properties held for sales
Increase in trade and notes receivables
(Increase) decrease in other receivables, deposits
and prepayments

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flt;ws

BT
BB A& A (B518)
FLTFIRE (FH AR
BOE A
ME - BB RRBTE
EREEENE
B EERE
ﬁ§?¥~@%&&ﬁ2@ﬁ®
518
HER—HBE AR 2 a2 B8
RERILASEOMEL 2 e

MsH U E 5 AR
W E 5 AR R L 5RIR
BREEBREREA T 2 SREE
NMEAMIE B BE R
ME - BB LRBRERR
EREEERERE
BIEE < RIERTE
FEL EME ZRERIE
SR YNCIP S RIY 5
P 2R EE1E
HEREHEEE 2 Wat
(e NCTE S
FE (BRE)EE
PARS AR 1 3R Bl 52
BREMENFEZE)
BAVEF ARG SREE
N EES)
7 SUA
KB — SRR RIRAFE
FEARMEERENSREE
H i B A
BAFEFABRCSREE
B BIA

LEECRPRKERSRE

IR ()

FEL BN

MBI SR R

HA IR - % RIBMHA
(8 ) >

Decrease (increase) in amounts due from associates [ U B < /A a1 38 ek 2> (32 n)

Decrease in trade and notes payables

Increase (decrease) in deposit from tenants

Decrease in deferred income

Decrease in contract liabilities

Increase in other payables, deposits received
and accruals

Cash used in operations
Interest received
PRC tax paid

NET CASH USED IN
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

BN E SRR RRER D
ARSI ORD)

BELEM AR

BRABERD

HAEMRK - EWR e K&
FRIRIE N

REMMZAE
A E
Eff P EHIR

REFHFTRAZR SRR

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-ZT-_=F+-_A=t—BHLLFE

2023 2022
—EC=HF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
416,943 (499,315)
4,973 4916
20,921 21,834
4,190 9,992
411 45,127
(934) 1,977
1,581 -

- (229)

1,804 -
(3,511) (8,057)
17,607 35,292
- 53,839

- 6,056

- 17,918

7,142 -
3,342 -
2,282 -
(537,816) =
3,940 (4,940)
(73,969) 57,447
12,549 -
16,000 37,422
1,134 2,550
(23,932) (14,316)
(7,157) =
- (327)
(132,500) (232,814)
170,919 (17,659)
433 736
(3,130) (625)
(6,176) 77,928
17,391 (3,026)
(78,347) (36,809)
961 (3,192)
(2,226) (1,179)
(24,242) (10,233)
27,039 4,950
(29,878) (221,923)
23,932 14,316
(4,687) (109)
(10,633) (207,716)

RAMEEBERAR —F - =FFH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERSRER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z_=F+-_A=t+—HLFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of property, plant and
equipment

Purchases of land use right

Dividend received from an associate and
equity instruments at FVTOCI

Proceeds from disposal of equity
instruments at FVTOCI

Purchases of equity instruments
at FVTOCI

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Development costs paid

Net proceeds on disposal of assets held
for disposal

Proceeds on disposal of an interest in
an associate

Placement of pledged bank deposits

Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits

Placement of short-term bank deposits

Withdrawal of short term bank deposits

Receipt of consideration receivables

NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank borrowings raised
Repayment of bank borrowings

Interest paid

Repurchase of shares

Repayment of lease liabilities

Proceeds from exercise of share options
Interest paid for lease liabilities

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET Tt
(7,732) (53,818)

- (46,318)

7,157 -
2,668 3,884

- (6,972)

5,868 6,324
(409) (7,756)
496,089 -
6,941 =
(22,280) (171,334)
165,062 15,338
(612,394) (168,122)
82,389 349,537
12,242 14,137
135,601 (65,100)
33,420 249,249
(238,953) (39,761)
(4,736) (4,400)
(18,260) (31,135)
(5,352) (8,472)

- 365

(237) (516)
(234,118) 165,330
(109,150) (107,486)
191,814 322,309
(8,445) (23,009)
74,219 191,814
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemehts

GENERAL INFORMATION

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-ZT-_=F+-_A=t—BHLLFE

—REX

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) with limited liability. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information section
of the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), as the Directors
consider that it is @ more appropriate presentation for a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and for the convenience of
the shareholders. The Company is an investment holding
company. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are
disclosed in note 41.

The management of the Group had reassessed its forecast
and concluded there was indication for impairment in
the handsets and Internet of things terminals business
(“handsets and IOT terminals business”). It conducted
impairment assessment of the single cash-generating unit
and no impairment loss was recognised during the year.
Details of the impairment assessment are set out in note 20.

23

2

AR A oA A R — N\ — A FLE
REEEEBRT AEREARAT « &
ARZEMBEEREEL LA FRZ A
VAR — BRI -

ARBZNEEERBARBE([ARK]) « KiR
BPBHRERABT(DET) 25 - HTREEZR
RER—BBREMAERIMAERRAA (B
P B EmARMTEARBRIR - PH®RKR
NAET2IERRE - AR/ —RIREZER
NA] o HXBMBER R 2 EBNIMEAIRE

AEBERECENNGERR - ERAAH
RN T B AR A 7 ([T X s 48
RmER])LBRE HEHE - REELSE
EITRIERE - FRLEERRMERSE < &
EFFEHFHISER M 20 -

RAMEEBERAR —F - =FFH

135



136

—/

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs”) AND CHANGES IN OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FFTR] R ASAE ] B B TS 3 o
R (BRI IR E 2R ) R E

e
#E
ST HREE

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and amendments to IFRSs issued by the International
Accounting Standard Board (“IASB”) for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on 1 January 2023 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

IFRS 17 (including the June Insurance Contracts
2020 and December 2021
Amendments to IFRS 17)

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction

International Tax Reform-Pillar
Two model Rules

Amendments to IAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting

IFRS Practice Statement 2 Policies

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 12

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to IFRSs in the current year had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs”) AND CHANGES IN OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)

e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
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New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (conTINUED)

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS
Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
is amended to replace all instances of the term “significant
accounting policies” with “material accounting policy
information”. Accounting policy information is material if,
when considered together with other information included
in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the
amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy
information relating to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose
immaterial accounting policy information, such information
must not obscure material accounting policy information.

IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
(the “Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate
how an entity applies the “four-step materiality process”
to accounting policy disclosures and to judge whether
information about an accounting policy is material to its
financial statements. Guidance and examples are added to
the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments in the current year had
no material impact on the Group’s financial position and
performance but has affected the disclosure of the Group’s
accounting polices set out in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSs””) AND CHANGES IN OTHER
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coNTINUED)
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New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (conTINUED)

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred
Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments narrow the scope of the
recognition exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred
tax assets in paragraphs 15 and 24 of IAS 12 Income
Taxes so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on
initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

In accordance with the transition provision:

(i) the Group has applied the new accounting policy
retrospectively to leasing transactions that occurred on
or after 1 January 2022;

(i) the Group also, as at 1 January 2022, recognised a
deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be utilised) and
a deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable
temporary difference associated with right-of-use-
assets and lease liabilities.

The new accounting policies have been applied
retrospectively. The application of the Committee’s agenda
decision has had no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

I % B 745 3 2 A R 38 10515 % B B & =+ 4E Rl
852855 2 &5

Amendments to IFRS 16
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Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture!
KEEEANBE ARSI AELECHNEELHEIEA!

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

R RS SRR 1658 2 18 FT ERERNEES &

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current?
et RIS 2 ER] 1B ED B RIMEN K IE B

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?

Eilos AL e o) MR IFRB A E?

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7

Supplier Finance Arrangements?

REENETR2IET RERIBREEAETR  HEERELH

Amendments to IAS 21
Bl & EERISE 2158 2 185]

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all other amendments to IFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

Lack of Exchangeability?
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

REMBRREREERERS
TBCRE R

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The directors of the Company have, at the time of approving
the consolidated financial statements, a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

Material accounting policy information

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o has exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power over the investee to
affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEMBRREREEREARS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL FTEBCRE R ()
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAREEERESR (@
Basis of consolidation (conTINUED) HEBE(E)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets which
includes an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
acquired processes are considered substantive if they are
critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, including
an organised workforce with the necessary skills knowledge
or experience to perform the related processes or they
significantly to the ability to continue producing outputs
and are considered unigue or cannot be replaced without
significant cost effort or delay in the ability to continue
producing outputs.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REVBHRKRENELERERS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL TR E R (5])
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (conTINUED) 3.2 REFTEERE R ()
Business combinations (conTINUED) EBEO(E)

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a liability in the
Conceptual Frameword for Financial Reporting issued by
International Accounting Standards Board in March 2018
(the “Conceptual Framework”) except for transactions and
events within the scope of IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets” (“IAS 37”) or IFRIC 21
“Levies” (“IFRIC 21"), in which the Group applies IAS 37 or
IFRIC 21 instead of the Conceptual Framework to identify
the liabilities it has assumed in a business combination.
Contingent assets are not recognised.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)
over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
reassessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REVBHRKRENEERERS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL FTERER (8
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 BAETTBEEHR(E)
Business combinations (coNTINUED) EBEH(E)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group
for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of
an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date of which the investee becomes
an associate.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REVBHRKRENELERERS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL TR E R (5])
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 BAGTBEER(E
Interests in associates (conNTINUED) REEE L 52z ()

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in accordance with IAS
36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is
not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal of the relevant
associate.

Revenue from contracts with customers
Information about the Group’s accounting policies relating to
contracts with customers is provided in note 5 and 29.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-T-=F+-A=+-ALFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FENBBRREHREEREARS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL FTEBCRE R ()
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAREERESR (E
Leases HE
Definition of a lease HEZEZ

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application of IFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under IFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of office premises and warehouse
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis
over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; and
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

REMBRREREERERS
FTBURE R ()

3.2

146

Material accounting policy information (conTINUED)

Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (conNTINUED)

Right-of-use assets (coNTINUED)

Except for those that are classified as investment properties
and measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever the lease term has changed, in which case the
related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-T-=F+-A=+-ALFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEMBRREREEREARS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL FTEBCRE R ()
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAREERESR (E
Leases (CONTINUED) HE (@&
The Group as a lessee (CONTINUED) AEFEREEN (B)
Lease modifications THEEET
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate IR TAER - AEEEHEBSIEAE A
lease if: BUHEEALR

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances
of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
and lease incentives from lessor by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use assets.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases
All leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF REVBHRRENEERERS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL FTEBCRE R (8)
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) REFTBERER (&)
Leases (CONTINUED) *HE("E)
The Group as a lessor (CONTINUED) FKEFERLHFEN (B)

Classification and measurement of leases (CONTINUED)
Rental income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit of loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
entities are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of the translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+ALFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REVBHRKRENEERERS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL FTERER (8
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 BAETTBEEHR(E)
Government grants BUFE B A

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants where primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or
loss over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss on a systematic and rational basis in the period in
which they become receivable. Government grants relating
to compensation of expenses are deducted from the related
expenses, other government grants are presented under
“other income”.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REVBHRKRENELERERS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL TR E R (5])
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 BAGTBEER(E
Employee benefits (CONTINUED) EEER ()
Retirement benefit costs (conTINUED) BRIKIEF KA ()

For long service payments (the “LSP”) obligation, the Group
accounts for the employer MPF contributions expected to
be offset as a deemed employee contribution towards the
LSP obligation in terms of HKAS 19.93(a) and it is measure
on a net basis. The estimated amount of future benefit is
determined after deducting the negative service cost arising
from the accrued benefits derived from the Group’s MPF
contributions that have been vested with employees, which
are deemed to be contributions from the relevant employees.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Shares/share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair
value of the equity-settled share-based payments determined
at the grant date without taking into consideration all
non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share-based payments
reserve).
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HE-F-=F+-A=+ALFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REVBHRKRENEERERS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL FTERER (8
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 BAETTBEEHR(E)
Share-based payments (CONTINUED) DARR 33 7k (88)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(cONTINUED)

Shares/share options granted to employees (coNTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of options that are expected to vest
based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimate,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to share based payment reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share based payment reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
based payment reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Share award granted fo employees

For share award schemes, the fair value of services received,
determined by reference to the fair value of awarded shares
granted at the grant date, is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase
in employee share trust reserve. The cost of acquisition of
the Company’s employee share trust for the share award
scheme is recorded as treasury shares (shares held for
share award scheme). At the time when the awarded shares
are vested, the amount previously recognised in share award
reserve and the amount of the relevant treasury shares will
be transferred to accumulated profits.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revisits
its estimates of the number of awarded shares that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of
the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to the
employee share trust reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. GRUBBRENEERERS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL TR E R (5])
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 BAETTBEER(FE)
Taxation HIE

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and
deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable and deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit and at the time of the transaction does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REVBHRKRENEERERS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL FTERER (8
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (conTINUED) 3.2 REFTEERE R ()
Taxation (CONTINUED) Bi1E ()

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liability, the Group applies IAS 12
requirements to the lease liabilities and the related assets
separately. The Group recognises a deferred tax asset
related to lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised and a deferred tax
liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REVBHRKRENELERERS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL TR E R (5])
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 BAGTBEER(E
Taxation (CONTINUED) HE (&)

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be use by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the
most likely amount or the expected value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position,
except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are classified
as property, plant and equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. GRUBBRENEERERS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL FTERER (8
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 BAETTBEEHR(E)

Property, plant and equipment (conTINUED)

If a property becomes an investment property because its use
has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value
of that item (including the relevant leasehold land classified
as right-of-use assets at the date of transfer is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in properties
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement
of the property, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to retained profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties are
initially measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to exclude
any prepaid or accrued operating lease income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEMBRREHREEREARS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL TR E R (5])
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 BAGTBEER(E
Investment properties (CONTINUED) BREYE (B

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Intangible assets

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+ALFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF HREVBHRRENEERERS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL FTEBCRE R ()
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) BAGTTBRER (&)
Intangible assets (CONTINUED) BILEE (&)
Research and development expenditure (conTiNUED) HEREREH (1B)

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on
the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HENKBRREREERERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL TR E R (5])
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 BAETBEER(E
Intangible assets (CONTINUED) ‘B EE (B)
Intangible assets acquired separately (coNTINUED) BUIBEABEFEE (B)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets (other than goodwill)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+ALFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MEMEBRGEREEREAS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL TR ER (8)
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAEHEERER(E

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(CONTINUED)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position in include:

(a) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which are
subject an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash
equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-
term cash commitments rather than for investment or
other purposes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FENBRREHREEREARS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL FTEBCRE R (8)
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 BAGTBEER(E
Cash and cash equivalents (coNTINUED) RERBRESEEY @)

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances
and cash.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are is calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
Costs necessary to make the sale include inventory costs
directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs
which the Group must incur to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
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e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEMBRREREEREARS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL FTBURER ()
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (conTINUED) 3.2 BASHEHEER ()
Financial instruments SRTHE

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REVBHRKRENELERERS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL FTBURER (&)
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (conTINUED) 3.2 AEHPEER (&)
Financial instruments (conTiNUED) SR TE )
Financial assets SHSE
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial BB ST H S
assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are A T 1) 4 BE FE HL1% 1R S R AR 5t

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
other comprehensive income.

162 SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

S

EREENR -REBRERANRE
MONEBEARRE - R

BRRREENEEAHELMA SR
1TJ‘$/£ RAEERSEONE -

B TGRSR EERRIZAFEF AR

b2 E R E

SREETDN —EEBHE KIS L
RenABRBRORBRATRFE
&

BRGREEBINEEAHELMA AR
NAERAEERSROFE

ﬁﬁ*ﬁ‘ﬁ@%mﬂéﬁ%ﬁfﬁ?ﬁ@qZ{E“r)\Ta S&T

EENSEREREEZR - AKEEA

TTﬁf{@i’@L?ﬁ(‘ﬁﬁﬁiﬁMl s 2FIRARER
FEMERE



%
~,
N,

.,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-T-=F+-A=+-ALFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEMBRREREEREARS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL FTEBCRE R ()
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EAREERESR (E
Financial instruments (CONTINUED) SR T A (&)
Financial assets (coNTINUED) THEE (&)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (CONTINUED)

(i)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC/

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the assets revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss
will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal
of the equity investments, and will be transferred to
retained profits.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEMBRREHREEREARS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL FTEBCRE R (8)
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (conTINUED) 3.2 EAEHBERER (@)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED) @ T A (&)
Financial assets (coNTINUED) THEE (/8)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (CONTINUED)
(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI (conTiNUED)

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Dividends are included in the
“other income” line item in profit or loss.

(ifi) ~ Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured
at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is
included in the “other gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) on financial assets (including
trade and notes receivables, other receivables, consideration
receivables, amounts due from associates, short-term bank
deposits, pledged bank deposits and bank balances) which
are subject to impairment assessment under IFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-T-=F+-A=+-ALFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEMBRREREEREARS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL FTERER (8
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (conTINUED) 3.2 REFTHEER (8&)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED) LRI E(E)
Financial assets (coNTINUED) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment RS E B BB TR A 2ERI 998 27 it
assessment under IFRS 9 (conTinuep) EFFIEATAER (2)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-months ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances or credit
impaired and the remaining balances are collectively using a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. KEMKBRRGREERERS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL FTEBCRE R (8)
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (conTINUED) 3.2 BAETHRENE)
@ T A (&)

Financial instruments (COoNTINUED)

Financial assets (conTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (conTINUED)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-T-=F+-A=+-ALFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REVBHRKRENEERERS

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL FTERER (8

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (cONTINUED) 3.2 EAREEERER (@

Financial instruments (CONTINUED) LRI E(E)

Financial assets (coNTINUED) THEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment RS E B E BB TR R A 2RI 29598 2 it

assessment under IFRS 9 (conTinuep) EFFIEATAER (2)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (coNTINUED) (i) 1EEEEAIEZ N E
Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the BE Xl M EEHBILERRE
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased HEWwETAAGEEERR  AIX
significantly since initial recognition if the debt ERREFAZEESITAZEERRBE Y
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at IRHER AR S FAZ L N - £ TR
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined T —HEEIEREBEEAEEREE
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default, B NVEEARRIE  iNERATEEA
ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its RAOZEIUNBITALHEESRERT
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term Kiil) RR B R EEM A2 TFI Z B3k
and iii) adverse changes in economic and business @ (BIEMR)EIBERABITES L
conditions in the longer term may, but will not SREEEZREN - REZCERANTE
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to £ BEEBIAENRISHINEETR
fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations. The Group W AERERRIE KEERAZE
considers a debt instruments to have low credit BIEEBREERR -
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating
of “investment grade” as per globally understand
definitions.
The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of NEEFHEEAUENEERBED
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a FEE I INAAZXE 7 B - I N E E B (i
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as TEHERT @ LARERE B2 W K8
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of BHARTE R B R p e =1L ) o
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default (i) EXTE

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).
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REMBRREREERERS
FTBURE R ()

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

168

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (conTINUED) 3.2 EXREHBEKRER(E)
Financial instruments (coNTINUED) @ T A (&)
Financial assets (coNTINUED) THEE F)
Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment TG B (B TR B T AR R 952 Jh
assessment under IFRS 9 (conTinuep) EFFEATAEIR (&

(i) Definition of default (conTinuED) (i) ZEAEZEHE)
Irrespective of the above, the Group considers T EX AR REBRE  E&@mE
that default has occurred when a financial asset ESBBB0HMNIB R TEANBEEE
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group # o BRIFAREBEERERGETEHN
has reasonable and supportable information to BRBTREASENELERNE 55
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is i o
more appropriate.

(iii)  Credit-impaired financial assets (i) 1EEREZ#HEE

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-T-=F+-A=+-ALFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REVBHRKRENEERERS

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL FTERER (8

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information (conTINUED) 3.2 EASHBEER(E)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED) LRI E(E)

Financial assets (coNTINUED) THEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment RS E B E BB TR R A 2RI 29598 2 it

assessment under IFRS 9 (conTinuep) EFFIEATAER (2)

(iv)  Write-off policy (iv) MiHEE
The Group writes off a financial asset when there EAEERBRRZEHABARETBE
is information indicating that the counterparty is in £ o A3 E R UK e FRIE A AT AE R (520
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic RGEFHBRKEEABEERF (A
prospect of recovery, for example, when the BREHAELEE))  AEFESHESE
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or BE - KAREBESEBEATAERER
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, whichever % BN SR EER /AR E
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may B E R FEITR I TIER) o MishE
still be subject to enforcement activities under the BCEUBTER E M o (I H 2 U EIHNE
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal TP RERR o
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (v) TFRRIEEEIRRGTERER

The measurement of ECL is a function of the

probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the

magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and

the exposure at default. The assessment of the

probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined

with the respective risks of default occurring as the

weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in

estimating ECL on trade receivables using a provision

matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward looking information

that is available without undue cost or effort.

BEHMEREEENGTERENARME 2
HEEX (BIHBRZORERERE) &
EHRBREDRE - BRI M NZAE
BRTIRIBE S BUBETTRE - SRR
EEERMEL AR - BEMEEBENM
ot R BRI SR S B R B - E AR
EMENEEENRRMETE - AEE
R B AR R fh 5B R B2 RN TR
HEEEENRAERNERE 2 - 8
TERIBEFEBRER Wik &
SOREEERHEL AR - MBAND
TUBEKALLE T -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
E BE_ZT-_=F+_A=+—HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEMBRREHREEREARS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL TR E R (5])
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EXREIERER(E)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED) LRI E (&)
Financial assets (coNTINUED) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment RS (E S BB B TR R A 2RI 2998 Z 6
assessment under IFRS 9 (conTinuep) EFFEATAER (&)
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (conTINUED) v) FBEIEEEERTERER(E)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward looking macroeconomic
information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration of the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case

interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-T-=F+-A=+-ALFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REVBHRKRENEERERS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL FTERER (8
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (conTINUED) 3.2 REFTHEER (8&)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED) LRI E(E)
Financial assets (coNTINUED) TRHEE ()
Foreign exchange gains and losses SEW 7 K TR
The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated LINEEHER SR EERRE SRR U ZINEE
in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency F o WIRSRER R ENEIERITE o
and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting
period.
Derecognition of financial assets U BB EE

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.
On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the assets revaluation reserve will not be
reclassified to profit or loss, but transferred to retained
profits.

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
instruments in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

HHEERDR S RN OENDIE - A%
BN EBURERZEREE °

HHEEERDRSRNEOENCEIE - A%
B EBUEERZEMEE - R LHERIRE
WA EZ ZREER EZQFZEEE{EE@
UK U E RN 2 R Z RN ER o

NEER A TR E B IR AT EFT A A
PEHWEENER T ERERIEERE - R
ERZEREEERHERN R EETE
EFoEEEE - MEBARDBER -

DB B EHRA

RSB BERAET 2 EBRRATARTIIRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEMBRREHREEREARS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL FTEBCRE R (8)
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information (coNTINUED) 3.2 EXREIERER(E)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED) LRI E (&)
Financial assets (coNTINUED) LHEE &)
Equity instruments RATA

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and notes payables,
other payables, accruals and bank borrowings) are initially
measured at fair values and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign
currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end
of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and
losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the
instruments.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognised financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid or payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

4.

e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

BASE S ot BT R A5t A REE M
FERR

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the Directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties,
the Directors have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered entirely through
sale is rebutted. Accordingly, deferred taxation in relation
to the Group’s investment properties has been measured in
accordance with the general principles set out in IAS 12.
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R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (coNTINUED)

4.

BASE S ot H B K (A5t A REE MY
FERF (&)

Key Sources of estimation uncertainty
The followings are key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Valuation of investment properties

The management estimates the fair value of the investment
properties with reference to fair value determined by the
Valuer as defined in note 16 using income capitalisation
approach. In making the valuation, the Valuer used key
inputs including capitalisation rates and market rent of
similar properties. The key inputs used are intended to
reflect conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.
Where there are any changes in the key inputs used,
the estimated fair value of investment properties may be
significantly affected. As at 31 December 2023, the fair
value of investment properties is HK$640,111,000 (2022:
HK$664,865,000). Details of the valuation techniques and
key inputs used in the valuations are disclosed in note 16.

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets in handsets and
10T terminal business

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining whether
an asset is impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement
and make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether
an event has occurred or any indicators that may affect
the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the case
of value in use, the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset; and (3) the appropriate key inputs and assumptions
applied in estimating the recoverable amount in the cash
flow projection. The Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit to which the assets belong.
Changing the key inputs and assumptions, including the
budgeted sales, gross profit margin, annual and terminal
growth rates and discount rate in the cash flow projection,
could materially affect the recoverable amounts. Details
of the impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets are
disclosed in note 20.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (coNTINUED)

4.

e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

BREISTTHERATTTRESEN
FERR(E)

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an ageing analysis
at the end of the reporting period and makes allowance
for obsolete and/or slow-moving inventory items identified
that are no longer suitable for use in production or sale.
The management estimates the net realisable value for
such finished goods and raw materials primarily based on
the latest selling and purchase prices and current market
conditions. If the market condition was to deteriorate,
resulting in a lower net realisable value for such finished
goods and raw materials, additional allowances may
be required. As at 31 December 2023, the carrying
amount of inventories is approximately HK$86,323,000
(2022: HK$185,779,000). During the year ended 31
December 2023, net reversal of allowance of inventories
of HK$73,969,000 (2022: allowance of inventories of
HK$57,447,000) was charged to profit or loss.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group calculates ECL for the trade receivables. The
provision rates are based on past-due status of individual
debtors or as groupings of various debtors that have similar
loss patterns. The individual assessment and collective
assessment are based on the Group’s historical default rates
taking into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue costs
or effort. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-
looking information are considered. In addition, trade
receivables with significant balances and credit impaired
are assessed for ECL individually. The provision of ECL is
sensitive to changes in estimates. The information about the
ECL and the Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in notes
40 and 26 respectively. The net carrying amount of trade
receivables at 31 December 2023 is HK$48,623,000 (2022:
HK$73,123,000).
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R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

5. REVENUE

5. kA

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers

Segments

-}

Types of goods or services
Sale of handsets and 10T

terminals

Electronics manufacturing

services
Property rental

Total

Timing of revenue recognition

At a point in time
Over time

Total

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-Z-_=F+-A=+-HLEFE

Handsets and

10T terminals
business Property
FHEYES  management Total
HRIMER YEEEEE BEr
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET
457,480 - 457,480
33,697 - 33,697
- 52,763 52,763
491,177 52,763 543,940
457,480 N/ATE A
33,697 N/ATRiE A
491,177 N/ATE A




5. REVENUE (coNTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

5. WA ()
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-T-=F+-A=+-ALFE

(1) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers (CONTINUED)

Segments

2E

Types of goods or services

Sale of handsets and 0T terminals
Electronics manufacturing services
Property rental

Total

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time
Over time

Total

EmIREER
HETHRYBRRS
ETRERGHER
mEHE

At

WA EREE
RE—BEE
i

st

()  DTEELEHUA (B

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-Z-_—_F+-R=+—HILFE

Handsets and

|OT terminals
business Property
e N A8 management Total
ESTESS MEREER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
554,383 - 554,383
30,290 - 30,290
- 53,344 53,344
584,673 53,344 638,017
554,383 N/ATNE A
30,290 N/ATRER
584,673 N/ATNE AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

5. REVENUE (conTINUED) 5. WA (8#)
(i)  Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with (i)  DFEEFEAMA (&

customers (CONTINUED)
Geographical markets @ T 5

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-E-=Hf+=-A=+—HLHFE

Handsets and

10T terminals Property

business management

FHR L/ e

PRI 558

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

The PRC R B K B 302,480 52,763
Europe E 34,918 -
United States EE 55,094 -
Hong Kong BB 822 -
Other Asia countries HA TR 97,863 -
491,177 52,763

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HE_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HIFE

Handsets and

IOT terminals Property

business management

FH % s Y EE]

MRERIH R 558

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FH&T

The PRC Hh B A e 253,826 53,344
Europe BN 41817 =
United States XE 125,039 =
Hong Kong BE 6,982 -
Other Asia countries H b o MBIz 157,009 -
584,673 53,344
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5. REVENUE (coNTINUED)

e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+ALFE

5. WA ()

(1)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers

Sale of handsets and |OT terminals and own-branded
products manufacturing

For the sale of handsets and IOT terminals and
own-branded products manufacturing, revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to the
customer’s specific location (delivery). Following the
delivery, the customer has full discretion over the
manner of usage, distribution and price to sell the
goods, and has the primary responsibility when on
selling the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence
and loss in relation to the goods. The normal credit
term is 0-90 days upon delivery. The Group typically
receives a 30%-50% deposit before the sale of goods.

Electronics manufacturing services

The electronics manufacturing services are recognised
as a performance obligation satisfied over time as the
Group creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced. The
normal credit term is 0-15 days. The Group typically
receives a 30%-50% deposit before the sale of goods.

(i)

EFEHZBRIRIET

HE TR DBATI K BB i fERE

FRIHE FHEMBERGE R B A MR
EmME - WMAREMNEZESEER ANE
mOMEEREFHETHE (BRMN)E
R - RRMR - EFA2EREE SR
MEMATA NHEEREBEERHEEER
REBEFZEMT  WEATHEEREEN
RERBROER - EEEERR/RM
R0ZEOK » AEEBENHERMATIL
H30% £50% LS °

EFRUEIRBHER

ETRERBHERNARENEQT
REVERRATPHEBEEWAIERIRS
B FTIE I B R BER R BB R
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

5. REVENUE (coNTINUED)

5. WA GH)

(i) Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers

All sale of handsets and IOT terminals, own-
branded products manufacturing and electronics
manufacturing services, are for period of one year or
less.

(iv)  Leases

For operating lease: RS EHEE
Lease payments that are fixed ERAEERR

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
recognised HK$47,986,000 (2022: HK$49,155,000)
selling profit, being the difference between gross rental
income and direct operating expenses, as a property
lessor.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

(iii)

(iv)

PEEEFEXZH TENEENRS
1B

BEFRRMBERE - B8 QEESR
26 R E T RERGHERNHERY A
—F T -

HE
2023 2022
—E-=E —E-4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&xT BT
52,763 53,344

BE-_Z-_=F+-A=+—RHIFE "
AEE R AL ARERA7,986,00078
(=T = =4 : 49,155,000/87T) 7 $4 &
mr o BNRAERAREELCEHYT 2
F'EEJE'\]?EEE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. pEER
For the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of RERPERDERBAFGHENE  AAQA
segment performance, information reported to the executive HTES(AEBEERRE ((EEEERK
directors of the Company, being the chief operating decision D) BRENERETRARNHRENER
makers (the “CODM”"), focus on types of goods or services AR LR o
delivered or provided.
In the prior year, the Group was reorganised into two REFE  AEEEDAMENT2REEED
reportable and operating segments, being the handsets and HoOMFREMBEELOREEEAMERES
|OT terminals business and property management. 3 o
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and TRATNEBZAIZHREEESEZIRARE
results by reportable and operating segment: BT
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE_ZFE_=Ff+_F=1+—HILFE
Handsets
and 10T
terminals Property
business management Consolidated
FHR
L) E L3
HIRER HEEE =a
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Revenue A
External sales HHNHES 491,177 52,763 543,940
Segment (loss) profit S48 (E18) )& (100,851) 16,706 (84,145)
Other income and other gains N NS E T G
and losses KEE 553,857
Share of result of an associate DI —EHE R REE (3,940)
Corporate expenses NEFAX (43,856)
Finance costs BhE P AN (4,973)
Profit before taxation FR A% A& A 416,943
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED)

6.

2 FER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Revenue A
External sales HHNHE
Segment loss D EEEE
Other income and other gains and H AU A R B Uz
losses K EiE
Share of results of associates DILERE N T EE
Corporate expenses ARIFX
Finance costs REE R AR
Loss before taxation BrA7 BT ES TR

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment result represents the profit
earned or loss incurred by each segment without allocation
of interest income, unallocated exchange gain or loss, fair
value change on financial assets at FVTPL, certain other
income, corporate expenses, share of results of associates,
finance costs and taxation. This is the measure reported
to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

E_F_—Ft A=t HUFE

Handsets
and 10T
terminals Property
business management Consolidated
FHeR
i /ES
ST HEER oe)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FET
584,673 53,344 638,017
(471,227) (5,834) (477,061)
(12,051)
4,940
(10,227)
(4,916)
(499,315)

AE2EHKEED R ST BREN 3P ATt
ZAEESTBRAR - 7 EXERRE—D
BERDEMEBA « RoBCE X UK E
B BAFEFAESNEREE T ER
B HETHMKA - RRIAX - DEEE QR
B RERARBAEZERTREE 2 EHN
HEIR o WM ERDERRBFEMAEE
BERREELBREZTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements o

SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED)

REMBEREME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

2 BER (&)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segment:

At 31 December 2023

Segment assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Interest in an associate

Equity instruments at FVTOCI

Financial assets at FVTPL

Properties held for sale

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Pledged bank deposits

Short-term bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Consolidated assets
Segment liabilities

Other payables and accruals

Bank borrowings
Tax payables
Deferred tax liabilities

Consolidated liabilities

DREE

UE TN g

EREEE

Sl NSl
BAFEFARMER
Wk z AT A
BAFEFARRZ
TREE

FHEH &M

HA YRR - e K
RN FIR
EHEIPRITER
FEHERI TR
RITHEBEIRE

HaBE

DEAR

HA0 AR R
et IR
RITIEE
eI
EIEIR B E

o =
HARERE

PTHREERERE
TREFIAEFBZAIZ2HRLEENHENNE
ERBEN

R-B-_=F+=-F=+—H

Handsets
and 10T
terminals Property

business management Consolidated

FHR
YDEE 4 LE S

KimE HEEE wE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FTER FET FET

288,546 640,111 928,657

7,014

12,577

46,616

68,130

468

469

295,711

22,000

693,679

74,219

2,149,540

271,144 11,405 282,549

2,739

33,000

122,083

89,976

530,347

RAMEEBERAR —F - =FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=t—ALFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) DHEER ()
Segment assets and liabilities (CONTINUED) PBEERAEE

At 31 December 2022

Segment assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Interests in associates

Equity instruments at FVTOCI

Financial assets at FVTPL

Properties held for sale

Amounts due from associates

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Consideration receivables

Pledged bank deposits

Short-term bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Consolidated assets
Segment liabilities

Other payables and accruals

Lease liabilities

Bank borrowings

Tax payables
Deferred tax liabilities

Consolidated liabilities

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

/\*EﬁF

fiﬁﬁﬁéﬁé‘t

NN £

BATEFAEMEZE
Was 2 BRAT A

BAFETAERZ
SREE

FHEL S

LB 5 N B R IB

E@ELISZEEP Zek
SEANE /O

FEUARAE

BIIFIRITIE R

FEERIRITIE R

IRITEBRERS

AEE

SIEEE

H A FES IR
‘E.I_:_t/‘v

fﬁi*jéﬁ

RITIEE

FERTFRIR

RIERIBE R

mERE

H>

R-F——Ff+—-H=+—H

Handsets
and 10T
terminals
business
Fi Rk
PHGE A
ST
HK$'000
FAT

430,660

354,897

management

Property
Consolidated

EUES

HEE®E A
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR
812,974 1,243,634
41,580
60,818
60,056

61,376

1,602
8,093
5,772

2,767
42,374
165,846
168,122
191,814

2,053,854

9,889 364,786
3,722
6,234

240,240

33,981
96,555

745,518
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+ALFE

2 BER (&)

Segment assets and liabilities (conTINUED)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and

allocating resources between segments:

all assets are allocated to reportable and operating
segments other than certain property, plant and
equipment, certain right-of-use assets, pledged bank
deposits, short-term bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, interests in associates, equity instruments
at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, amounts due
from associates, consideration receivables and certain
other receivables, deposits and prepayments.

corporate liabilities include certain other payables,
accruals, lease liabilities, tax payables, bank
borrowings and deferred tax liabilities, and

properties held for sale are unallocated since property
development is no longer classify as reportable
segment.

PTREEREE(E)
REBDBRARESESBEIEER -

s KBETHE BERRE HTERE
BE CDHEARTENR  EHRTHE

Ko RITEHRRRE  RBERRZE
@ MAFEF AR MRS 2 A
TH RAVEFABRZEBEE
FEAR B 2 N B IR R BARET
HMEUWERR - e RIS - F
BEEANKEA MR EENE

s DHEBRESEETHEMEMNER - B
IR HERE  BNABIEA - RITEE
MERBIRAE &

s HNVEREBERIBRER/AZHOE
BRHEHEMERT R

RAMEEBERAR —F - =FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED)

6. ZEER (&)

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Amounts included in the measure of
segment profit or loss or segment
assets:

Additions of property, plant and
equipment

Additions of right-of-use assets

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Written-off of trade receivables

Impairment loss on consideration
receivables

Impairment loss on goodwill

Net reversal of allowance of
inventories

Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Decrease in fair value of investment
properties

HENRRRADHEE

BREEHR

REME - BELRE

REFEREEE
nE  BERREZNE

EREEERE
BVEESE
MK E SRR
PR B 2R ERE

BRREREE
FREGREFE

HEME - BE KR
a6
RENERATERD
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HtnpEER
BE_ZE_=Ff+_F=1+—HILFE

Handsets
and 10T
terminals
business
FHK
PR AR
FE
HK$'000
TR

7,732

20,756
4,190
411
1,804

31,908
2,282

(73,969)

934

Property
management

L/ES
HEEE
HK$’000

TER

16,000

Unallocated

ROB
HK$'000
TER

920

165

Consolidated

me
HK$’'000
FTER

7,732
920

20,921
4,190
411
1,804

31,908
2,282

(73,969)

934

16,000




6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

6. DEERF

Other segment information (conTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Amounts included in the measure of
segment profit or loss or segment
assets:

Additions of property, plant and
equipment

Additions of right-of-use assets

Additions of intangible assets

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Impairment losses on property, plant
and equipment

Impairment losses on right-of-use
assets

Impairment losses on intangible
assets

Impairment losses on trade
receivables

Impairment losses on other
receivables

Impairment losses on amounts due
from associates

Impairment losses on consideration
receivables

Allowance of inventories

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Decrease in fair value of investment
properties

EENERGEN N EEE

BREER

REWE - BENRE

NEFREEE
NERVAE
nE - BERREINE

EREEERE
EBVEESE

NE - BERRERE
E#E
EREEERERR

EVBERERR

JERE BRRZRME
E#E
Hit B IAZ RERBE

FENEE R R IARE
E#E
ERREZRERBE

FEEB
HEWE - B kR
BB
RENERTFERD

Hibp@ER (&)
B —F——Ff+—_A=+—HIFFZ

Handsets
and 10T
terminals Property

business  management Unallocated  Consolidated

FHRk

WE /ES

BRI ETS HEEE ool Ny
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FAET TAT FAET
53,818 - - 53,818
9,345 - 46,615 55,960
7,756 - - 7,756
21,834 - - 21,834
9,835 - 157 9,992
45,127 - - 45,127
53,839 - - 53,839
6,056 - - 6,056
17,918 - - 17,918
13,241 - - 13,241
4,441 - - 4,441
_ = 16,499 16,499
1,111 - - 1,111
57,447 - - 57,447
1,977 - - 1,977
- 37,422 - 37,422

RAMEEBERAR —F - =FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED) DEER (8
Geographical information hEER

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC and Hong
Kong.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of the
customers. Information about the Group’s non-current assets
is presented based on the geographical location of the assets.

AEBRPEARERBEBEEE -

ERAKEREINIEP ZBATIRERERZ
W27 - BEAKEFRBEENERTIR
BEEMEMIBMELZS -

Revenue from external customers Non-current assets
Year ended Year ended
REIMBEE ZWA FEREEE
BETIFE BETIEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E=F = —E-=F - F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT FERT FHT
The PRC BN 355,243 307,170 760,943 874,689
Europe BOM 34,918 41,817 - =
United States ESE 55,094 125,039 - =
Hong Kong B 822 6,982 62 211
Other Asian Countries EHAb T MBI 97,863 157,009 - =
543,940 638,017 761,005 874,900
Note: HisF -

Non-current assets excluded equity instruments at FVTOCI and
consideration receivables.
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OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

HWA -~ WasRER

Other income:

Refund of Value Added Tax (“VAT")
(note i)

Government grants (note ii)

Interest income earned on bank
balances

Interest income earned on consideration
and other receivables

Dividend income from an associate and
financial assets at FVTOCI

Dividend income from financial assets at
FVTPL
Others

Other gains and losses:

Gain on land resumption
(as defined in note 12)

Written-off of trade and other payables
(note iii)

Gain (loss) on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Gain arising on early termination
of lease contracts

Changes in fair values of
investment properties

Impairment losses on property held for
sale

Impairment losses on goodwill

Impairment losses on interest in an
associate

Loss on disposal of interest in an
associate

Net foreign exchange (loss) gain

Written-off of trade receivables

Fair value change on financial assets
at FVTPL

HAA -

BER (EER]) B
(Biati)

BRAFIE B WA (B ain)

SRITAERRBREZ 7 B WA

REREMRUIERIZ
BT N

KB SRR RIRAFEA
Hip2m e & EEMRS
WA
BRAFEFABENSHEEL
B BIA

Hitp

Hitl s 2 518
Yo Bl + 42 Yo
(E& AMEL2)
HEH e N B 2 BRR L M 5K IR
(Baii)
HEME - BERREZ
Yz (&5H8)
RERIEEAMELE 2 W

BEMEATFER

FHEHEME 2 RERE

P ERE R
BN RS E RS

H

I

IS /NG P £l |

FE 3¢ (5 18) e 2 %4

B SRR

ATET BN S MEE
ATEED

2023 2022
—E=HF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT BT
3,015 1,612
20,322 13,638
22,232 10,970
1,700 3,346
7,157 =

- 327

2,673 581
57,099 30,474
537,816 _
3,511 8,057
934 (1,977)

- 229
(16,000) (37,422)
(7,142) -
(2,282) =
(3,342) -
(1,581) =
(29) 5,044
(1,804) -
(1,134) (2,550)
508,947 (28,619)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

7.0THER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HBWA - WEFEREIE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Notes: Bt -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Shanghai Simcom Limited (“Shanghai Simcom”) was engaged
in the business of distribution of self-developed and produced
software and the development of automated test equipment and
software. Under the current PRC tax regulation, they were entitled
to a refund of VAT paid for sales of self-developed and produced
software and the development of automated test software in the
PRC in 2023 and 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the amount
represents unconditional government grants of HK$2,816,000
and HK$7,565,000 (2022: HK$3,072,000 and nil), which was
granted to encourage the Group’s research and development
activities and subsidies for investment in local region in the
PRC. In addition, the Group has received conditional incentive
payments of HK$9,941,000 (2022: HK$10,494,000) from the
local government in the PRC and the amounts were fully credited
to profit or loss upon the fulfillment of conditions.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised
government grants of HK$72,000 in respect of Covid-19 related
subsidy that related to Employment Support provided by the Hong

Kong Government.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has
written off trade and other payables of HK$3,511,000 (2022:
HK$8,057,000). The trade and other payable accounts had no
movement over the last three years and no repayment request
received on such liabilities from creditors. The management
considered the creditors had forfeited the right of collecting the
relevant liabilities.
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0}

(ii)

(iii)

FHREESEM (LR ARAR (T LEREE]D
REDHATRBEREEZHMSE - URFAEAE
{EIRBIRRME - REBEFBEIRTZHEEAR R=F
CEER R _FETEMEEETRERE
EZ®MF - URFEEASCRARBEHN S
BERAZEERM -

HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—HIFE It
SREEEGMABFEEB YWA2,816,000/8 T &
7,565,000 T (ZZE = =4 : 3,072,000 7T &
) DRABEASERTENHEESRER
BHIRAEMEMEL o i ARECATE
B UL IR AT 22 £9,941,0008 L (= F
Z % :10,494,000/87T) - A BITAE NG
MHEERIEE B A B -

HE-_T-_—F+-A=1+—HILEFE A5
MEBEBBUT ARG 2 R 3t 5T 2#9 Covid- 194878
FEREFESR I IE B WA 72,0007 7T ©

BE_T_=F+-A=+—-BILFE x58
EHH e B B RR R E b 5RI83,511,000/8 7T
(ZZF =% : 8,057,000 7T) - ZFENEHK
REEMKANBE=FALRED) - EEAT
BEREEZSAE EEERRERABRK
YRR R AR o
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IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER
EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET
OF REVERSAL

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-T-=F+-A=+-ALFE

8. FHEEEHEEXNZBRES

15 HIRREE

Impairment losses (reversed) BT B IBEERIRE

recognised on: B8 (B m) -
— Trade receivables —EE F R
— Other receivables — H U AR X

— Amounts due from associates
(note 1) (Hia#1)
— Consideration receivables (note 2) — FEURRAB (F1712)

Notes:

(1) Included in the reversed impairment loss recognised on amounts
due from associates is an amount of HK$10,604,000, which
was fully impaired in prior year, represented the settlement of
consideration in the share transfer agreement with Shanghai
Zhenkang Electronics Limited (“Shanghai Zhenkang”) as
disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

(2) As at 31 December 2023, amount of HK$31,908,000 was past
due as at the reporting date and was considered as in default.
With reference to the overdue and settlement records and
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information provided
by the debtor, the directors of the Company considered the
amount as credit-impaired and was fully impaired during the year.

Details of the impairment losses under expected credit loss
model, net of reversal are set out in note 40.

FINANCE COSTS

— FE Mk & R R FOR

2023 2022
—E-=5F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THT
(1,845) 13,241
(806) 4,441
(11,650) 16,499
31,908 1,111
17,607 35,292

Bt

(1) EEREKREZLQFSEEINHEBRED
10,604,000/8 7T (EEFEREURME) « B & BT
BRME2MER FBRFETFARAR ([ L
BER]) R ERE G HETRRE -

(2) HE_Z-_=F+"A=+—H RBEHEEA
B HRAR R IR A2 FE /R31,908,0008 7T ° RIZ
WK AEERSEAREBARBSIE R
RIEIEEY  ARRAIEERABREHELRE
BRfE - TN FREEETERE ©

TEREEEEBER T ZRERSE Nk ER) &
BEAKIEE40 o

BE KA

RITIEER,
HERER

Interests on bank borrowings
Interests on lease liabilities

&h
&

[
[

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER THT
4,736 4,400
237 516
4,973 4916

RAMEEBERAR —F - =FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z_=F+-_A=t+—HLFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 10. £ EEHITEREEMSE
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments EEREEHITENS
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, RIEE A _ ETR R R EER RO FT#HE 2 4
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong FREEZREERTEZHENT :

Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HEZBCZFTZB=t+-RALEE

Retirement
benefits
Directors' Salaries and Share award scheme Total
fees allowances Bonus scheme contributions emoluments
i BAEA
Ezhe HeREy 4 REHE TR ame
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Thn Thn Tén Tén Tén
(Note ;)
7]
Executive Directors HES
Ms. Yeung Man Ying E - 718 - 6,275 - 6,993
Mr. Wong Cho Tung THRLE - 1,387 - 6,274 - 7,661
. Liu Jun (Note i) Bk Wit) - 568 11 - 118 697
Mr. Zhu Wenhui KXBLE - 477 85 - 161 723
Wr. Zhu Qi (Vo ) RERE W) - 180 - - 41 21
Subtotal 5t - 3,330 9% 12,549 320 16,295
The executive Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments FRSITEER AT EMS T EWRY A
shown above were mainly for the management of the affairs NEIRAEBERY S o
of the Company and the Group.
Non-executive Director HrEE
Mr. Wong Hei, Simon IERE 156 - - - - 156
Independent non-executive Directors  BUF&178%
Mr. Liu Hing Hung BRIEEE 156 - - - - 156
Mr. Wu Zhe REKE 156 - - - - 156
Mr. Li Minbo TR 156 - - - - 156
Subotal 5t 468 - - - - 468
The non-executive director’'s and independent non-executive R TEEREIERTEE I e E
directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their BN EREAARES -
services as directors of the Company.
Total &t 624 3,330 % 12,549 320 16,919
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (conTINUED)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+ALFE

10. Eiﬁ - BHEITEREEME
IIE

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (coNTINUED)

ESREFIITEME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
E-B-CE+-A=t-HILEE

Retirement
benefits
Directors’ Salaries and Share-based scheme Total
fees allowances Bonus payments contributions emoluments
RN
£k N Tt WRARE HEIfE aMe
HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Thr Thr Thr Th Th ThL
(Note )
Wizt
Executive Directors YES
Ms. Yeung Man Ying mERt = 690 = = - 690
Mr. Wong Cho Tung THREE - 1380 - - = 1380
Mr. Liu Jun e - 828 2% - 155 1,279
Mr. Zhu Wenhui RXELE - 493 116 - 157 766
Mr. Gao Jun (Note i) RS Widi) - 1,168 - - 128 1,29%
Suboa st - 1559 112 - 10 5411
The executive Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments LB TEEREENTENEEZ@NE A
shown above were mainly for the management of the affairs NARAEEEHK ER -
of the Company and the Group.
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Wong Hei, Simon By 15 - - - - 15
Independent non-executive Directors B F1(TEZS
Mr. Liu Hing Hung BRIETE 156 - - - - 15
Mr. Wu Zhe RERE 156 - - - - 156
Mr. Li Minbo ZERTE 156 - - - - 156
Sub-fotal 1t 468 - - - - 468

The non-executive director’'s and independent non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their

services as directors of the Company.

Total a5t 624

BRI ITESRBYFRITESCHEEE
EARREEEARBES °

4559 412 = 440 6,03
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R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (coNTINUED)

10.

EX - BRITEREEMS
(#&)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (CoNTINUED)
Notes:

(i) Incentive performance bonus for the year was determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance and
duties of directors and the Group’s operating results.

(i) Resigned as executive director with effect from 28 September
2023.

(iii) Resigned as executive director and chief executive officer with

effect from 30 September 2022.

(iv) Appointed as executive director with effect from 28 September

2023.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included two (2022: two)
directors for the year ended 31 December 2023, whose
emoluments are included in the above. The emoluments of
the remaining three (2022: three) individuals are as follows:

¥ KEah
TEAT
RREFIFTEI R

Salaries and allowances

Bonus

Retirement benefits scheme
contributions

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

1,000,001 752 1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001 722,000,000 7T

ESREFRIITEME ()
Bt

0] FERARMEATHTFHNZEGLEFESL
RADBEARAEE Z QEREMERE °

(i) RIB=FAA-TN\BBERTES-

i) W=B-—FAA=+ABREHTEERERN
7 -
(v R=F-ZFAA=+\ABEAWTES -

EEMS

HE-FT-_=F+-A=+—HLEFE &
ZERETMALBERE(CE__F  WA)
EE HEMESERLEXBEE - T =% (=2

ZZF ZR)ATZMEenT ¢
2023 2022
—E=F —TE-—fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHT
2,532 2,726
567 1,005
356 439
3,455 4,170
%% 2 & A TS E:
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAH EE A
1
2 2
- 1




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (conTINUED)

e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

10. Eiﬁ - BHEITEREEME
IIE

Employees’ emoluments (CONTINUED)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments for both years.

11. TAXATION

EEME (F)

AEE  AEBVRAEFNEERARRH
A X EAE - (FRBERFENALRE
EESESNPN LSO E S RN ARSI
1B REREBEE - RMEFEHEESZN
ZXFABREEAME -

Taxation comprises: BIEEE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”)
Overprovision in prior years

NEFE B

PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”)

Deferred tax charge (note 21)
REEHIE

Taxation for the year

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for
both years as the Group has no assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong.

EIT is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant
districts of the PRC and taking relevant tax incentives into
account. Shanghai Sunrise Simcom Limited (“Shanghai
Sunrise Simcom”) and Shanghai Simcom are classified as
New and High Technology Enterprise and are entitled to
adopt a tax rate of 15%. The relevant annual tax rate used
for PRC EIT for the Group’s subsidiaries ranged from 15% to
25% (2022: 15% to 25%).

PRI EMER ((REMEHRD

o B IR (AR ([ L3R ER )
ERETRIRF S (Hf7221)

11. FiE
2023 2022
—E-=5F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET BT
6,879 109
(3,783) (1,517)
3,096 (1,408)
70,805 -
9,868 9,915
83,769 8,507

HMAREFE L BB SRS -

EEMESBERF RIEEATKEERR - EPEAE
BtE 2 BTHERTE - EERERIIRE
REERAR([ EERERBE]) K HEFHE
BEFASMBITEE] - WHERA1I5%M
K - REBWBARFAZPBECEMER
HEAEERENF15%E25% 2 (—E -~
£ 15%%F25%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e | RABRENE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

11. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 11. Bi1E (48)

Under the Provisional Regulations of LAT ({fZE A R
FNE 1 32 (E T E1TI5641)) effective on 1 January 1994,
and the Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on LAT ({FRZE A R L1 4 b 14
BEFREITIEGIEEAR)) effective from 27 January 1995,
all income from the sale or transfer of state-owned land use
rights, buildings and their attached facilities in the PRC is
subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%
of the appreciation value, being the proceeds of sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including borrowing

BRE-NANAEF—A-BRERHC(FEAR
HMBE LB ERETIERSD - AR—ANE
FoAtTEHBEERN(REARKNE L
HWIZEREITIROIBRADRD - HEREEE
B - ZEYNEMBRIETSEE
WA - BIRTHERE T F30% 2 60% B9 #E R
KL BED - THEREER L EWERS
RERAHRFEY - BE-_ETOF—-A—H
BREETEMEMSREABNEERS - £
R A R ) B AT -

costs, land costs and property development expenditures in
relation to the gains arising from sales of properties in the
PRC effective from 1 January 2004.

The tax (charge) credit for the year can be reconciled to the
profit (loss) before taxation per the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as follows:

AEEHEFEX) BeE2Ra BaERTARZ
BRI AR A (B HR) AR T

2023 2022
—E-=F T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Profit (loss) before taxation BB AR T (B518) 416,943 (499,315)
Taxation at the PRC income tax LR BT SEE X 25%
rate of 25% (2022: 25%) (ZZE——F : 25%):tE 25| 104,236 (124,829)
Tax effect of share of results DI E N R ERE LT E
of associates 985 (1,235)
Tax effect of expenses not NI 2 FZ 2 RS2
deductible for tax purpose 37,733 13,188
Tax effect of income not taxable BARB WA Z B2
for tax purpose (74,400) (12,211)
Tax effect of super deduction R RIS & (Hit)
for research and development
expenses (Note) (16,054) (33,380)
Overprovision in prior years DA FEBRE R (3,783) (1,517)
Provision for LAT for the year FN TR ER S 70,805 =
Tax effect of LAT deductible for AIHRR B S H R T H IR E R A
PRC EIT msE (17,701) -
Tax effect of tax losses not RERHISETE 2 B &
recognised 38,380 68,018
Utilisation of tax losses previously )BT R R IS EE
not recognised (1,397) (413)
Tax effect of deductible temporary ~ ARFERAI IR LB EZ7E 2 FS &
differences not recognised 17,372 76,673
Income tax on concessionary rate BEERERGTE 2SR (72,407) 24,213
Tax charge for the year ANEEFHIERY 83,769 8,507

Note: In PRC, the State Administration of Taxation has implemented At EPE - BRFHEEEE BRIk
the policies for weighted deduction of research and development BR - BERAERL I ZH70%ZE100% 0%
expenses. Qualified research and development expenditures are TEHIRE ©
eligible for 70% to 100% tax deduction.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. DISPOSAL OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS/

ASSETS HELD FOR DISPOSAL

e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

2. %’%#ﬁiﬂﬁé/iﬁ%ﬂftﬂ%Zﬁ

In July 2023, Shanghai Sunrise Simcom Limited (“SH
Sunrise”), a subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a land resumption agreement (“Agreement”) with the
PRC Government in respect of the resumption (“Land
Resumption”) of the land use rights of the piece of land
owned by it in Qingpu, Shanghai together with all buildings,
structures, and attachments thereat. Pursuant to the
Agreement, the compensation payable to SH Sunrise for the
Land Resumption comprises of three parts. The first part
and second part are compensation of RMB374,435,165 and
RMB255,919,316, respectively. The third part is an incentive
for SH Sunrise to relocate on schedule. If SH Sunrise and all
the tenants complete the relocation within 180 days after the
effective date of the Agreement, SH Sunrise is awarded an
additional incentive of RMB118,470,547.

The Land Resumption was completed in November 2023.
The gain on the Land Resumption of HK$537,816,000,
after netting off of HK$296,375,000 disposed assets, related
expenses and compensation to tenants, was recorded in
“other gains and losses” of the Group during the year.

The aforesaid three parts of compensation in
aggregate amount to RMB748,825,028 (equivalent to
HK$834,191,000) which were fully settled by the PRC
Government in February 2024.

RZBZ=F+A  ARAFANMEBRARLER
MAMBREFRRERAR ([ LERE]) Hh
BT 2T Wb it ([ tha)) - AR BRI
B ([ m 3 ) B B8 EmE e —3R i
ZTEREERMA LEREEY BEY R
Y - RigZ M - HRE RN T LS
REZEESEBRE=8n - F—HORE=
Bz BESRED B A ARE374,435,1657T
R AR¥255,919,3167T - F=8pH R/ LBE
HIZR B LA RE) - M EBRERZ AT
BHEFEZBZEERILI0E NEKIRE « Bl
LERERESHEINEIRARY118,470,547
5T o

EI+HER T = =F+— A5%K - {IBRE
HEEE - MRS RHEFEE296,375,000
BITE - B iR U EE537,816,000/8 T E,
RERNFIARE B [ E bl REE]

LA E=TE@EE £ A AREET748,825,0287T (16
E1834,191,00087T) * RZZE-_WMF_AE
ERBRBFEEE -
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R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z_=F+-_A=t+—HLFE

12. DISPOSAL OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS/

12. HEFRBEERIFFEHEZE

ASSETS HELD FOR DISPOSAL
(CONTINUED)

E (&

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the directors of
the Company received information on expropriation relating
to the location of its Shanghai factory. The official notice of
house expropriation and compensation work to SH Sunrise
was issued to the Group in February 2023. The assets
attributable to the factory, which were expected to be sold
within twelve months, had been classified as assets held for
disposal and were presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position (see below). The property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets were included
in the Group’s handsets and 10T terminal business and
investment properties are included in property management
business for segment reporting purposes. The net proceeds
of disposal were expected to exceed the net carrying amount
of the relevant assets and liabilities and accordingly, no
impairment loss had been recognised.

The major classes of assets of the factory classified as held
for disposal are as follows:

HE_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE A1
REEREEEE DEREHINBABER -
RZZEZ=F"f  LERECEZEEFIFE
B B (B TAEBAN - ZRE FE(REE - TR
BET_EAARNEL  EXEARELEZ
BE  URREMBRAKR (R TOFERS
P o MAEE2ME M - WE - BB REREAKL
FREEET AREEZ TR B ARIRZE
% MIREMFEBFTAMEEIRER - HEM
SHRIBFREE BREEEERAEZREA
SFE - F I EERREEE o

ZBEABAELEZ T EEERRINT

2022
—E-C—F
HK$’000
FET

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment properties

Total assets classified as held for disposal

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

Y% - B R 50,693
FREEE 4,153
AW 148,109

DERFHEHEZEERE 202,955
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-T-=F+-A=+-ALFE

13. RFEaA (5i8)

Profit (loss) for the year has been arrived
at after charging (crediting):

Auditor's remuneration
— Audit services
— Non-audit services

Amortisation of intangible assets
(included in cost of sales and services)
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories

Impairment losses recognised on property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets included in
— cost of sales and services
— administrative expenses

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories

AR (B510) 2 9%
CIVSE

ZEREM N &
—FE TR
— IR RIS

BRVEESEGIARER
ARTSRCA)
o BEEAMENEER

SARTEERDE - BE &
wiE  EREEENETLEE
HERZRERR
— SHERA NIRRT
—fTBREx

W% BERRBTE

o BEMENEE

2023 2022
—E-=8 —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
2,370 2,200
1,040 450
3,410 2,650
411 45,127
(411) (45,127)

- 17,918

- 59,895

- 77,813

20,921 21,834
(12,282) (14,239)
8,639 7,595

RAMEEBERAR —F - =FFH
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/%- | RARBEEN

For the year ended 31 December 2023

2 ME-F-=FT-ASt-BLAER
13. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 13. 2 EnA (F1R) (&)

(CONTINUED)

2023 2022
—E-=H —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESENE 4,190 9,992
Net (reversal of) allowance of inventories FE (BRE)##E T8
(included in cost of sales and services) GT ASHE R ARTEAA) (73,969) 57,447
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense TR AFX 2 FEMKZ
(included in cost of sales and services) Gt AHE MRS A) 413,864 628,000
Staff costs: BTHA :
Directors’ emoluments (note 10) BEME Haz10) 16,919 6,035
Other staff costs H8 TR
— Salaries and other benefits —TEREMEF 145,131 279,317
— Retirement benefits scheme —RIRIEFF B B
contributions 27,037 63,297
189,087 348,649
Less: Amount capitalised in development B BEEREHFAERA
costs - (3,035)
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories W BERNMEMEERE (37,166) (34,495)
151,921 311,119
Gross rental income from investment KREYFEBHRS A
properties (52,763) (53,344)
Less: direct operating expenses incurred for i : 1B v EEEK LR
investment properties 4,777 4,189
(47,986) (49,155)
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e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

14. DIVIDENDS 14. RE
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a special RMEBEERE  NEBESERREE
dividend of HK4 cents per ordinary share, in an aggregate RIR% B A% I AR 47811l - & ££85,700,00078
amount of HK$85.7 million has been proposed by the JC °
directors of the Group.
The directors do not recommend the payment of a final EEW T EBHEREE S _=FN T
dividend for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. +ZA=+—RHLEFERNRPKE -

15. EARNING (LOSS) PER SHARE 15. BRREF (&18)

The calculation of the basic and diluted earning (loss) per

share attributable to the owners of the Company is based on
the following data:

ARBREEANBIESREAREERT (B1R)

Earning (loss) figures are calculated as Z 7| (B#8) B=:&mT :

follows:

Earning (loss) for the purposes of basic
and diluted earning (loss) per share

Z &8r (EHR)

RDEE

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic and
diluted earning (loss) per share

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic earning (loss) per share has been adjusted
for the impact of shares repurchased by the Company and
shares held by the trust under the share award scheme (note
37) of the Company which was terminated on 13 March
2024.

No separate diluted earning (loss) per share information has
been presented as no potential ordinary shares were issued
for both years.

BREALEE AT (BR)

AR ESRERREERT (BB 8
TR EF8E

THIZA N8B TE ¢
2023 2022
—E-=5F T F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
344,285 (509,453)
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
’000 '000
F A% T i
2,142,497 2,192,057

RARFTESRERRN (BR) 05 BAinEF
BEEERARAREE RO KRR 12
BEt 2 M ERFANRD 2 EERE (T
37)  ZEER T —WFE=A+=RA#&L -

RN M EFESRBRETEMEBEL AR
I B 25 SRR EER N (B1R) B -

RAMEEBERAR —F - =FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16. REW*

HK$'000
FAET
FAIR VALUE A¥E
At 1 January 2022 R-E-——F—H—H 793,755
Transfers from property, plant and EREYE  BE KRG
equipment 75,559
Transfer from right-of-use assets (8= @ﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁ 57,888
Decrease in fair value recognised in RiBRER 2 A F{ER
profit or loss (37,422)
Reclassified as held for disposal BB ARBIELEE (148,109)
Exchange differences [ERZ=R (76,806)
At 31 December 2022 WZEZZF+=ZA=+—H 664,865
Transfers from property, plant and EEREAME - BENERE
equipment 2,258
Transfer from right-of-use assets HERMRAEEE 713
Decrease in fair value recognised in RIBRER < A ERD
profit or loss (16,000)
Exchange differences ER=H (11,725)
At 31 December 2023 R-ZE_=F+_H=+—H 640,111
Unrealised loss on property valuation R-ZT = =Fit AlEs=
included in profit or loss in 2023 REIB Y ERE (16,000)
Unrealised loss on property valuation i — =t NG = For
included in profit or loss in 2022 REIBYEHEEE (37,422)

The Group’s investment properties are held under medium
term leases in the PRC.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at
the respective dates of transfer from property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets during the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2023 (with details as set out below)
have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on that date by HG Appraisal & Consulting Limited
engaged by the Company (the “Valuer”), independent
qualified professional valuer not related to the Group. The
chief financial officer of the Group works closely with the
Valuer to establish and determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and key inputs.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

AEBMUNTBEZ ZREMERIREH BEOR
5o

BE_B_—FR-FB-_=Ft+-A=+—H
IEEE FBRHIMT)  AEERESHREE
BEREYE  BERRBAREREEEZ
BREWME A FEDREAR AR EAEE
ﬂﬁ@Z%I B EEER G R ERA
AR (MEER D RZBETZMEMSE °
KE@W%@EEE@%% VE1E - AR &
EEAENMERT M EARE AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cCONTINUED)

e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

16. REW* ()

During the year, property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets fair valued at HK$2,258,000 and HK$713,000
(2022: HK$75,559,000 and HK$57,888,000), respectively
were transferred to investment properties upon change in
use of certain properties. The management considered
the end of owner-occupation when the Group entered into
various operating leases with external third parties or when
the properties are vacant but are held to be leased out under
operating leases. The management assessed the fair value
of these investment properties which are determined based
on valuations performed by the Valuer. The valuations are
carried out on the respective dates of transfer, by using
income capitalisation approach, which was arrived at by
reference to the key inputs, including the capitalisation rates
and market rent of similar properties.

The fair values of investment properties as at 31 December
2022 and 2023 were determined based on the income
capitalisation approach, where the market rentals of all
lettable units of the properties are assessed and discounted
at the market yield expected by investors for this type of
properties. The market rentals are assessed based on
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms
of existing lease and the market rentals of the similar
properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation rates are
determined by reference to the yields derived from analysing
the sales transactions of similar commercial and industrial
properties in Shanghai and Shenyang adjusted to take into
account the market expectation from property investors to
reflect factors specific to the Group’s investment properties.
There has been no change from the valuation technique used
in the prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

RAFE - RFESHA2,258,0004 7T K&
713,000/ 7T (ZZ = =4 : 75,559,000/ T &%
57,888,000/8 7T) 2 W% - B/E M E A KE
RAEEERE TYEZREAEHMEREIRE
YE c EARSEEIINSE=FEI L ZELEM
EdFE=EERBLEHERA LR -
AIEEERAETHHEEER - BEEEY
ERNEERFTETHEMEE 2 &SRB
N EETMN - BRAGENSHBEEERH
KRR AB A LEETT - ZIGEE2E MRS
AR (BIEENMCERFEYME 2 THEE)
1S -

REMENR T __FR-ZZE=_=F+=A
=+ —RAZATFETIBBRRAERMLEEE -
Bt - 2 EMENRARILESEN 2 mi5HE
© - WIRRE & E IRV ¥ FrTa A 2 5 B
KA - MBEE HIRBA TR KRE &R
& - WAIR B E R B M a2 2 misH
SIEXHF - ERERRZEDT L8 REER
HIHYEEERFIBHZBEERET - &
BLGTAMEREENTSER - UREAS
EREMENRTEEE - HERTHEBATFE
FTERAEAER -

A2 AR - M2 RE R
RARE AR -
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R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (coNTINUED) 16.

BREY= (H)

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable input

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in
the determination of fair values for investment properties and
unobservable inputs used in the valuation models.

As at 31 December 2023

Fair value Valuation
Hierarchy techniques Fair value Unobservable inputs
APERE RERD AVE TURERAHE
HK$'000
TET

Investment properties in Shanghai - Commercial

REBZRENE-BX

Level 3 Income capitalisation 497,200 (i) Capitalisation rate
F=K approach (i) BRI R
WABRLE

(ii) Market rent
(i) 5

Investment properties in Shenyang — Commercial

WEG 2 RENE-BX

Level 3 Income capitalisation 12,902 (i) Capitalisation rate
E=H approach (i) BA(L =
WABRLE

(ii) Market rent
(i) Ti5HE

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

EREATTHRGARMBETAVENEZ

TRETEEREMERTEMA 2 AERT
RIGERAFAZ TN BRHAZRE -

R-BZ=%+-A=+—H

Range of
unobservable inputs
FUBRE
BABEEE

5.0% -6.0%

RMB1.40 - RMB14.98
per month
per square meter
BREYAK
AR#1.40E
AR#14987C

5.5% -6.0%

RMBO0.85 - RMB1.20
per month
per square meter
SABTI,
ARMOS5TE
AR#1.207T

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
TABERAYE
HATEZBE

A slight increase in the
capitalisation rate would result
in a significant decrease in fair
value, and vice versa.

B RMBHIES - 2EHA
TENAERE - R -

A significant increase in the
market rent would result in a
significant increase in fair value,
and vice versa.

TEHERNAREN  2BHA
TEMAREN - RZIMA

A slight increase in the
capitalisation rate would result
in a significant decrease in fair
value, and vice versa.

B RMBHES - 2EHA
TEANABRE - R -

A significant increase in the
market rent would result in a
significant increase in fair value,
and vice versa.

TEHERAREN  2BHA
TEMAREN - RZIMA
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cCONTINUED) 16.

e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

BREY= ()

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable input (CONTINUED)
As at 31 December 2023 (cONTINUED)

Fair value Valuation
Hierarchy techniques Fair value Unobservable inputs
AVERE fEERID AYE TURZRAEE
HK$'000
TAT

Investment properties in Shenyang - Industrial

REGZREME-T%

Level 3 Income capitalisation 130,009 (i) Capitalisation rate
=/ approach (i) BRfp =
WAER(E

(i) Market rent
(i) 5 E

FRAEATTEERARBETAFENEZ
= 16))
R-BE-_=F+-A=+—H @)

Range of Relationship of unobservable
unobservable inputs inputs to fair value

TABR TABERAEE
BABEEE HATEZBE

5.5% -6.0% A'slight increase in the

capitalisation rate would result
in a significant decrease in fair
value, and vice versa.
B RMEGULES - @8HA
FENAERE - k2R
RMB0.31-RMB0.97 A significant increase in the

per month market rent would result in a
per square meter significant increase in fair value,
BRABEHK and vice versa.
ARKEO3ILE TISHEHAREN - 2R
ARK0.97T TESARIEN - RZIA
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z_=F+-_A=t+—HLFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (coNTINUED) 16. REW=E (&)
Information about fair value measurements using significant FHEATTBRRGARIBETATEFEZ
unobservable input (CONTINUED) B (')
As at 31 December 2022 RZZE_—F+=-HA=+—H
Fair value Valuation Range of Relationship of unobservable
Hierarchy techniques Fair value Unobservable inputs  unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
FABE TABERAEE

AVERE BRI AYE TUREZRAEE BAEEE HATEZBR

HK$'000

TAT

Investment properties in Shanghai - Commercial

REBZREME-B%

Level 3 Income capitalisation 520,240
E=H approach
WABREE

Investment properties in Shenyang - Commercial

REGZREME-HX

Level 3 Income capitalisation 13,440
E=H approach
WABRLE

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

(i) Capitalisation rate

() B %

(ii) Market rent
(i misHEE

(i) Capitalisation rate

(i) ER{L®

(ii) Market rent
(i) mHHE

4.5% -6.0%

RMB3.50 - RMB15.00
per month
per square meter
SAETHX
AR®350LE
AR®15.007T

4.0%

RMBO0.85 - RMB1.20
per month
per square meter
SAETHX
AR®0.85E
AR®1.20T

A slight increase in the
capitalisation rate would result
in a significant decrease in fair
value, and vice versa.

BEAMEEMENES  8HA
TESABRE - RZIA

A significant increase in the
market rent would result in a
significant increase in fair value,
and vice versa.

s SAAREN  88HR
TESABEN - RZIA

Aslight increase in the
capitalisation rate would result
in a significant decrease in fair
value, and vice versa.

BEAMEERMEGEE  88HA
TESABRE - RZIA

A significant increase in the
market rent would result in a
significant increase in fair value,
and vice versa.

s AAREN  88HA
TESABEN - RZIA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cCONTINUED) 16.

e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

BREY= ()

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable input (CONTINUED)
As at 31 December 2022 (CONTINUED)

Fair value Valuation
Hierarchy techniques Fair value Unobservable inputs
AVERE fEERID AYE TURZRAEE
HK$'000
TAT

Investment properties in Shenyang - Industrial

REGZREME-T%

Level 3 Income capitalisation 131,185 (i) Capitalisation rate
E=H approach (i) EAfL =
WAER(LE

(i) Market rent
(i) 5L

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are classified
and accounted for as investment properties.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group did not
pledged investment properties to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group.

FAEATTERGARBETAPENEZ
EH ()
R=_ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H8B@&)

Range of Relationship of unobservable
unobservable inputs inputs to fair value

TABR TABERAEE
BABEEE HATEZEE

55% -6.0% A'slight increase in the

capitalisation rate would result
in a significant decrease in fair
value, and vice versa.
B RMEGULES - @8HA
FENARERE - RZHA o
RMB0.50-RMB1.24 A significant increase in the

per month market rent would result in a
per square meter significant increase in fair value,
BRABEAK and vice versa.
AR¥050E MSEEHAREN  SEHA
ARBL247T TESABEN - RZTA

HE_ T K" —F+-/F=+—H
IHFE > MESREERRE = -

AEBMRERBLEHERBWIERRES L
BERBERENYEES  HRAAFEER
STEMRDERARIIRIREDE -

KRB =FR T -_—F+-_A=+—8
AEBWELEYED TIRT - (EAREEFT
TES—MIRITRE 2R -

RAMEEBERAR —F - =FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. Y% - BRERRE

COST 3

At 1 January 2022 i St S
Exchange differences ExzZ

Additions AE

Disposals e

Transfers to investment properties E&F#HENE

Reclassified as held for disposal  EFHEAR{ELE
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZFTZA=1-H
Exchange differences ExZE
Additions NE
Disposals e
Transfers to investment properties E&FRENE
At 31 December 2023 RZZZ=F+ZA=1-H
DEPRECIATION AND ERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2022 WZZZZ5-A-H
Exchange differences ExZZ
Charge for the year AEEAR
Impairment fE
Disposals e

Transfers to investment properties ERZHRENE
Reclassified as held for disposal - B EAR{ELE

At 31 December 2022 W-E-—#+-R=1-H
Exchange differences ExzZ

Charge for the year AEEAR

Disposals e

Transfers to investment properties E&EHENE

At 31 December 2023 RZZ-=F+-fA=1-H
CARRYING AMOUNTS RAE

At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=%+-A=1-H
At 31 December 2022 RZF-ZE+ZA=1-H

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

Equipment,
furniture and
Leasehold fixtures Plant and Motor

Buildings  improvements 3% &l machinery vehicles Total
BF HENEEE REE  BERME AE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
249,594 22,345 13771 313,002 8625 837,343
(14,801) (1,870) (20,906) (26,985) (656) (65,218)
- - 3,203 50,435 180 53,818
= (163) (10,920) (33,821) (1419 (46,383)
(74.004) = = = = (74,004)
(104,586) = = = = (104,586)
56,203 20312 215,094 302,631 6,730 600970
(959) (363) (3,761) (4873 (113) (10,074)
- - 5474 2,258 - 1,732
= = (11,802) (44.090) (571) (56,463)
2518) = = = - 2518)
52,726 19,949 205,005 255921 6,046 539,647
150,609 7,139 243,777 224,363 5,465 631,353
(8,651) (915) (20,844) (20,532) (456) (51,398)
4,898 2,564 378 13325 669 21834
- 5484 1,109 46,193 1,053 53,839
= (163) (10980) (25,585) (1,354) (38,082)
(44.901) - = = - (44.901)
(53,893) - = = - (53,893)
48,062 14,109 213440 237,764 5377 518,752
(869) (281) (3,751) (3.925) 97 8923)
2,670 2480 2,221 12,983 567 20921
= = (7,065) (38,519) (493) (46,077)
(1,269 - = = - (1,269)
48594 16,308 204,845 208,303 5,354 483,404
4132 3641 160 47618 692 56,243
8141 6,203 1,654 64,867 1,353 82,218




17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

17. W% ~ BB KRR ()

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on its cost
less their residual values on a straight-line basis at the

following rates per annum:

7F
HEYZEEKE

Buildings

R

Leasehold improvements

§

®’E - BMREKE

Equipment, furniture and fixtures

ME - BERRETIIZERARERISREE
WIAB ARE R FHIFRITE -

5%

The shorter of the lease terms and 5 years
HEHRKSF 2 8EE

20% — 25%

Plant and machinery R Mt as 10% — 20%
Motor vehicles RE 20%
18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. FHEEE
Land use Office
rights Warehouse premises Total
TiERE BRE  BAEME “@st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FET FET
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-=5-HA—H
Carrying amount RHEE 60,765 3,222 3,209 67,196
At 31 December 2023 R-ZE-=%+-HA=+-H
Carrying amount RHEE 15,193 1,662 627 17,482
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZ=-Z=-=%+-HA=1—H
tFE
Depreciation charge WEER 1,441 1,388 1,361 4,190
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ=E=-—%+=-A=+—H
HEE
Depreciation charge WEER 1,123 3,286 5,583 9,992
Reclassified as held for disposal BN BARELE (4,153) - - (4,153)

RAMEEBERAR —F - =FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 18. FHREEE (&)

Expense relating to short-term leases 52 #ifH SRR X

Total cash outflow for leases MEZRES L8
Additions to right-of-use assets FREEERNE

Impairment losses on right-of-use assets & F#E & Z 5 (E &5 18

For both years, the Group leases various offices, warehouses,
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for
fixed term of 1 year to 5 years, but may have extension
and termination options. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies
the definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable. The addition of right-of-
use from lease contracts with corresponding lease liabilities
during the year is HK$920,000 (2022: HK$9,642,000).

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings
where its manufacturing facilities are primarily located
and office buildings. The Group is the registered owner of
these property interests, including the underlying leasehold
lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire
these property interests. The leasehold land components of
these owned properties are presented separately only if the
payments made can be allocated reliably.

Leases committed
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group does not
have new leases that have not yet commenced.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

2023 2022
—E-=8 —E-fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
1,663 2,106
7,252 12,511

920 55,960

- 6,056

RREFE  AEEHHEZEARAE  RE
E2BZA  BHEANZBEEFHRIFES
F o EAEEEREMNA L - BB E R E
EER - B S ASEA RGNS - R
EEE T B R EHE N ATEUS BfE 2 AR - A&
BERGHZER  WEEREHITANZH
B AEREANRHERBZHEANRER
FA#£920,000/8 7T (ZZF = =4 : 9,642,000 /#
o) @

o REEBEEHETEAE (ZEBHEH
EREAEZR) RIRAERT - AEBE/Z
EMEtEn (BRARAEL) 2 BRET -
REEZEYERER - B - FBX NS
Ko ZEEAYMEZHEE LA DN SR 5
WABRNRETEBILES

ERFEEE
REB_=FF_F_—FF-H=+—H -
7 SR [ 3 4 1 R P R 2 R AR o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RER M

BE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
—E_=F+-A=T—HILFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9. M EE
Development Technical Customer
Licence fee costs know-how contracts Total
FOEE BERA SER EFAH it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TAL FET AT AT
COST A
At 1 January 2022 RZZE-_—F—H—H 122,941 1,270,475 71,339 27,514 1,492,269
Additions NE 4546 3,210 - - 7,756
Exchange differences ExkzE (10,527) (108,811) = = (119,338)
At 31 December 2022 “Z2-—F+-fA=1-H 116,960 1,164,874 71,339 27,514 1,380,687
Addition %‘E 409 - - - 409
Exchange differences ExzR (2,094) - - - (2,094)
At 31 December 2023 R-_E-_=F+-A=+—-H 115,275 1,164,874 71,339 27,514 1,379,002
AMORTISATION AND BERAE
IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2022 R-ZE-—F—F—H 107,971 1,224,884 71,339 27,514 1,431,708
Charge for the year $¢E%D[% 11,742 33,385 - - 45,127
Exchange differences ExzR (9,245) (105,386) = = (114,631)
Impairment loss recognised BRZRESE 5,927 11,991 - = 17,918
At 31 December 2022 “E-—E+-fA=1-H 116,395 1,164,874 71,339 27514 1,380,122
Charge for the year $¢J§W/ﬁ 411 = - = 411
Exchange differences EkzZE (2,084) - - - (2,084)
At 31 December 2023 W-E-=#+-A=1—H 114,722 1,164,874 71,339 27514 1,378,449
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 31 December 2023 R-Z-=%+-fA=1-H 553 = = = 553
At 31 December 2022 R-_E-_—F+-A=t+—-H 565 - - - 565
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ma

BARS AR BT

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 19. ML EE (&)
Licence fee, technical know-how and customer contracts of AEEZHAIFEE  EERMEEFEEHHA
the Group were acquired from third parties. BE=FWE -
The intangible assets have finite useful lives. Intangible assets BEEEGCRTHRER - BEEENERE
are amortised on a straight-line basis over the following 1 AT BRI S
period:
Licence fee 1 -5 years FAIEE 1&E54F
Development costs 9 months — 2 years FZER AN offl A =24
Technical know-how 5 -8 years BERM 5ZE8F
Customer contracts 3 years EFEAEH 3
During the year ended 31 December 2023, no impairment is HEZZ-=F+_A=1+—HILFE  1E&
recognised for intangible asset. DB B ERERAEEIE -
During the year ended 31 December 2022, impairment loss HE-_ZTZ_—_F#+-_A=+—HLEFE "
of HK$17,918,000 was recognised for intangible asset with MEREAFHRZELEERIREESE
finite useful lives. Details are set out in note 20. 17,918,000/ 7T ° 1B 5E20 °

20. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON PROPERTY, 20. FHERYBRRIREL 2WE -

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, RIGHT-OF-
USE ASSETS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
IN HANDSETS AND IOT TERMINAL
BUSINESS

BERRE EREEERER
EEREFER

Due to the unsatisfied financial performance of handsets
and 10T terminals business, the management concluded
that there was indication of impairment and conducted
impairment assessment on the recoverable amount of the
assets allocated to the handsets and IOT terminal business.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

A0 T 1 B B A o R TG 2 A RS R IR N AR AN
AE BEEERRFEREDNR  XHDAEE
FREYBALREFNEE 2 AT E SR
TRERR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON PROPERTY,

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, RIGHT-OF-
USE ASSETS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
IN HANDSETS AND IOT TERMINAL
BUSINESS (conTINUED)

e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

20. FHRRMEALIRER 2 W=

BERRE  EREEERER
EERERBR @

The recoverable amount was assessed based on the
discounted future pre-tax cash flows expected to be derived
from the assets. The key inputs and assumptions applied in
the value-in-use calculation relate to the estimation of cash
inflows and outflows, including budgeted sales, gross profit
margin, annual and terminal growth rates and discount rate
applied in the valuation conducted by the Valuer engaged
by the Company and the chief financial officer of the Group
works closely with the Valuer to establish and determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and key inputs. Such
estimation was based on the unit's past performance and
the management’s expectations on market development.
As at 31 December 2023, the calculation used cash flow
projections approved by the management covering the
following 5 years with annual growth rates estimated based
on historical records. The cash flows beyond the five-year
period were extrapolated using a 1% (2022: 1%) terminal
growth rate. The pre-tax discount rate applied was 16.4%
(2022: 16.8%).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, management
of the Company determines that there is no impairment on
the property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets in handsets and IOT terminal business.
After the impairment assessment, the carrying amounts
of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets of the Group were HK$49,229,000,
HK$4,907,000 and HK$553,000, respectively.

AR (Bl & K8 TR R TE BTk B A 2 B IR AR R
RS RET G TEFEREENHERZ
HRGABERBIERSREARRL 2E
AEE BEARRMEERGEMET 2 MG
BEEAZEZHEERE  EAX . FERER
BRERL RAEIR R - A 5 [ B % 48 BS B
BRFEZA1E » RESL R EE A BN EERD
KgAK - BRAMGETIRIEZEN 2B
ARELREEBYHMBBRRZBHEL - K=
T_=F+-A=1+—8  ARTEXAETRE
BRI ERERRSFE 2 RS RETEA - Wik
F At FHER - BBRAFHZRER
EFEAI%(CT-—F ¢ 1%) HRFEE R
o RAZHAIRIREA164% (ZF=—4F :
16.8%) °

BHEZ-=—F+-"A=1+—HItFE AR
AIEIREE T TR AR InERB 2 mE -
s k& FREEEREREETNTER
B - LREFNGEE AEENYE - BE KK
B FRREENENEENEBEDS A
49,229,000/ 7T ~ 4,907,000/% 7T K& 553,000/
=5
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R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

20. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON PROPERTY,

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, RIGHT-OF-
USE ASSETS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
IN HANDSETS AND IOT TERMINAL
BUSINESS (conTINUED)

20. FHBMBERIREIE S W -

BER®RE  EREEERER
EEREBR @

During the year ended 31 December 2022, based on the
result of the assessment, the management determined that
the recoverable amount of the handsets and 0T terminal
business was lower than the carrying amount. Impairment
loss was allocated to each category of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets such
that the carrying amount of each category of asset is not
less than the highest of its fair value less cost of disposal,
its value-in-use and zero. Therefore, no impairment loss
was allocated to the buildings and land use rights as their
fair values less costs of disposal were higher than the
carrying amounts. Impairment loss of HK$53,839,000,
HK$6,056,000 and HK$17,918,000 were recognised against
the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets, respectively during
the year ended 31 December 2022. After the impairment
assessment, the carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets of
the Group were HK$82,218,000, HK$67,196,000 and
HK$565,000 respectively.
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HEZT-—F+-A=1+—HILtFE  BiE
SR BHEBETETFERYEB AR mER
Z AR E SRR RAEE - BEBEEHES
ME  BELRSE  TRAEEEREFEES
fE%85) - AMERIEREEZ EABENMERER
FERLERS HFEREERTSZHNES
B> Al BERAFEREERANSHRER
B MUt S8 T K A i R A B BB
B-BEZZT-_—F+-A=1+—HIEFE"
HRY%  BERSE  FTRAEEERERE
EZEEE B9 5ERREEE53,839,000
BT~ 6,056,000%8 7T %17,918,000/8 7T °
KRmEFEE  AEEZYE - BERE
% FERAREERENEENERRES A
82,218,000/ 7T * 67,196,000/% 7T K2 565,000
BT °
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e PR RER M

RN
. \\
For t;)e year ended 31 December 2023
HE_ZT-_=F1+-A=1T—HILFE
21. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 21. EEBEERE
The following are the deferred tax (liabilities) assets INTARAEEMBEFE - AEBERZ
recognised by the Group and the movement thereon, during RERIB (BB EERBREZES -
the current and prior years.
Write-down of ~ Impairment
Revaluation of  Development inventories of property,  Revaluation of
equity instrument cost and trade plant and investment
at FVTOCI capitalised receivables equipment properties Total
BAVEFA FEREY
Eft2EhE 25-u 34 BAEX W% BER REME
RATASf ERS HA A Eff a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#n TEn Ti#n TiEn TiEn Ti#n
At 1 January 2022 W-Z-—#-h-H (1,279) (11,918) 37,445 15,489 (114,071) (74,334)
Exchange differences EEZZE 130 1,207 (2,580) (557) 11,280 9480
Credit (charge) to profit or loss RRgEA GIR) - 10711 (20919) (9,052) 9,345 (9915)
Credit to other comprehensive income  FAE A 2 FMA AT A (157) - - - (21,629) (21,786)
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZF+ZA=1-H (1,306) - 13946 5,380 (115,075) (96,555)
Exchange differences Exzg 246 - (78) (118) 179 1845
Credit (charge) to profit or loss RERHA () - - (13,868) - 4,000 (9,.868)
Transfer out upon Land Resumption el i 4 - - = - 17,152 17,152
Credit to other comprehensive income R EM 2 EMETEF A (2,220) - - - (330) (2,550)
At 31 December 2023 RIZZ=FTZA=T-H (3,280) = - 5,762 (92,458) (89,976)
BAREEEERAR T —FFif 215
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

21. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (coNTINUED)

21. EEHRBEE (@)

Other than the deferred tax assets and liabilities mentioned
above, the Group had unused tax losses of HK$795,468,000
(2022: HK$787,376,000) available for offset against future
profit. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$795,468,000 (2022: HK$787,376,000) with expiry
dates as disclosed in the following table.

2023 —E-=F
2024 —E-—ma
2025 —E R
2026 —EREF
2027 —E
2028 —ZE-N\F

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to retained profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$990,980,000 (2022: HK$472,054,000) as the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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B EURERIEEERAGI  AEEH KR
R IEE 795,468,000 L (=& ==
787,376,000 7T) A (4K 85 AR 2ROE F o AR
RIOHFIR AR - R ERERIEEFRIBE
E o RERRIEBEEREL795,468,0007%8 7T
—ET— — 4 787,376,000/ ) 2 FitE - &
FHI B N T RATHEE ©

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FH&T

- 145,428
140,476 140,476
105,600 105,600
122,800 122,800
273,072 273,072
153,520 -
795,468 787,376

RIEPBECEMEHE  URERBRARR=
TT)N\F— A BEAEEUEFE RO EE
BAITEIR o 476 IS RER AR A A BB S
A AR i I 40 E BF 2= §8990,980,00078 7T (=
T — —4F : 472,054,000 70) VB H IE T F B
% RERAANEE G ZEEREENED
BEf - DA R RZ S s = 2872 0] R AV S SR KAl
BERD o



22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CAMBRENT —\

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+ALFE

22. RFENF 2w

Costs of investments in unlisted

associates

Share of post-acquisition profit

2023 2022
—E-=8 B4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBxT FBT

RIELETEBE QT2
& Z AR 33,170 46,868
DEUREER & F 13,446 13,188
46,616 60,056

The Group had interests in the following associates:

Name of entity

B4R

Shanghai Jizhi Automation
Technology Co., Limited
(“Shangha Jizhl")

LERRERRERAA
(THE%E))

RS ARAA
(TLA%S))

Shanghai Zhenkang

LEER

Form of
business
structure

EhieRpA

Incorporated

L

Incorporated

MR

Incorporated

MR

Country of
incorporation

ERALER

The PRC

wE

The PRC

e

The PRC

e

Principal
place of
operation

TRERE

The PRC

e

The PRC

e

The PRC

E

REBEN THIEE QR

Proportion of

Class of registered capital Proportion of

share held held by the Group voting power held Principal activities
KB

FEREER ARERLH s et il TERH

2023 2022 2023 2022
“BCcE -E-CE CZBIcE -EoCE

% % % %
Registered captal 49 89 49 i) Development of automated
fest equipment in the PRC

e 49 9 49 9 EEREEHLRA
Registered capital - 40 - 40 Software development

(Note ) (Note )
&R - 0 - 0 FHRE

() i)

Registered capital 61.37 415 61.37 415 Development of automotive

Note i) (Note i) cockpit business in PRC
ax 61.37 415 61.37 415 FrEftRERERS
W) W) £k

ERRREEERAT — 2 —44% 217
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R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (coNTINUED)

22. NEE N T 2 s ()

Notes:

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has entered
into a sale agreement to dispose the entire 40% equity interest
in 85 at a consideration of RMB6,310,000 (equivalent
to HK$6,941,000). The transaction has resulted in the Group
resulting a loss of HK$1,581,000 in profit or loss.

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group entered
into a share transfer agreement to acquire additional 9.45%
equity interest in Shanghai Zhenkang at a consideration
of RMB9,640,000 (equivalent to HK$10,604,000). The
consideration was settled by assignment of debt previously owned
to the Group. Upon the completion of the acquisition, Shanghai
Zhenkang has become a 50.95% owned subsidiary of the Group
and included in the consolidated financial statements of the

Group accordingly.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the
associates to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash
dividends, or to repay loans or advance made by the Group.

Summarised financial information of each reporting period is
not disclosed as it is not material to the Group.

Summarised financial information of material associates
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
material associate is set out below. The summarized
financial information below represents amounts shown in the
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with
IFRSs.

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in
the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (coNTINUED) 22.

e PR RER M ST

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

REE Q8 2 ()

Summarised financial information of material associates
(CONTINUED)

Shanghai Jizhi

Current assets MENE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Current liabilities mEAE
Revenue WA

(Loss) profit for the year REE (E18) m Al

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Net assets of Shanghai Jizhi EEREEEFE
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEER LESHE 2
interest in Shanghai Jizhi AR L
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEER LS 2

interest in Shanghai Jizhi Tz R AR (E

Aggregate information of associates that are not
individually material

The Group’s share of losses ANEE (L B R
Aggregate carrying amount of the REERZEBERRZ

Group’s interests in these associates AR EREE

ERBRENRA M BENEE (B

EAHE
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
54,603 133,744
11,174 10,043
(26,133) (38,838)
59,048 208,552
(8,041) 17,897

VA _EBA TS B R B B R & B T Rk P BT RERR
B R B2 e mORRE (B4R

2023 2022
—E-=8 —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
39,644 104,949
49% 49%
19,426 51,425

18 B3 3F B2 2 Bt N B VAR R B

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBxT FHT
- (3,830)
- 8,631

BRMRKEEERAR T —FFH 219
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R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

23. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI/
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

23. BAFEFAHEMZEREAR
AIH BRAVEFARENE

BMEE

Equity instruments at FVTOCI comprise: & AF BT AR b2 Uk

Unlisted equity securities outside
Hong Kong, at fair value (note)

Financial assets at FVTPL comprise:

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong,

at fair value

Note:

The Group’s unlisted equity securities investments in 2022 represent the
2.1997%, 14.97% and 9.39% equity interests respectively in three private
entities established in PRC. The directors have elected to designate these

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T Tt
AT EBE :
REBAINE LR A E S
(& RFE) B 68,130 61,376
BAFEFABENSREERE
REB EMRAES (RATE)
468 1,602
HiaF -
AEBR T -_—F 2 EMBRABFRERR=H%E

FEK 2 LE BN RIFE 22.1997% * 14.97% %
9.39% M1 - EEEEEZFZFIREIETEAIKRATE

investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. AHMEEWEE 2 RATA -
24. INVENTORIES 24. 78

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET BT
Raw materials R 61,422 130,959
Work in progress EEE 5,040 29,811
Finished goods R B 19,861 25,009
86,323 185,779

25. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

25. FESHEW R

The Group’s properties held for sale are all situated in the
PRC. All the properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.
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26. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

26. HttRBITMEE

The normal credit period given on sale of goods relating S5 B I % WA AR A o S 7S I B T RV AR A
to handsets and IOT terminals business and Electronics HEFMEBERzERZ —MEEHRAZTED
manufacturing services business is 0 — 90 days. A longer X o DEEIAREEA R T ¥R B MEAARR
period is granted to a few customers with whom the Group BRECEPEERR ZEEN - WENRIEEY

has a good business relationship and which are in sound

RRTEEH-

financial condition. There is no credit given to sales of

properties.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net AT BTk BioR (BRI A 2 BEAMRE) 8
of allowance for credit losses, as well as notes receivables WE SRR (R EEBERE) U RERERE
presented based on the invoice dates at the end of REZAHEL 2 REDT

the reporting period, which approximated the revenue

recognition dates:

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THT
Trade receivables FEWE 5 8RR
0 - 30 days FE30K 27,821 35,399
31 - 60 days 31 60X 19,474 7,746
61 — 90 days 61E90K 747 1,894
91 - 180 days 91%180K 641 814
Over 180 days HBiE180K 38,237 66,133
86,920 111,986
Less: Allowance for credit losses B S EEEEME (38,297) (38,863)
Trade receivables JEWE SRR 48,623 73,123
Notes receivables (Note) FEURE IR (H12E)
0 — 30 days T E30K 13,135 994
31 - 60 days 31E60X 12,559 48
61 — 90 days 61£90X 469 818
91 - 180 days 91%180K 7,654 2,708
Over 180 days HBiAE180K - 112
33,817 4,680
82,440 77,803
Note: Notes receivables represent the promissory notes issued by banks Hiat - EREEARRS W HIRTTE 2 & H 2K -

received from the customers.

RAMEEBERAR —F - =FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

26. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

(CONTINUED)

6. EfttRE & BE &= (8)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
twice a year. The Group has policy for provision of ECL,
which is based on an evaluation of the collectability and age
analysis of accounts on every individual trade debtor with
significant balances or credit impaired and the remaining
balances are grouped based on past due characteristics and
on management’s judgement including creditworthiness, the
past collection history and forward-looking information.

As at 31 December 2023, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$42,586,000 (2022: HK$50,186,000) which
are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due
balances, no balances have been past due 30 days or more
and is not considered as in default because there was no
historical default of payments by the respective customers
for the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

As at 31 December 2023, trade receivables of
HK$1,891,000 (2022: HK$20,490,000) are denominated in
United States Dollars (“USD”), which are not denominated
in the functional currency of the respective group entities.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023 are set out in
note 40.

Other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and will
be settled within twelve months after the end of reporting
period. Deposits mainly represented trade deposits paid to
third parties.
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EWMEMHEPA  AEEgHEEETPH
FEERIRETPHNEERSE - TFPRES
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B 5 MR B 2 AT E AR A d S B il D AT
(MEREHIREEE K erEE AR BE
HOBR)AREEE 2 HE (BREREEFE B
EERCERAELERN)  BEHREEEE
BiBfEL RS -

N E-=F+-"F=+—8 KAEEHNE
WESERREHBEERBEEHEBHN
BRTE 48(H 542,586,000 L (&2 = —

50,186,000/ T) MBI R - HE=-T ==
ER_EFE-_—F+-_A=+—HILtFE  £@
Bt s o WELAHEBHIS0R KA LB H
REBRLIWER LA FUEL M ER R AE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SAMBREME
. \\\\
™,
For t;)e year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_ZT-=F+-"A=1+—HILFE
26. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 26. HttiE e mEE (@)
(CONTINUED)
The following is the breakdown of other receivables, deposits UTAEEMERKRER  ZREkBNREZD
and prepayments: #r
2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER BT
VAT recoverables A Y e E R 42,110 27,480
Deposits paid to suppliers for MEEGTEXNT
purchasing inventories HERZIZS 19,527 25,595
Prepayments TEfFFOR 3,014 8,471
Rental and utility deposits HMERKEEZES 322 1,063
Other receivables H b fE YL BR X 8,553 4,809
Land resumption receivable JE U 2 O] Y 5k 287,281 -
360,807 67,418
The following is the breakdown of consideration receivables: AR B REBRE R4 -
2023 2022
—E-=fF TEC
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER BT
Current BNER - 25,147
Non-current JEENHA - 17,227
- 42 374
The consideration receivables represent the sales UK EBIREEEAREENBEARMNHEERE
consideration from the disposal of the Group’s subsidiaries HAZE B BREE S W SENEE -
in which the amounts are repayable in accordance with the
terms of sales and purchase agreements.
BANBEEERAR —2 G4 223
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z_=F+-_A=t+—HLFE

27. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/SHORT-

TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

27. BIRPRITER EHRITEN

RBTHEBRRRE

Amounts due from associates
Amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayment on
demand.

Details of impairment assessment of other financial assets
for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are set
out in note 40.

The bank balances and cash of the Group are mainly
denominated in RMB, HK$ and USD. The bank balances
receive variable interest at an average rate of 1% (2022:
1%) per annum. Included in the bank balances and cash,
short-term bank deposits and pledged bank deposits was
an amount of HK$396,713,000 (2022: HK$311,372,000)
denominated in RMB, which is not freely convertible into
other currencies.

At 31 December 2023, bank balances, short-term bank
deposits and pledged bank deposits of HK$390,422,000
(2022: HK$213,234,000) are denominated in USD, which
are not denominated in the functional currency of the
respective group entities.

The Group’s bank deposits of HK$22,000,000 (2022:
HK$165,846,000) as at 31 December 2023 were pledged to
secure the short-term general banking facilities granted by
banks (2022: short-term general banking facilities and the
issuance of discounted bills).

At 31 December 2023, short-term deposits receive fixed
interest rates range from 0.5% to 5.42% (2022: 1.25% to
5.64%) per annum with original maturity over three months.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

28. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

28. TRIEME

Trade and notes payables, deferred income, deposits
from tenants and other payables and accruals principally
comprise amounts outstanding for trade purposes and
ongoing costs.

Trade and notes payables

Trade and notes payables principally comprise amounts
outstanding for trade purchases. The normal credit period
taken for trade purchases is 30 — 90 days.

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and notes payables
at the end of the reporting period is presented based on the
invoice dates for trade payables or date of issuance for notes
payables is as follows:

0 - 30 days TE30K

31 - 60 days 31 £60K

61 — 90 days 61E290K
Over 90 days HBEI0KR
Trade payables JEISE SRR
Notes payables [ERTRIR

0 - 30 days T E30K

As at 31 December 2023, included in the trade and notes
payables, HK$9,403,000 (2022: HK$26,633,000) are
denominated in USD, which are not denominated in the
functional currency of the respective group entities.

RNEZEREFR - BERA - BRZRER
Hip MR N EFT AL EBRESAEZ
RENFIAARFFHERA o

ENEZRARRE
BNEZERRRBEIZERAEEZEIR
BeR - EHRBE L REEHRI0E0X -

AT RRBERRIEE BN ESEARE
BRENESREACEREAHAENRER 2%
H B EMEL 2 BRER DT

2023 2022
—E-=E —E-fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER BT
57,278 94,444
1,700 10,581
290 4,202
11,931 13,116
71,199 122,343
6,721 34,817
77,920 157,160

RIB-_=ZF+-A=+—H EBNEZEX
EEEA B AERTTAHEZ FIR9,403,000/8
TT(ZT =4 : 26,633,00087T) * BREKE
LI EEE MR RAHE -

RAMEEBERAR —F - =FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z_=F+-_A=t+—HLFE

28. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (coNTINUED)

28. TEIA & ()

Other payables and accruals, deposits from tenants and

deferred income

The following is the breakdown of other payables and

accruals, deposits from tenants, and deferred income:

Deferred income (note)
Accruals

VAT payables

Other tax payable
Other payables
Deposits from tenants

Deferred income
Current
Non-current

Deposits from tenants
Current
Non-current

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

EIERA (H74E)
e IR

FERT B ETR

H AR
H b EAIRRTR
HEEe

EEWA
VinE2)
FRE

HEEE
VinE2)
FRE

HiENRARETRE  AEREREE

PN
AT AEMENRRRETHIE  AREER
FEIEWA Z DT
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
37,818 40,744
12,338 38,948
47,575 566
7,804 2,774
7,367 6,631
9,698 8,908
122,600 98,571
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TH&T
1,116 1,136
36,702 39,608
37,818 40,744
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET BT
3,620 2,242
6,078 6,666
9,698 8,908
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

28. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (coNTINUED)

e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+ALFE

28. =R A& (@)

Note: As at 31 December 2023, the Group had deferred income
on government grants amounting to HK$37,818,000 (2022:
HK$40,744,000). Government grants are given to support the
research and development of advanced electronic devices
and technology and used for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment. These grants are released to income to cover actual
expenditure used in research and development activities or
transferred to profit or loss over useful lives of the related assets.
Included in deferred income on government grants amounting
to HK$36,702,000 (2022: HK$39,608,000) represented the
income that is not expected to be realised to profit or loss within
12 months of the reporting date based on the depreciation
rates of the related assets and therefore has been presented to

non-current liabilities.

29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Bt W—ZB-_=F+_-F=+—0 AEEEBF
15 B WA Z IR A37,818,0008 L (ZE==
4 1 40,744,00047T) © BRATE B WA T AR
AR EEFRERREM 2 - ARIKEDE -
WEREE ZEHERACSERZRARBR
MREEHERRATINEEEE 2 ERAHE
BEBn o  BINERRAZBEERAFBIE—%
36,702,00038 7T (=& = — 4 : 39,608,000/ 7T)
ZHIE  BIRAEREEZITEX - BHBMHRE
TERRE BB 1I2EA AR BT 23R - B
25 RERBEE -

29. EHAE

Sale of handsets and 0T terminals

As at 1 January 2022, contract liabilities amounted to
HK$126,412,000.

Contract liabilities, that are expected to be settled within the
Group’s normal operating cycle, are classified as current
based on the Group’s earliest obligation to transfer goods or
services to the customers.

For the contract liabilities as at 31 December 2022 and
2023, the entire balances are recognised as revenue to
profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2023
and expected to be recognised during the year ending 31
December 2024, respectively.

HE TR BRI

2023 2022

—E=-= —E-F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET BT

80,065 105,893
R-_E__—_F—HF—H AEaGBEAE

126,412,000 7T °

BEHMERAKELREERINEENANEA
BEIREAKRERATFEEERIRBARTE
BEESBERAHAE -

RN B ZFR=ZF_=FF+=—A=+—H
REHNBEMS @ 2NEREIIREEZT
=+ A=+ —HALLFENBETERE
WARBHEREBEE—_Z_NFE+_-_A=+—H
I FERER -

RAMEEBERAR —F - =FFH

227



228

—/

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (conTINUED)

29.

SHEE (@)

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

Sale of handsets and IOT terminals

When the Group receives a deposit before the sale of
goods, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of
a contract, until the revenue recognised on the relevant
contract exceeds the amount of the deposit. The Group
typically receives a 30% — 50% deposit before the sale of
goods.

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward
contract liabilities.

HERRBENBENSBRELTEN—RNR
T -

HEFRRMBRL IR
HARENIHEEmATKIUZE @ EKRE
MFBEREELANAE  EERBAHM
HRZBANBBRERARLE - AEEBER
HE B mATER30% E50%HRE

TRETFAERBAEAR & LB EREN

B

HK$’000
FHET
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-_Z-_=F+-_A=1+—HIFE
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract 5T AFHE LB ELEBHE R A
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year 105,893
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BHE_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract st AEHIA LB BEEN T FERIA
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year 126,412
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. BANK BORROWINGS

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-T-=F+-A=+-ALFE

30. RITEE

Unsecured short-term bank borrowings 3 #58 HA$R 1T & 7%
(note i)
Secured discounted bills (note ii)

Notes:

()

(ii)

(rz3))

The short-term bank borrowings are unsecured, interest bearing
at China Loan Prime Rate (“LPR”) minus base point of 75%
(2022: China LPR minus base point of 55% and LPR minus base
point of 50%), respectively and repayable within one year from
the date of withdrawal. The bank borrowings are denominated in
RMB for both years. The LIBOR loans were fully repaid during the
year, therefore there is no impact to the Group from the interest
rate benchmark reform.

As at 31 December 2022, discounted bills included an amount
HK$173,040,000 denominated in RMB, which was the functional
currency of respective entities of the Group, and were secured
by pledged bank deposits as disclosed in note 27. The average
effective interest rates of the discounted bills at 1.95% per
annum. Bills were issued through intra-group transactions and the
relevant group entities discounted the bills to independent third
parties. The bills receivable and payable issued between group

entities were fully eliminated on consolidation.

BEMBEIRTIR (o atii)

Wikt

(i)

(i)

2023 2022
—E-=8 —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
33,000 67,200

- 173,040

33,000 240,240

RERITEEAERE  KPEERMSREF
E([LPR])B75% 2 (ZF = =4 : LPRIH55%
HERLPRBS0%ESN) 518 + ZHMNIZELA ket
—FREE - MEFENRITEELOUAARET
B o LIBORERERAFERIEE - EFIR
EERFHAREETELE -

REZF-_—F+=ZA=+—H  WBRREERE
NEEEEEE I EEARBHEZLE
173,040,0005 7T + I LABT 5E27 i 52 2 B 3K 38
RITERIEREIR - BRRZRZ FHBEREF X
B1I5E - ZERBBBEERNPRSHEIT - M
HASBEERERERRTECE=F - SEE
BREMBITZERRENRBERGE ARE2E
HEH o

RAMEEBERAR —F - =FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

31. LEASE LIABILITIES

31. HEEE

Lease liabilities payable:

Within one year

Within a period of more than one year
but not more than two years

Within a period of more than two years
but not more than five years

Less: Amount due for settlement with
12 months shown under current
liabilities
Amount due for settlement after 12 months
shown under non-current liabilities

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied
to lease liabilities range from 2.90% to 3.70% (2022: from

2.90% t0 5.66%).

Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities

are set out below:

As at 31 December 2023
As at 31 December 2022

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-C-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
ENHESE
—FR 2,509 6,884
— R EREREE
2,194 4216
MERERF AR
- 2,018
4,703 13,118
B ORBBEFRR 12{E A BIEEE
2B
(2,509) (6,884)
ERBE BTN 1I2E BB EIEREE
2508 2,194 6,234

FERAREEAENNETLHEEEEN XA
290EE370E(ZZE=_—4%F : 290EE5.66
[E) -

AT ESIA RS EERNINEEEIAINZE

BIEMNHEERE
HK$’'000
FHBx
R-ZE-_=F+=-A=+—H 67
R —F+=—A=+—H 218
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32. BAE

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-T-=F+-A=+-ALFE

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

Authorised:
At 1 January 2022, 31 December
2022 and 31 December 2023

Issued:
At 1 January 2022
Exercise of share options (note 36)
Shares repurchased and cancelled

At 31 December 2022
Shares repurchased and cancelled

At 31 December 2023

FAXE(EO. 178 7T 2 & A

ETE
WZE=_=_F—H—H-
2 -F+-A=+—HK
—E-=F+-_H=+—H
B3
RZZE=Z=F—H—H
TR RENRHE (M1 5236)
AR eSSl ah)
RZFZZ_F+=-A=+—H
EEARINEES o)

KRB =F+=—A=+—H

Number Share
of shares capital
f&ne 8 [N

'000 HK$'000

T FAxT
3,000,000 300,000
2,279,777 227977
1,050 105
(82,302) (8,230)
2,198,525 219,852
(55,174) (5,517)
2,143,351 214,335

RAMEEBERAR —F - =FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

32. SHARE CAPITAL (coNTINUED) 32. BRA (&)
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE £A2
repurchased its own ordinary shares through the Stock AIRBE R FTEA T AR BEARR G E@A

Exchange as follows:

Aggregate
Number of consideration
ordinary shares paid (before
Month of repurchase repurchased Purchase price per share expenses)
2R NRE
®E A5 BEZEREE BRBEE (RIMBREEAXR)
'000 Highest Lowest HK$’000
TR Be BIK FExT
HK$ HK$
BT BT
August 2023 280 0.255 0.250 72
—E==F)\A
September 2023 37,128 0.340 0.265 11,784
—E-=FNA
October 2023 17,766 0.360 0.340 6,405
—T=%1+A
55,174 18,261
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company HE_ZT-=F+-_A=+—HILFE ' &R
repurchased 55,174,000 ordinary shares at an aggregate AJAMER(E 18,261,000/ g [E155,174,000/%
consideration of HK$18,261,000, all of which were cancelled TR - TEZSEROHHBERFAZE - 2=
during the year. None of the Company’s subsidiaries TR =F+ZA=1+—RHIEFE - AQaEH
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed BAAIMERESE  DEXBOARTEM LW
securities during the year ended 31 December 2023. B o
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32. A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
repurchased its own ordinary shares through the Stock

Exchange as follows:

Month of repurchase

BmE A4

January 2022
—E-_—_F—A
May 2022
—E- 1A
June 2022
ZECZCFRA
July 2022

R FERA
October 2022
—E- 1A
November 2022
ZEF+—A

Number of
ordinary shares
repurchased
BEEBERHE
’000

TR

20,648

3,260

6,686

11,966

9,418

18,638

70,616

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
repurchased 70,616,000 ordinary shares at an aggregate
consideration of HK$25,871,000, all of which were cancelled
during the year. None of the Company’s subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2022.

B —_—

F+-A=+—

BLEFE A2

BIEIB R ATIRIA T B E B 5B

Purchase price per share

BREEE

Highest Lowest
BS BIE
HK$ HK$
AT BT
0.480 0.455
0.320 0.290
0.370 0.330
0.345 0.300
0.305 0.270
0.335 0.290

Aggregate
consideration
paid (before
expenses)
EfERE
(RHNERBER)
HK$’000
FET

9,685

1,006

2,397

4,001

2,763

6,019

25,871

BE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE AR
AIAARAR(E 25,871,000/ 7L [2170,616,0000%
TR - TEZSEROHHIERFAFHE - HE

—=

FHZA=+—RIFE  ARRMN

BARGERE  HEXWEEAQREMF LT

RAMEEBERAR —F - =FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

33. RESERVES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR

33. f#fE

Properties revaluation reserve

At 1 January 2022
Gain on revaluation of properties and
right-of-use assets

At 31 December 2022

Gain on revaluation of properties and
right-of-use assets

Transfer out upon Land Resumption

At 31 December 2023

Assets revaluation reserve

At 1 January 2022
Fair value change on investments in
equity instruments at FVTOCI

At 31 December 2022
Fair value change on investments in
equity instruments at FVTOCI

At 31 December 2023

Translation reserve

At 1 January 2022
Exchange differences arising on
translation to presentation currency

At 31 December 2022
Exchange differences arising on
translation to presentation currency

At 31 December 2023

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

MEEMRE

N_ZE-—F—H—H
EEMERFEAREE 2 K

W—ZE—_—_F+=-F=+—H
EEVERFERAREEEZ K
U [3] + 3 P 8

RZBZ=F+=A=+—H

BEEEMHE

RZZE-_—_F—H—H
WERNE AN ESF AR 2 mE RS

R-ZE-_—_F+=-fF=+—H
WERN RN ES AR M2 EIRES
HIRRA T A2 AFEEE)

N—_EBE-_=F+-"HF=+—H

HK$'000
THETT

258,200

75,056
333,256

979
(59,330)

274,905

HK$'000
TAT

3,394

473
3,867

7,963
11,830

HK$'000
THET

205,870

(122,345)

83,525

(21,803)
61,722
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OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT

e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

4. KEHERH

35.

The Group as lessor
All of the properties held have committed tenants for 1
month to 6 years (2022: 1 month to 7 years).

Minimum lease properties receivables on leases are as
follows:

Within one year —FA
In the second to fifth year inclusive
After five years

hFI&

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

E_E=FNhF (EREMFBEEAN)

REBERHBEA
MERBZYMEDAETARE —BAZNEF
— T & —EAELH) -

=

FREERENSERETANFIRNAT

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBxT FHT
59,068 43,368
88,810 96,249
473 8,372
148,351 147,989

5. BIREF TS

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under rules and
regulations of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all its employees in Hong Kong. All the
employees of the Group in Hong Kong are required to
join the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ salaries and are charged
to consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme. No
forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years as at 31 December 2023 and
2022.

AEERBEAFIMEAESHTEKAAEMES
ERERY —IEAEESE - TERBBHAR
SEESHAMARESE - HiIREEE
REFSHE—ADLIEL - WRERE S E
ZRAIRIE T AR ER A BRI - 8F
SHECEEEASENEMEESFRE
H—BUERESIFH - ERAREST S
HE o AEEREIEFEEHEENEEA
B-RZEZ=FR-_FT_—F+_A=+—
B - WLz R F AT A EHR AN S B R AR AR
FE 2 AR -

RAMEEBERAR —F - =FFH

235



236

—/

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ma

B AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z_=F+-_A=t+—HLFE

35.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
(CONTINUED)

35.

RRER S (8

36.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance with
the applicable regulations of the PRC, participate in a state-
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the local
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specific percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement
benefits scheme. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

During the year, the total amounts of HK$27,357,000 (2022:
HK$63,737,000) contributed by the Group to the schemes
and cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represents contribution payable to the schemes by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

36.

AEERPEZMBEARERTEZERR
A 28— IRE K E R E B & R R IR
BAEE - MBRRAERTEKRANIEER D
Lot R R AR MET IR - NERBFLR KR
FEEBIZE—BERIELIEEHN -

FRN - ANEERE S AEEE27,357,000% 7T
(ZZ——4 :63,737,000/87T) ' MREREIE
wmRMBR 2R - REAEBEIRERT S R)iZ
TR TE Lt R M T B R 2 S FREEE -

BRETE

The Company had two share option schemes, including post-
initial public offering share options scheme (the “Post-IPO
Options”) and new share options scheme (the “New Share
Options”). Post-IPO Options and New Share Options were
adopted on 30 May 2005 and 1 June 2016, respectively.
The major terms and conditions of the two schemes are set
out below:

(A) Post-IPO Options
(i) The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants.

(i)  The participants included any employee or
executive Director and such other persons as
the Directors may consider appropriate.
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (coNTINUED)

e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

36. BT 8 (80

(A) Post-IPO Options (coNTINUED)

(iii)

On 12 December 2008, a resolution to renew
the 10% general limit of the Post-IPO Options
was duly passed by the shareholders of the
Company. The maximum number of shares
in respect of which options might be granted
under the Post-IPO Options must not exceed
10% of the shares in issue as at 12 December
2008 (i.e. 151,749,000 shares) and in any
event the total maximum number of shares
which might be issued or issuable upon exercise
of all outstanding options should not exceed
30% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must
be made within 5 business days from the date
of grant. No consideration is required to be paid
by the grantee for the grant of options.

The exercise price of an option must be the
highest of:

° the closing price of the share on the grant
date;

° the average closing price of the share for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding
the grant; and

° the nominal value of the share.

the life of the Post-IPO Options was effective
until 29 May 2015. No further option can be
granted thereafter but provisions of the Post-IPO
Options shall remain in full force and effect in
all other respects.

(R) BERAMBERBRETE @

(iii)

(iv)

R-ZZNF+-A+=H AR
AIRRIE A —TERRREHNE
RAFREERERESEZ10%—
B EBR - RIBEAXAHABERER
RERTEIT] T B BB ARE RS R Y
HRRHEE @ MSBARZ-ZE
NE+—B+-—BEBRARGZ
10% (EN151,749,0000% B%1%) »
EITEPTA mARTTE < AR Al
BEEEITHA BT RaRMNE
- RSB R AN A B
R 2 351 TAR AN, 230% ©

RBRAE 2 12 (B B M) BRI
HABEFAEEXBAES -
ERNBENER 2 BRI

BREZTEENERUT ZES
%

o RERBAMBRMZKTHE

e EERHAHANAERSH
Bz FHEHE - &

s EBHZEE-

BRARBEERBRETEZFH
BEE-E-RFRAA-tARRI
—EHAXN - HETAHRHBK
% BERAHBEERERETS
ZIEXERB R EIDA TR
AR o

RAMEEBERAR —F - =FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CoNTINUED) 36. EBIRAERTE (&)

(A) Post-IPO Options (coNTINUED) (A)
(vii)  On 19 July 2013, the Company has granted an
aggregate of 63,000,000 share options under
the Post-IPO Options to eligible participants
thereof, including certain employees and
business partners of the Group (“Grantees”).
The Options entitle the Grantees to subscribe
for an aggregate of 63,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of
the Company upon exercise in full.

(viii) Unless approved by shareholders in general
meeting in the manner prescribed in the Listing
Rules, the Board shall not grant options to any
grantee if the acceptance of those options would
result in the total number of shares issued and
to be issued to that grantee on exercise of his
options during any 12 month period exceeding
1% of the total shares then in issue.

Where any further grant of options to a grantee,
if exercised in full, would result in the total
number of shares already issued or to be issued
upon exercise of all options granted and to be
granted to such grantee (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to and including the date
of such further grant exceeding one per cent
of the total number of shares in issue, such
further grant must be separately approved by
the shareholders in general meeting with such
participant and his associates abstaining from
voting.

(ix)  All the post-IPO Options were lapsed during the
year.
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (coNTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

36. BT 8 (80

(B) New Share Options

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants.

The participants included any employee or
executive Director and such other eligible
participants as set out in the scheme rules.

The maximum number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the New Share Options and any
other scheme of the Group must not exceed
255,789,630 shares, being 10% of shares in
issue on the day which the New Share Options
was approved by the shareholders, unless
approval of the shareholders has been obtained,
and which must not in aggregate exceed 30%
of the ordinary shares in issue from time to time.
As at the date of this report, the total number
of ordinary Shares available for issue under the
New Share Options is 255,789,630 shares,
which represents 11.93% of the issued shares
of the Company as at the date of this report.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must
be made within 5 business days from the date
of grant. HK$1 is required to be paid by the
grantee an acceptance of options.

The exercise price of an option must be no less
than the highest of:

o the closing price of the share on the grant
date;

° the average closing price of the share for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding
the grant; and

° the nominal value of the share.

(B) #rRBR#ESHE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

BRER2EERIAE -

2EEQRIMNREINTES
ARGt EIR RIS 2 Hitb A BR S
B o

R RT 8 R AN B T A
fOETEING TR 2 BT A AR T
FEmA] FEITZERMNEE TE
B38255,789,630/% i1 » BI#TEE
A AT BRSO S A BT
7210% * BRIEBEVSARERBLAE -
MEZERT - BEINTEBBT
B B3I TE R 230% » RANHRE
BH - RN B AT (31T

T BAR 8 A255,789,630% A%
% BERAREBHPARFER
TRED 211.93% °

R 2 2 (T B 1) I ZRINR
HEHREA AEEERAEL - &
BAREZBREAINRELS

JG °©
BEREZTEEVATIRUATZ
REE

o REHHAMKROZWTHE :

e EERREBHFIAERKZH
Befn 2 FHWHE : K

s  RipZEME-

RAMEEBERAR —F - =FFH

239



240

TEE & —

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED) 36. EBIRAERTE (&)

(B) New Share Options (coNTINUED) (B)
(vi)  The life of the New Share Options was effective
until 1 June 2026, after which time no further
option will be granted but provisions of the New
Share Options shall remain in full force and
effect in all other respects.

(vii)  Unless approved by shareholders in general
meeting in the manner prescribed in the Listing
Rules, the Board shall not grant options to any
grantee if the acceptance of those options would
result in the total number of shares issued and
to be issued to that grantee on exercise of his
options during any 12 month period exceeding
1% of the total shares then in issue.

Where any further grant of options to a grantee,
if exercised in full, would result in the total
number of shares already issued or to be issued
upon exercise of all options granted and to be
granted to such grantee (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to and including the date
of such further grant exceeding one per cent
of the total number of shares in issue, such
further grant must be separately approved by
the shareholders in general meeting with such
participant and his associates abstaining from
voting.

(viii) No share options were granted or cancelled

under the New Share Options during the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (coNTINUED) 36. EBIRAERTE| (&)

The following table disclose details of the Post-IPO Options TRFBAFARBEE R AFAZERERET
held by the grantee and movements in such holdings: S 2B B RS R B
Exercise Outstanding at Outstanding at
price 1 January 2023 31 December 2023
Category of Name of per share W=B==f Exercised Lapsed R-B==f%
participants scheme  Date of grant Exercisable period B -A-H during the year during the year +=R=t-H
SHEER b 2 RHRS e fiie®E WA BN EREX MATE
(Note) HKS$
#2) R
Employees of the Post-IPO Options 19.7.2013 154.2015-18.7.2023
Group 0346 6,09%,000 = (6,09,000) =
T5EER BRAREEE  —F-=f C—Z-1%NATRAZ
BREE  tATAR ZZZ=FtRATAR
Consuttants Post-IPO Options 197.2013 154.2015-18.7.2023 0346 45,400,000 - (45,400,000) =
ER BRAREER  —F-=f C—B-1ENATRAZ
BREHE  tAthR  ZBZ=%tAT/R
Total 51,496,000 = (51,496,000) =
@3t
Exercisable at the end
of the year 51,496,000 - (51,496,000) -
RERA TR
Exercise Outstanding at Outstanding at
price 1 January 2022 31 December 2022
Category of Name of per share RZZ-—f Exercised Lapsed i —
participants scheme  Date of grant Exercisable period Bk —R-A during the year during the year +=A=+A
SEER TEIER b=k (i e AT Wil ERER AT
(Note) HKS
2 AT
Employees of the Post-IPO Options 19.7.2013 15.4.2015-18.7.2023
Group 0.346 7,146,000 (1,050,000) = 6,096,000
T5EEE BRORRER T _E-TENATREAZR
BiREE  tAthB  ZZZ=£tAtNA
Consultants Post-IPO Options 19.7.2013 154.2015-18.7.2023 0.346 45,400,000 - - 45,400,000
Ell BRAREEE  —F-=f —Z-14NATRAZ
BREE  tAtAR ZZZ=FtATAR
Total 52,546,000 (1,050,000) - 51,496,000
&5t
Exercisable at the end
of the year 51,496,000
RERA AT

ERRREEERAT — 2 —44% 241
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z_=F+-_A=t+—HLFE

36.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (conTINUED)

36.

BT 8 (3

37.

Note: In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 19 July 2013
under Post-IPO Options, 25% of options will vest in each of the

four year from 15 April 2014.

In respect of the options granted on 19 July 2013, the closing
price of the shares immediately before the date of grant was
HK$0.335.

In respect of the options exercised during the year ended 31
December 2022, the weighted average closing price of the shares
immediately before the date on which the options were exercised
was approximately HK$0.44.

The grantees who were consultants of the Group are Mr. Lin
Bifen and Mr. Tang Yuanyi. The share options were granted to
them so as to incentivise them to contribute to the research and
development activities of the Group.

Fair value of share options granted to employees determined
at the date of grant is expensed over the vesting period, with a
corresponding adjustment to the Group’s share option reserve.
For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no share
option expense with a corresponding adjustment recognised
in the Group’s share option reserve has been recognised.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

37.

B - BRBERARABERBEEABN - —=F
TtATHAERERE 2 SLZERAME - B
Z—EN A+ I AR EFEFFIEHF25%
2R HERE -

BR-ZFB—=FLATHhARLNERENS -
PRAD PR B R B HIRT MU /B /80,3358 7T

MEE-—T-_—F+-_A=1+—HLEFERTE
RREIRIE S - REEARETE B IR M &0
EFHRTTEL A0.4478TT °

MBEFERBE TR G E RN EBERNFAR
A o RRERDERES EHBRS RAEEN
MEEBEL TR -

RELBBFETREERE 2 BREL AT
EREEHX  WeRALE 2 BREEE
ENEERARE -HE_T-_=FR_F=-_=F
+-A=1+—HLLtFE  VEBRIENLIEER
fE IR R AR AR 2 PR 1 o

eI R

On 30 September 2020 (“Date of Adoption”), the Board
adopted the Share Award Scheme of issued shares of the
Company for the purposes of recognising the contributions
by certain employees, Directors, and consultants of the
Company (“Eligible Persons”) and giving incentives thereto
in order to retain them for the continuing operation and
development of the Group and attracting suitable personnel
for further development of the Group.

The total number of the shares to be awarded pursuant
to the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
total issued share capital of the Company as at the Date of
Adoption (i.e. 236,509,030 Shares). In any 12-month period,
the maximum number of shares which may be awarded to a
selected person shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
the Shares as at the Date of Adoption.
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37. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (coNTINUED)

e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

37. RO B E (@)

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the
Board pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme, the
Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term
of 10 years commencing on the Date of Adoption, after which
period no further awards will be granted but the provisions
of the Share Award Scheme shall remain in full force and
effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the vesting of
any awards granted prior to the expiration of the Share Award
Scheme, or otherwise to the extent as may be required in
accordance with the provisions of the Share Award Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, 41,630,000
shares of the Company were awarded under this share award
scheme, representing 1.94% of the issued shares of the
Company as at the vest date of the award. Approximately
HK$12,549,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, which was calculated by using the weighted
average closing price of the shares immediately before the
vest date of the award. As at 31 December 2023, no shares
were (2022: 41,630,000 shares) held under such scheme.

Details of the Share Award Scheme were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 30 September 2020.
The Share Award Scheme was subsequently terminated by
the Company on 13 March 2024.

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

RIEEE IR R T BN A BRI
B1E - TR SR B A R B A+
FRERIL AR o BT DE — SR 20
(RER T R BB RIE AT I
O E T S AT A RSB T = BB BRI R
TR BB X ER M A
R+ B SR B R B R E R R
i o

BE_Z-_=F+_A=+—HILEE AR
AIARIERS (7 42 B 51 2% H41,630,000% f% 17 42
B HERARRIRN RSB e BITRN
21.94% - RiREEmk R ERA12,549,000
I THARIR Bk 12BN SR B B HR AT &Y hnAE 15
BHWmESERS R=_TE=_=F1+=A
=+—08 ' BERZFETHAEEARKRN (=
T T4 1 41,630,0000%8%17)

Bfn BB ZHFEN AR R R —F
ZFEANR=ZTHEZRE - ARBEER-F
“HFE=AT=AERIR EEEE -

38. BEALRS

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management representing the
Directors’ remuneration as disclosed in note 10 during the
year was as follows:

Short-term benefits psh-E =]
Share award scheme f& 0 £EEhET 31
Post-employment benefits BB T

The remuneration of Directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the Group’s operating results, responsibilities and
performance of individuals and market trends.

FEEE AB ZHRM
RAFE  EMFI0FMEERRESHEHE
ZEBAEMESIT -
2023 2022
—E-=F T F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FibT
4,050 5,595
12,549 _
320 440
16,919 6,035

EENEBTHRABZMERFHEISKE
BAKERQEESE  BEAREZEERER
BEMGBERERE

RAMEEBERAR —F - =FFH
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R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

39. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

39. REZREE 2 R EYHK

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash

flows as cash flows from financing activities.

ATERBHINAKERASREY (BESRS
RIFRCEY) 2BE - RESHEABZAR

Euiﬁﬁﬁé/ﬁi B @2%1%

ENAKENEZRE

Bank Lease

borrowings liabilities Total

RITEE HEEE FH

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET FExT

At 1 January 2022 R-ZE—_—_F—HA—H 41,851 14,573 56,424

Financing cash flows MERSRE 205,088 (8,988) 196,100
Non-cash changes: R EEH :

Foreign exchange HINPE (11,099) (1,208) (12,307)
New lease entered/lease modified ]S KIEFTHE = 9,642 9,642
Early termination of lease contracts 12 F4& IETHE A 4 - (1,417) (1,417)
Interest expenses AESLZH 4,400 516 4916
At 31 December 2022 KRB —_F+-_A=+—H 240,240 13,118 253,358
Financing cash flows MERSRE (210,269) (5,589) (215,858)
Non-cash changes: R EE :

Foreign exchange 4SNP (1,707) (372) (2,079)
New lease entered RIS - 920 920
Early termination of lease contracts f2 R4 [FHHE & 4 - (3,611) (3,611)
Interest expenses AESLZH 4,736 237 4,973
At 31 December 2023 RZE-_=F+-_A=+—H 33,000 4,703 37,703

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

40. €T A

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group consists of net debt, which include
the bank borrowings and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves
and retained profits. The management reviews the capital
structure by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. In view of this, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue
of new debt or the redemption of existing debt. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged throughout the year.

EXERERE

AEBEEEEARAZ BNAEBBILERERDZ
T BRAKEE TS ERERNEE AR
BEEKE  YWRKSRRT KK EH -
AEBEZEAGBERERFR(RERRT
fEE) RARBHE ARGER (BEC TR
- RBEMREEN)  BEEEEHNELLRE
RHEeZEERNKAREEREREBZRER -
Fhit - AEEREBAE - BITHRIAR
BITHEIERRBES FERBEANGE
AEE s BERBNAFERERTE -

Categories of financial instruments SR T BRI
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Financial assets CRUEE
Financial assets at amortised cost R ER A RN S RMEE 1,168,494 657,603
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEFAERNEHEE 468 1,602
Equity instruments at FVTOCI A ES AR EEWERAT A 68,130 61,376
Financial liabilities Ea=NE
Amortised cost B 140,323 455,227

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, trade
and notes receivables and payables, other receivables
and payables, accruals, amounts due from associates,
consideration receivables, pledged bank deposits, short-
term bank deposits, bank balances and cash and bank
borrowings.

B B E IR R B REBUR

AEHZ T2 T ABREAFEF AR
E2HNEZBATE  HAFEFABRZES
BMEE  BURNENEZIEREZE  HbfE
WREMERK - BT ER - BUKHBE QR - &
WHRE - BEARITER - EHRTER R
THBRIREURIRITEE -

RAMEEBERAR —F - =FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)

40.

SRET A (&

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales
and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. Approximately 35% (2022: 47%) of the Group’s sales
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entity making the sale, whilst almost
16% (2022: 20%) of costs are denominated in the group
entity’s functional currency.

At the end of the reporting period, the major financial assets
and liabilities of the Group denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the respective group
entities are trade receivables, bank balances, pledged bank
deposits, short-term bank deposits, trade payables and bank
borrowings and the amounts are disclosed in notes 26, 27,
28 and 30 respectively.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency

denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
end of reporting period are as follows:

usD Sy

B EEBEER B SRR ()

ZETRT A ZFIENBRM P IR - 8%
ST AMEABRIARBRRBEZZERR
ZHERHEN T - EREEERERZERE
@+ DARECRBE IS A BUREVE B 1616

BEmE
TEBZRNBARIUINEHREITEE - S48%
EEHINERR o AEBHEREL35% (ZF
TIF 47%) KB EEETEENIGEE
BN EETE > MA16%(ZT——
20%) M AN AR B B RS I Be B ETHE -

RIRERR - NEENE B RETRIEEY
PN BEREHEN I ZEREERAEREK
BHRZ - RITEH  SEMRTER - EH
RITIFR - ENESERRARRTES - HEE
SR RIRMHIFE26 ~ 27 + 2830 #FE ©

RBER - NEBDINSHENEEEER
ERABENERERENT

Assets Liabilities
BE =R
2023 2022 2023 2022
—EBCo=E —T-o—F ZB=HE —T-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET THBT FTHET TATT

392,313

233,724 10,344 26,633
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SARBREME
For t;we year ended 31 December 2023
HE_ZT-_=F1+-A=1T—HILFE
40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED) 40. €@ T A (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies B EMREEN B ZEEBUR (8)
(CONTINUED)
Currency risk (conNTINUED) BmEpE ()
The management monitors foreign exchange exposure and FEECERINERR  WHERZREEL
will consider hedging significant foreign currency expose REARINER R
should the need arise.
Sensitivity analysis HRRZE T
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10% TR EBEHNARE X ETHEBE
(2022: 10%) increase and decrease in RMB against USD. 10% (ZZFE==F : 10%) IGRE » 10% (=
10% (2022: 10%) represents management’s assessment of T——4F : 10%)RKREIEE AT INEE X
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. AIRE RIS IEES) - RESITEBRFLIN
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign EEHERAREEEEIEE - WAEXRHRI0%
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their ZEF L 10%) EBEEN RS ERAR
translation at the end of the reporting period for a 10% (2022: HEEEHFARE - LTHEERRARKENE
10%) change in foreign currency rates. A positive number TCAE M E S FE B2 (B 10% FOBR FR 44 0 A58 00, Bk
below indicates increase in post-tax profit/decrease in post- MEBERD - ARBHETHEIORHEFR
tax loss where RMB weakening 10% against USD for the RIBRFL & CaF) BIBR s 2T o
both years. For a 10% strength of RMB against USD, the
impact on the post-tax (profit) loss for the year is as follow.
2023 2022
—E-=E —E-fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FA&T
Increase in post-tax profit BTt 1% 0 A1 N 31,893 —
Decrease in post-tax loss FRE 12 s EIR - 17,209
Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure on outstanding USD Kiet - FZAREAEBRBEHRUETIHEZARE
bank balances, pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits BIRITRS - EEMRITER - REBRITER
receivables, payables and bank borrowings of the Group at the FEN R PR RRIBE A RERT TR B 2 B -
end of the reporting period.
Credit risk and impairment assessment =B B R B E
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade AEENEERRERKREEBESERLE
and notes receivables, other receivables, consideration &~ Htb IR - BIRAK(E - B E QR
receivables, amounts due from associates, short-term bank BB~ HRTTEA - DR RITESRARIR
deposits, pledged bank deposits and bank balances. 1T458R ©
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event R-E_=FN_TE_—_F+-_A=+—8 "
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as AREFBREFHRGEERBTREEITMMEEDER
at 31 December 2023 and 2022 in relation to each class of SRMEEMBAI 2 HZAEERE » BZEE
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of these ERGEMBEIRRAT R ZEREE
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
BANEEESRAR —T 455 247
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)

40.

SRET A (&

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)

Trade receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals. Before accepting any new
customer, the Group uses an internal credit scoring system
to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed
to customers are reviewed every year. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of IFRS 9 on trade balances individually or based
on provision matrix. In this regard, the Directors of the Group
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risks with exposure
limited to certain customers. As at 31 December 2023, five
(2022: five) customers amounting to HK$35,999,000 (2022:
HK$65,367,000) comprised approximately 74% (2022:
89%) of the Group’s trade receivables. These customers
are within the same mobile phone technology industry and
wireless communication modules industry in the PRC. The
management closely monitors the subsequent settlement of
the customers. In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Notes receivables

For notes receivables, the management makes periodic
individual assessment on the recoverability of notes
receivables based on historical settlement records, past
experience, and also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. The management believes that there are no
significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since
initial recognition and the Group provided impairment based
on 12m ECL. For the year ended 31 December 2023 and
2022, the Group assessed the ECL for notes receivables are
insignificant and thus no loss allowance is recognised.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

B EEBEER B SRR ()

FEm R B E TG ()

JEW B 5k

SEEREEERR  AREEEECRIK—
AR FEEEFERBEREERM - K
MERFEPR - AEERABARERFRR
RAMEEEPHNEREE  YREFPHEER
BERE - REPFNRBERFIDSFETRE - &
SECHEHEMERER - AERREGRR
HMEKZWEIEE - o AEERESHEE
RIERBRF SR EEANFIRSRIEBE
EEBEEUETTER SR BB ERRERET
e BUME  AREEERR  A5EWE
ERBEAXERD o

AEEGFEEERBREFHER  BBREFR
ETEP R-_E-_=F+-_H=+—8
BRAG(CTE-_—_F: AR)BEFNRES
35,999,000/ T (ZE = 4 : 65,367,000/
o0) B AEBHENRE SRR T74% (ZF
ZIZF 1 89%) c ZERFPURFPERZNS
BEERREIMITEREGRBMERTE - &
BEERYERZERFARIEE SN - #
s @ EERAEAEBEZZERRE ARG
1R -

FEN

REWRZENS  SEERBEBEEERT
BERBIARAERARES S AELETES
NGB B R R R R 2 AT I Bl M #E1T E AR A
AEHE - BEERAEZERAZEERR AW
IATESR AR BB E LN - AEBERIF12(A
AEHEEBETEELRERE - BHET
CTEFRIE S+ A=+—HIEFE -
AEEFEREKREE 2 BHEEEBRAMTR
3 UL IR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

40. @ T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)
Consideration receivables

For consideration receivables, the management of the Group
makes periodic individual assessment on the recoverability
of these amounts based on the historical settlement records,
past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. The management assessed the loss
allowance based on 12m ECL, and HK$31,908,000 (2022:
HK$1,111,000) loss allowance is recognised during the year.

Bank balances, short-term bank deposits and pledged bank
deposits

The credit risk on bank balances, short-term bank deposits
and pledged bank deposits are limited because the
counterparties are majority banks/financial institutions
with high credit ratings assigned by external credit-rating
agencies.

The Group uses 12m ECL to perform the assessment under
ECL on bank balances, short-term bank deposits and
pledged bank deposits individually based on the average loss
rate by reference to credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies. The Group assessed the ECL for
bank balances, short-term bank deposits and pledged
bank deposits were immaterial. Thus no loss allowance is
recognised during the year.

Amounts due from associates

The Group regularly monitors the business performance of
the associates. The Group’s credit risks in these balances
are mitigated through the value of the assets held by these
entities and the power to participate the relevant activities of
these entities. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group assessed the ECL for amounts due from associates
and reversed loss allowance of HK$11,650,000 (2022: loss
allowance of HK$16,499,000) is recognised.

Other receivables

For other receivables, the management makes periodic
individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. The Group provided impairment based
on 12m ECL. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group assessed the ECL for other receivables and reversed
loss allowance of HK$806,000 (2022: loss allowance of
HK$4,441,000) is recognised.

Bt R B Y B RS ER ()

15 B /mpR R R E I ()

JEWHIE

MEWRRENS  AEBEEEREBALEH
R BERBRIUAREGIER BB Y i ATiE
M2 MEMEE R ERZ S 008 2 ] Y| 1
EITTEHERF S - BEERER2EAEHAE
BEERLERES  RNAFERRZEEE
1%/531,908,000%8 7 (=& = =4 : 1,111,000
/ETE)

IRTTAEER  FEHIIRTT A R EAFFIRT T30

HRR BT RS B AEFIINMEE T RS
ARERRIFZRIT S REE - ERITE
8 EHRTERREERRITERZEER
BRBMR o

AEBL2EBRBREETREBOEETR - A
1218 BB E B BB RE T BB RS IRITLE
#  MERITE R R EEIFRITER D BT
%Eﬁﬂ%%!éiﬁéimé AEBETHERE R

s MERITHER L EKIFRITERATE
ﬁﬁﬁfﬂ’éﬁalTiﬁ At - ANFFE I R
Eria R o

TR LN BB
NEBTFHERBLNA) 2 EBKRIR - AEH
RZEHERZEFERRBBZSERBEEZ
EEBEIZHEZEERAMEE 2R
WoHE—"T - —F+— H*Jr BILtFEE -
RNEB G EKRHE QR KRBT HEREZES
8 WHER ﬂéﬁaﬁé%%’é@u 650,000/ 7T (=
T — — 4 [F5I85EHE16,499,000/8 7T) ©

B E

MEMEWZRIENS @ TEBRBEBALERD

8% BAKBUANASIER BBE T2 AiiE T
TE B K E 1 A RHE H e U ERIE 2 AT W B 1 3
TEHEBIFEE - $%Iﬁﬁmﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁ
BEEEEHRERE B#E_T_=F1+_A8
=r—ElIEEEE - $El&ﬁﬁﬁﬁw RIBZ
ﬁ%@“%% I e 5 18 1B 4 484 [21806,000
BIL(ZTZ_F : FEREL,441,000%8
JL) °
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R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)

. EET A (&

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)
The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

comprises the following categories:

B EEBEER B SRR ()

FEm R B E TG ()
AEENABEERRERTHEEATER
Al

Internal credit rating Description

RBEETR AR

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not
have any past-due amounts

{iVElr RHEAMBHRBRE - B EERHFE

Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually
settle after due date

BELE ERAEFRIABRER  HESRIEBER
ATEE

Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk
since initial recognition through information developed
internally or external resources or overdue by 180 days
or above

A&t FERBEEARENHAIINIERERO BRI S

RIEBEEEN  SBH180B A

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired
or overdue by 360 days or more

EB BREBFRAEELREERETBHC0BHN L

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery

WisH BREBERARBABABREN R - MASETE

WEFRER AT

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

Trade receivables

P B 5 R

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired

EnBSESEERR

—~YEEERE

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired

EnBHRAEEER

—~YEERRE

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired

tnRSEEEERR

—~LREERE

Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired

EnBHRAEEER

—fEERE

Amount is written off

SRCEMEA

Other financial assets

HiteMEE

12m ECL

REABRHEERR

12m ECL

REABRHEERR

Lifetime ECL -
not credit-impaired

taRSESEERR

—UEEERE
Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired
FnBREREEEE
—(=ERE

Amount is written off

SRCEMEA
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-T-=F+-A=+-ALFE

40. €@ T B (4])

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
Group’s financial assets, contract assets and finance lease
receivables which are subject to ECL assessment:

Bank balances and cash
RITEBRRRS

Short-term bank deposits
RERITER

Pledged bank deposits
BERRITRER

Trade receivables
- goods and services
FEWE 2R
—EmR k%

Notes receivables

ies

Other receivables

EfbEYsA

Noffgs
k3

27

27

27

26
26

26
26

26
26

External
credit rating

HBEEIR

A (Aa3-A2
A (Aa3-A2
B (Baa2
B (Baa2

TER

A (Aa2-A3)
A (Aa2-A3)
B (Baa2-Bal)
B (Baa2-Bal)

N/A
AER
N/A
TER

Internal
credit rating

R EETR

N/A
vl
N/A
AR

N/A
i
N/A
i

N/A
Byl
N/A
AR

(Note b)
(Hritb)
Low risk
el
Watch list
BRyE
Doubtful
Ik
Loss

BiE

N/A
TiEf
N/A
&R

(Note a)
Wiita)
Loss

B

B BRI i B AR BRI ()

= E/m R R B E T4 ()
TRFNAEBBETHRBEEHRNENS
RMEE AHNEENEBUREHENEER

A .
oo
PR

2023 2022
—EC=F —E-CF
Gross carrying  Gross carrying
12m or lifetime ECL amount amount
L2ERRE ARSI EEESE REAE REEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fhr Ti5n
12m ECL ‘ 22,070 40,305
LA AREEERR
12m ECL 52,149 151,509
RAARSEERS
74,219 191,814
12m ECL ‘ 222,794 47891
A AREEERR
12m ECL 470,885 120,231
RAARSEERSR
693,679 168,122
12m ECL ‘ - 148934
LA AREEERR
12m ECL 22,000 16912
AARSEERR
22,000 165,846
Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 13,799 21,301
EaRBRRREREE BEER)
Lifetime ECL (not credit impaire;d) 31,982 54,452
EnRERREEFE(LREERE)
Lifetime ECL (not credit impaired) 5,019 1,712
EnRRRREEER(TREERE)
Lifetime ECL (not credit impaire;d) - 3,99
EnRERREEFELREERE)
Credit-impaired 36,120 30,526
EER
86,920 111,986
12m ECL 33,427 2,674
12ERABHEEER
12m ECL ‘ 390 2,006
PAARHEESR
33,817 4,680
12m ECL 12,711 8313
12EABHEEER
Credit impaired 1,504 4,493
EERE
14,215 12,806

RAMEEBERAR —F - =FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED) 40. €M I A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies B E R EEN B EEBUR (F)
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED) =B R R E E S ()
2023 2022
—EC=E “E-CF
External Internal Gross carrying  Gross carrying
Notes credit rating credit rating ~ 12m or lifetime ECL amount amount
MEE HBEETR ABEETR 12EARELERESNEESE EEAE REEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FhR TEr
Amounts due from associates 26 N/A (Note a) 12m ECL ‘ - 21,675
AN ] 26 TR Wi#a)  12ERBHEESR
Consideration receivables 26 N/A (Note a) 12m ECL ‘ 31,908 -
IR E 26 TiEA Wi#a)  12EABHEEER
Credit impaired - 43,445
RERE
Notes: it -
a. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group a. RABEERREERENS @ NEEERBHER
uses past due information to assess whether credit risk has HEEERR B VS ERERTREEIEM

increased significantly since initial recognition.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-T-=F+-A=+-ALFE

40. €@ T B (4])

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)

Notes: (coNTINUED)

a. (CONTINUED)
2023
Other receivables FEUCEL b BR 5K
Consideration receivables FEWRAE
Amounts due from associates LB R B RRIE
2022
Other receivables FEUCEL fth BR S
Consideration receivables FEWRAE
Amounts due from associates LB 1 BRI
b. For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified

approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL. Except for debtors with significant outstanding balances or
credit-impaired, the Group determines the expected credit losses
on these items by using a provision matrix, grouped by past-due
status.

B BRI i B AR BRI ()

= E/m R R B E T4 ()

Hiet - (&)

a. (#8)

—BC-=F
Past due Not past due Total
bt 3t Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
1,504 12,711 14,215
31,908 - 31,908
4,399 - 4,399

—E-_fF
Past due Not past due Total
BHR S abt Foby
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
2,743 10,063 12,806
11,105 32,340 43,445

= 21,675 21,675

b. PEEE HERRM = - ANEEE KA R R R
ERRESRELEEEmBREAEEER
MEREE - RABEAREESRAEERE
MEB A - AEERBIE RN D AR EE
EEEEZSHANRBEEER -

RAMEEBERAR —F - =FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED) 40.

SRET A (&

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)

Notes: (coNTINUED)

(CONTINUED)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group uses
debtors’ ageing to assess the impairment for its customers
because these customers consist of a large number of
small customers with common risk characteristics that are
representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due
in accordance with the contractual terms. The following table
provides information about the exposure to credit risk for trade
receivables which are assessed based on provision matrix as at 31
December 2023 within lifetime ECL (not credit impaired). Debtors
with significant outstanding balances or credit impaired with gross
carrying amounts of HK$46,397,000 and HK$26,724,000 (2022:
HK$72,152,000 and HK$18,533,000) respectively as at 31
December 2023 were assessed individually.

Gross carrying amount

Current (not past due) BNER (R HF)

1 - 60 days past due BE1E60K

61 — 180 days past due #EI61 = 180K
181 — 365 days past due #EI181 2365k

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

B EEBEER B SRR ()

FEm R B E TG ()

Hiz : (&)

b.

)

EAAEBEEERREEN—H5  A%EEA
BHEANRRTEEESORE - DHEHRZSE
BREEENEZAEHRRARBSENNES - KF
BFIRBA NIRRT FTA B AFIEMEE ] o T
RIBFEBERARKE SRR EERRNER - 2%
EWESEZRE-_TE_=F+-_A=1t—H4%
BB AEEERE R EERE) AR B EE
REEITRIE - AREEHNR _T=_=F+_A
=t+—AAREAKREERAERREEREREL
B85 5l /46,397,000 7T 5 26,724,000 7T (=
T = —4 : 72,152,000/ 7t % 18,533,000/ 7T)
BOERS AT TIERTAS o

FREAE
2023
—EB-=F
Average Trade
loss rate receivables
FIIEIEE BEWE SRR
HK$’000
FET
9,543
1.40% 1,603
1.67% 664
100.00% 1,989
13,799




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-T-=F+-A=+-ALFE

40. €@ T B (4])

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)

Notes: (coNTINUED)

B BRI i B AR BRI ()

= E/m R R B E T4 ()

Hiet - (&)

b. (CONTINUED) b. (€)
Gross carrying amount (CONTINUED) FREAE (&)
2022
—E-—F
Average Trade
loss rate receivables
FHEE R FEWE F R
HK$'000
FAT
Current (not past due) BNER (R Hp) 13,010
1 - 60 days past due BHI1E60K 1.45% 1,056
61 — 180 days past due #HI61 =180k 2.31% 768
181 — 365 days past due #HI1812365K 28.13% 6,467
21,301

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors and
are adjusted for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed
by management to ensure relevant information about specific
debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group reversed
impairment allowance of HK$6,238,000 (2022: Nil) for trade
receivables, based on the provision matrix is recognised in profit
or loss and an impairment allowance of HK$4,393,000 were
made on debtors with significance balances and credit impaired

debtors respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group provided an
impairment allowance of HK$6,562,000, reversal of impairment
allowance of HK$1,658,000 and an impairment allowance
HK$8,337,000 were made on debtors with significant balances
and credit impaired debtors respectively.

HEHEREREBEEB AR FHANELBRENRMG
&t W BREBTBERARE AR SR AT
ARMEHRE - EBESCHENIMA  UREREHE
TERTB ARIERI A RHRITE#T

BE_Z_=F+_A=+—HLFE REBEEE
e it B W 5 B B 1) 2 Rk (B 146,238, 00078 7T (= F
T T ERNESRER - UHAFERERNEK
BRI AE O BB I BR R BIVE R (B8 4,393,00078

JT °

BE-Z-_—_F+-A=1T—HIELFE  FKEER
{EF156,562,000/& 7T+ Wt B G B ALK IR R
BB EEUAR 5 BII18 B B 5 1,658,000/ 7T & 1F
R (B #88,337,0004 7T ©

RAMEEBERAR —F - =FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED) 40. €M I A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies B E R EEN B EEBUR (F)

(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED) =B R R ETS ()

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL TREVIERBREOEREWE 5 IR FRIE L T
that has been recognised for trade receivables under the REDAPEREEREZ E -

simplified approach.

Lifetime ECL (not Lifetime ECL
credit impaired) (credit impaired) Total
£ miEHEY £ miBHRES
FEF#R FEF#E
(EE|EERIE) (EERE) #sr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT THT FTHT
As at 1 January 2022 R-E-_—_F—f—H 2,012 25,278 27,290
— Impairment losses recognised —BERERREEE 6,562 8,337 14,899
— Impairment losses reversed - BRERESE - (1,658) (1,658)
Exchange adjustments I 1 3% (237) (1,431) (1,668)
As at 31 December 2022 R-ZE-_—F+-A=1+—H 8,337 30,526 38,863
— Impairment losses recognised —-ERRREEE - 4,393 4,393
— Impairment losses reversed —BRERESE (6,238) - (6,238)
Exchange adjustments ke 78 1,201 1,279
As at 31 December 2023 R-_ZE-=%+-A=1+—H 2,177 36,120 38,297
The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is EEBHBERNEBEAEREN R R EE
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial BRI FEHR - BIARE B S HisEE R E SRR
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, (UAREEA/E) - EHMEENERE 5 RN E
whichever occurs earlier. None of the trade receivables that AX BN BB TIES

have been written off is subject to enforcement activities.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED) 40. €@ T A ()

B B B Y B AR EEEUR ()

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)

The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances
that has been recognised for other receivables (note 26).

=B R R EE A ()

TREFICE s EA YK

2 $1hk (FifaE2e) -

TRVEH HERR EY B 1R

Lifetime ECL
(not credit Lifetime ECL
impaired) (credit impaired) Total
EmBHES EanBAHEH
FEBIR FEBIR
(A EEERE) (EERE) #Er
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FHET FExT
As at 1 January 2022 W-_ZE_-_—_F—H—H 1,200 1,454 2,654
— Impairment losses recognised —BERREEE 1,288 3,153 4,441
— Exchange adjustments —[E R (47) (114) (161)
As at 31 December 2022 RZZT-_—F+=A
=+—H 2,441 4,493 6,934
— Impairment losses recognised — B ERRE
(reversed) &8 (B ) 1,663 (2,469) (806)
— Exchange adjustments — [ 5 A (21) 31 10
As at 31 December 2023 R-ZE-_=F+=A
=r—18 4,083 2,055 6,138
The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances TRETD B E UL E N 7 ZIEH R EE 2
that has been recognised for amounts due from associates. YHEE o
Lifetime ECL
(not credit Lifetime ECL
impaired) (credit impaired) Total
WAMENE L£oHAHES
FEBR FEBIR
(A EEERE) (EERE) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FET FAT
As at 1 January 2022 R-ZTE-_—_4F—HF—H = = =
— Impairment losses recognised —BIERREEE 16,499 - 16,499
— Exchange adjustments — [ 5 (596) - (596)
As at 31 December 2022 RZE__F+_A
=+—H 15,903 - 15,903
— Transfer to credit-impaired —EBE R EERE (15,903) 15,903 =
— Impairment losses reversed — B R RIREEE = (11,650) (11,650)
— Exchange adjustments — [ 5 = 146 146
As at 31 December 2023 R-_ZE—_=%+=-A
== - 4,399 4,399

BRMRKEEERAR T —FFH 257
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=t—ALFE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)

40. @ T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (coNTINUED)

The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances

B EEBEER B SRR ()

FEm R B E TG ()
MRS EsLEKRARE L ER N EREE

that has been recognised for consideration receivables. R
Lifetime ECL
(credit impaired)
4 ARTE i B 18
(EERE)
HK$'000
FAT
As at 1 January 2022 RZEZ—F—H—H =
— Impairment recognised — BERERRE 1,111
— Exchange adjustments — [ R SR (40)
As at 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+=ZA=+—H 1,071
— Impairment recognised — BEERRE 31,908
— Exchange adjustments —[EH (401)
As at 31 December 2023 R-BE-_=F+-A=+—H 32,578
Liquidity risk ﬁﬁﬁfﬂ/ﬁ
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors EERDECRBRIE  AEBEERRMER
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed RekBReFEBEEREEER AT EHK

adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The directors consider that liquidity risk is limited after
considering the future cash flows of the Group in the
foreseeable future, including the repayment schedule of
bank borrowings as discussed above and the short-term
liabilities which are required to be repaid within three
months from the end of the reporting period. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

o LENASEEERS  LEERSRE
KB E EEESERRITEEER
VARERTT & BN ©

ERE 'J$EIETEH%KE’JEEZKL%%W(ME
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RE=ZEANEENEHRER) 21& - EFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

40.

e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

LRI A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (conTINUED)

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans
with a repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of the banks
choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

B R B B TR Y B AR B UK ()

REEZE R (H)
TRHAJIAEESRBENSRTAHNEMA -
ZRDVBBEAEETRAINNRERRAZE
BEENAMRRSRERE - A8ME - Mt
FREKERGFIORITER - TwiRITEE
TRERNNEE R - DR ARRFEE
RfEMERME - RITESRBENIHAR
RHIEER B HME

Carrying
Weighted On demand Total amount at
average  or less than 1 3 months undiscounted 31 December
interest rate month  1-3 months to 1 year 1-5years cash flows 2023
R=B==F
T8
BRERY AERRERE =1-H
MEFIRIE HMIER 18388 3fiAZ1E 125% 2] ZREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Thn TEn TEn TEn Tén

2023 3
Trade and notes payables R EBERFRER - 77,920 - - - 77,920 77920
Other payables and accruals ~ EftERERZRESBR - 29,403 - - - 29,403 29,403
Bank borrowings RS 2.7% 2,756 5,525 25,004 - 33,285 33,000
Lease liabiltties sk 3.16% 216 647 1,726 2,299 4,888 4,703
110,295 6,172 26,730 2,299 145,496 145,026

RAMEEBERAR —F - =FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)

40.

SRET A (&

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (conTiNUED)

B EEBEER B SRR ()

REEZ/E R (H)

Carrying
Weighted On demand Total amount at
average  orlessthan 1 3 months undiscounted 31 December
interest rate month  1-3months to 1 year 1-5years cash flows 2022
+-A
EEYE] AERRERE S
Il B2y ke SREA 1238 3EAZIE 155% &% ZREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Thn T ThT T Thn
2022 —E-CF

Trade and notes payables ~ EFESEIRZE - 157,160 = - - 157,160 157,160
Other payables and accruals — Eft BRI RESBR - 57,827 = - - 57827 57,827
Bank borrowings RfEE 2.28% 47,040 16,864 178,569 - 2473 240,240
Lease liabilties gk 330% 593 1,778 4741 6,651 13,763 13,118
262,620 18,642 183310 6,601 471,223 463,345

Interest rate risk FIE 7 B

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to its
certain other receivables fixed rate consideration receivables,
pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits and bank
balances, the Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate consideration receivables, bank
balances and bank borrowings.

The Group currently does not have a cash flow interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management closely monitors
its exposure to future cash flow risk as a result of change
on market interest rate and will consider hedging changes
in market interest rates should the need arise. A 100
basis points (2022: 100 basis points) change represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

AREBRFENXELREREELE T HbRRK
B BEFIREKRAE - S EMRITER
RERITFRNRITESRER - AEEREE
FEWARME - RITHEBRRIBITIEEAZ AR
KRG

AEEBRFWEIB SR RERERR - R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

e PR RER M

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-F-=F+-A=+BLFE

40. €@ T B (4])

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk (conTINUED)

Sensitivity analysis

The management considers that the Group’s exposure to
future cash flow risk on variable-rate bank balances as a
result of the change of market interest rate is insignificant
and thus variable-rate bank balances are not included in the
sensitivity analysis.

If interest rate had been 100 basis points (2022: 100
basis points) higher/lower for variable-rate consideration
receivables and bank borrowings, and all other variables
were held constant, the impact to the Group’s post-tax (profit)
loss for the year is as follows:

BRI & AR
BRI 1R S TRIE N

Decrease in post-tax profit
Increase in post-tax loss

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Price risk

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group is exposed to
other price risk through its listed equity securities measured
at FVTPL and unlisted equity securities measured at
FVTOCI. The Group also invested in certain unquoted equity
securities for long term strategic purposes which had been
designated as FVTOCI.

B R B B TR Y B AR B UK ()

Em 5z ()
BUEE ST
EﬁFw% N5 [ [ T 95 A 2
ERRAR 2 KRB L RER
F”ﬁﬂﬁ@%@wﬁﬂ

BB [A)F RIR
A - EIE - 8

fﬁfﬁ&%ﬂﬂlﬁﬂﬂaﬁ&fifﬂﬁhEI’H"IJTJ:H/
TFE100fEERS (ZF = =4 : 100fEEH) -
e EMEERTTE E\'Jﬂ$§%l¢ﬁqﬁ%ﬁ
& &) BETZENT

2023 2022
—EC-=HE B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHT
248 -

- 1,732

ERERR - ARFERERM AL ARRKRER
ERMA - BERED T TR KRE TR

B o

1E&/m R
RIBE—_=FR-TE-_—F+-_A=+—8 -
$§IIEEQ¥EJAE SRt 22 ETRRAR

BHEEAHEF AR CEEKRTEZIFE
meZJS oM m L EAERRR - NEB TS
RIERANKRES TERERARES - HE
BERBAHEF AR bR EES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)

40.

SRET A (&

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Price risk (conTINUED)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period. If the price of the respective investment in unlisted
equity securities measured at FVTOCI had been 10% higher/
lower, assuming all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s other comprehensive income (net of tax) for the
year ended 31 December 2023 would increase/decrease by
HK$5,110,000 (2022: HK$4,603,000). If the prices of the
respective investment in listed equity securities measured at
FVTPL had been 10% (2022: 10%) higher/lower, assuming
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s the post-
tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2023 would
increase/decrease by HK$39,000 (2022: post-tax loss
decrease/increase by HK$134,000).

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets.

The Group’s equity instruments at FVTOCI and financial
assets and FVTPL are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value, the Group
uses market observable data to the extent it is available.

Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
the Valuer to perform the valuation. The chief financial
officer of the Group works closely with the Valuer to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model. The chief financial officer reports the findings to the
Directors of the Company at the end of the reporting period
to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value.
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B EEBEER B SRR ()

1B % (48)

HEZE T

NI Z BURIE DT TR IR R B R P 2 A
RERRARET - MREAFEFTAELMS
st E 2 EMBRAELFNEBERERN
B EF/TER10% - MATA E 8 &S
T AEEBREZT_=F+=-A=+—
Bt FERE M 2mEmUES BRELE) 538, R
425,110,000/ 7 (Z = = =4 : 4,603,000/
JT) ° MR AFEF ABSHEZ EHRA
BHWHEBRENER LA TEI0% (ZF
ZZF 1 10%) - MREFTA E M2 S AT
B AREREHE-_ZE-_=F+-_HA=+—HIt
FE R BR B & 5 F 538 0,8 4> 39,0007 7T
—E- & BEBEERD,180134,000
BT °

SMTAZATEIE
AHERUEBARENAEETASREE
AFEZER -

AMBHEMS - ARENRAFEF AR
E2EREHNBRATARZAFEFARENE
MEERRNTEE - NMEFTATER - A%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-T-=F+-A=+-ALFE

40. €@ T B (4])

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(CONTINUED)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

Fair value as
Fair value at hierarch
RATREZATE AFER
31 December
+ZA=t-H
2023 2022
—§-= 2
HK$'000 HK$000
Thn Thr
Financial assets
SHEE
1. Equity instruments at FVTOCI - 7,307 4368 Level 3
unlisted equity security (10%,
equity interest in a private entity
Estabhshed
f“?@fAHMQEWm =0
ZBAIA B
-#tmh$ﬁﬁ( RAERER
THRLAE FZN%%)
- unlisted equﬁysecun (14.97% 26,450 25872 Level 3
equity interest in a private entity
established in PRC)
3 LA (- B AR 524
UHHAEEZ1497%0KiE)
- Unlisted equity security (2.1997% 34,373 31,136 Level 3
equity interest in a private entity
established in PRC)
3t ERARS (R AR =4
UHTLAEE22197%fiE)
68,130 61,376
2. Financial assets at FVTPL 468 1,602 Level 1
- listed equity security "
F“?E%AgﬁZQﬂéé )

ERMT A2 A PEFE(E

FEFZEERER L FEIBZEHEEZ

AFHE

AEBBOTRMEEDN SRS WRIZAFE

FTE o TRIBERERE

SZETREER

$ﬁ2ﬁ

ECLERAER 2 AERT REAZRE) -

KRB R ¥@Jz%k@f27ﬁ$ﬁf#”
FEFENEZATERBEER(—E=R)Z

EHL o
Significant Relationship of
unobservable unobservable inputs
Valuation technique(s) to fair value
ind e i) Ekﬂ%ﬁ FTESHAR
HERNRBEEAE ENTENBE

Adjusted net assets approach - the Adjusted net asset
book value of assets and liabilities of the  value of the investee
investee are adjusted to their fair value.

BEBFEEL —BRANZAER  BRENYZ
AENRREREEALYE - (eI

Adjusted net assets approach - the Adjusted net asset
book value of assets and liabilities of the ~ value of the investee
investee are adjusted to their fair value.

BERREE. — ﬁ%éﬁzéé& YA
ARNEHEAEEALYE - L

Adjusted net assets approach - the Adjusted net asset
book value of assets and liabilities of the ~ value of the investee
investee are adjusted to their fair value.

BREF Eﬁ—ﬁ&552§§& B
BEMEAEREREAATE BELAERE
Quoted bid prices in an active markets. NA
- ERTTERE NER

Anincrease in the
adjusted net assets,
holding all other variables
constant would increase
the carrying amount.
Rl ]
i E ﬂﬁ

i

%@E @ﬂ
Anincrease in the
adjusted net assets,
holding all other variables
constant would increase
the carrying amount,
h%ﬁﬁfxz
1% w Al iE

%@@EEH
Anincrease in the
adjusted net assets,
holding all other variables
constant would increase
the carrying amount.

%%ﬁ,@
RETE |
ﬁé@ﬁﬁﬂ
BEESEN -

E

Ol
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R SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-F-=6+-A=+ALEE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED) 40.

SRET A (&

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(CONTINUED)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (cONTINUED)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

As at 1 January 2022 RZEZ—F—H—
Purchased BE

Total gains in other comprehensive income Hib2mEmies 2 K
Redemption (e

Exchange adjustment bE 5, EE

As at 31 December 2022 RIB_—F+=
Total gains in other comprehensive income H2mies 2 I,
Redemption fE [

Exchange adjustment T 5, S EE

As at 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+=

Included in other comprehensive income is a gain of
HK$10,618,000 (2022: HK$630,000) relating to unlisted
equity securities classified as equity instruments at FVTOCI
held at the end of the current reporting period and is
reported as changes of “assets revaluation reserve”.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

The management of the Group estimates the fair value
of its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost using the discounted cash flows analysis.

The management of the Group considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their fair values.
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EMTAZAVERE @

FEEZREEZRERNFETEZEHEES
A FE ()
RN HEFEZHE

Equity instruments
at FVTOCI
BAFETA
Hib 2 mEmiss
ZRATHE
HK$'000

FET

H 63,112
6,972

AR 630
(3,884)
(5,454)

A=+—H 61,376

TARER 10,618
(2,668)
(1,196)

A=+—8H 68,130

Hib 2 EK 2 EKZ£10,618,0008 T (= F
Z =4 : 630,000/7T)  TiE RO ERERAR
EHRBERATFEFEA LA 2R
ARTEZBRAES  WEHKAIEES(GHE]

AE@IHFZEEREEL L FEGBZETHME
ERZBEEZ A FE

AEBEEEEEMBPRASRENNT @ EFHE
N HR A B2 ERMEERERABEZAF
B

AEBERERR  REA IR R AR
RAANRZEREER eRBEZREEEE
RNHERE
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41. TBEMBA R ZFHE

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 I

December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up

incorporation/ share capital/

registration registered capital
Narme of subsidiaries HRRIL/ER BRIRER
WEAR 2 AERLY R/ RER
SIM Technology Group (BVI) 13 October 2004 Ordinary shares

Limited British Virgin Islands USD12,233

("BvI") LRR12233%FT

“TERETAT=H

AERAES(HBRLE

gl)

Sunrise Electronic Industry Limited 17 December 1999 Ordinary shares
REETIXARAR Samoa USD2,002

“NANETZATER  EBR2000%T

EEDEHS
Shanghai Sunrise Simcom? 9 November 1993 Registered capital
HERERRR The PRC RMB200,000,000

“hAZE+-ARR AR

H AE200,000,0007
Shanghai Simcom? 5 December 2002 Registered capital
LERRE The PRC USD5,000,000

“EE-ET-ARR 0 EfHER

w 5,000,000%7
Shanghai Suncom Logistics Limited" 23 September 2003 Registered capital
DEEREESTERAR) The PRC USD400,000

) oy = 51

w 400,000
Suncom International Holdings 12 January 2004 Ordinary share

Limited BVI uso1
“TIRE-ACR LERIER
EERAES

N—E_=FR_F-_—_F+-_A=+—HR
NRIZHBARFBUT ¢

Proportion of nominal value of
share capital/registered capital
held by the Company

ANAMERAEE/RERZ LA
Directly Indirectly

ER ]
2023 2022 2023
“E-cE -E-CF CEBCCE

Principal activities
IERH

2022

5 °F

100%

100% - - Investment holding

RERR

100% 100%  Investment holding

RESR

100% 100%  Manufacturing of handsets and
0T terminals business, Electronics
manufacturing services business and
Property management in the PRC

ERELEFRRIBALARS
STRERBHEREN
RyEREERE

100% 100%  Design and development of handsets
and 0T terminals business in the
PRC

ERERSR AR TRR RS
Binsh

100% 100%  Procurement, outsourcing, sales and
marketing of the Group’s products
and provides logistics services in the
PRC

TERERE M HEREREASE
EmRREmi RIS

Investment holding

RASK

100% 100%

BRMRKEEERAR T —FFH 265
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

41. TEME AT 2F1F @

Name of subsidiaries

WEAREH

Shanghai Speedcomm
Technology Limited
LERERRRGERAR

Max Vision Limited

FERAA

Max Vision (Shanghai) Limited”
FENET (DR ARAR!

Shanghai SIM Technology Limited®
RARE (D8) BRAF!

Shenyang SIM Technology Limited?
SRR (LR ARAR?

Shenyang SIM Real Estate Limited
(“SYRE")

RAEZ (tF) BRARY

([RAEX))

Shenyang SIM Simcom*
MERABEE

Sunrise Simcom Electronic (Tong
cheng) Limitec*
RARREET (R BRAR

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
AL/ R
REREE

16 November 2005

The PRC
“STRF-AHAA
e

17 September 2003
Hong Kong
ZEE-EnATHA
(3

8 December 2003

The PRC
“E2-F+-ANH
e

2 August 2006

The PRC
Z25EN\AZA
hE

25 October 2007

The PRC
“E3tETA-TEA
e

8 November 2007

The PRC
“ERHET-ANA
Lz

24 July 2008

The PRC
“EZN\ELA-TRA
HE

7 September 2020
The PRC
“$-TERALA
ke

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

registered capital
BETRAR

R/ RER

Registered capital
RMB7,500,000
Rl
ARET 500,000

Ordinary shares
HK$2
LERoAET

Registered capital
USD200,000

HHiER
200,000% 7

Registered capital
RMB40,000,000

AR
ARE40,000,0007T

Registered capital
USD10,000,000

iHiER
1000000057

Registered capital
USD4,300,000

iHiER
4300 000£ T

Registered capital
RMB30,000,000

AR
ARE30,000,00070

Registered capital
RMB50,000,000

&R
AR¥50,0000007T

Proportion of nominal value of
share capitallregistered capital

held by the Company
AOAMERAER/HRER 2L
Directly Indirectly
¢ [
2023 2022 2023 2022
“g-cF -E--F CECcE B

- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%

- - 60% 60%

100% 100%

100% 100%

Principal activities

TEER

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

REZR

Procurement, outsourcing, sales and
marketing of the Group's products
and provides logistics services in the
PRC

FERERS M HERERASE
EmRREMRRS

Investment holding of land use rights in
the PRC and property management
PE HRRE REBRRIFE

HEER

Investment holding of land use rights in
the PRC and property management
B D RRE REBRRF

i

Properties development in PRC

EREUENRER

Manufacturing of Handsets and 10T
terminals business in the PRC and
Electronics manufacturing services
business in the PRC

EEEETRRIBARGERR
STRERBHEREN

Design and development of handsets and
|0T terminals business in the PRC

Bl ER G GRS Y
Binxh
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41. TEMEA T 2F1F @

Name of subsidiaries

). PR

Shenzhen Simcom Technology
Limite*
MIFRERRERAR!

Simcom Holdings HK Limited
RAERERERAR

Shanghai iLove Limited"
SRR RIERAR

Shanghai Xinkang Electronic
Technology Limited
HEERETHEARAR!

Smartwireless Technology Limited!

K RERRERRARAR

Shanghai Mabile Phone Public
Testing Platform Co., Ltd *

LEFBHHARRET A
ERAR!

Taizhou SIM Real Estate Limited®
FNENEEERAG

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
HRAL/ R
RERES

28 August 2008

The PRC
ZEE\ENRZT/\R
Gl

22 September 2008
Hong Kong
“EE\EAATZA
&%

27 February 2009

The PRC
“EENE-ACT4A
LG

5 January 2009

The PRC
“TTNE-AEA
e

13 February 2007

The PRC
“FRCEZATER
ke

21 December 2009
The PRC

2 g

hE

7 March 2013

The PRC
“2-=%=A+H
e

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

registered capital
BETRAR

R/ RER

Registered capital
RMB65,500,000

AR
ARE65,500,0007

Ordinary share
HK$1
LERIAT

Registered capital
USD3,000,000

AR
3,000,000% 7

Registered capital
RMB20,000,000

iR
AR20,000,0007

Registered capital
RMB20,500,000

AR
AR%205000007

Registered capital
RMB20,000,000

AR
AR20,000,00070

Registered capital
RMB20,000,000

AR
AR20,000,00070

Proportion of nominal value of
share capital/registered capital

held by the Company
ANAMERAEE/ ARERZ LA
Directly Indirectly Principal activities
EE ] IERH
2023 2002 2023 2022
-g-=F -“F--F CECZE —EBo-E

- - 100% 100%  Design and development of Handsets
and 10T terminals business in the
PRC
EREfS R AR THR S
Binzi

- - 100% 100%  Investment holding
RERR

- - 100% 100%  Investment holding
RERR

- - 100% 100%  Investment holding
REAR

- - 100% 100%  Design and development of handsets
and [OT terminals business in the
PRC
KSR RAEF AR LS
£y

87.5%  Design and development of handsets
and 10T terminals business in the
PRC
B et KRR TR RSB
%

97.5%

- - 100% 100%  Properties development in the PRC
ERERENEER

RAMEEBERAR —F - =FFH
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 41. T EME R T ZF1F @)

SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

268

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up share capitallregistered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
registration registered capital RAARBRAERE/ SMER LA
Name of subsidiaries AL/ R EERTRAR Directly Indirectly Principal activities
HEAAER REREE s/ EhER ¢ [ IEEH
2023 2002 2023 2022
“B-zE -T-o-F CZBCZE CEoC
Jiangsu Chenri Investment Limited* 24 April 2013 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
THRAREBRAR The PRC RMB50,000,000 RERR
2 CERACTRE AR
il ARE50,0000007
Jiangsu Yunmao Internet of Things 7 June 2013 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Development of infernet of things system
Technology Limited" The PRC RMB10,000,000 and online-to-offline equipment in the
IHZENBENEERAT  —E-=E/AtA Al PRC
GilE7 ARE10,000,00070 EPERERZIRESRE
Shanghai Wide-Top Financial 17 July 2013 Registered capital - - 100% 100% ~ Finance lease service in the PRC
Leasing Co, Ltd ! The PRC USD17,000,000 ErEREHERERE
HERSREREARAR Z2-CEEATER EfiER
e 1700000057
Alpha Apex Limited 26 October 2012 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Samoa Usp1 KRR
“E-TETACTAR EfERIER
@%Eﬁ_ﬁ%
Shanghai Yunmao 0T Umited“ 11 October 2014 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Development of infernet of things system
LEEENBENEERAG  ThePRC RMB10,000,000 and online-to-offiine equipment in the
“E-RETAT-A AR PRC
G ARE10,000,0007T ErEREIREZTRERR
Shenyang Zhonghong Intel-Tech 28 October 2014 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Development of automated test
Limitedt* The PRC RMB30,000,000 equipment in the PRC
BB RARAR! ZE-METAZTAR  EER ErERZEDRERE
e ARE30,000,0007T
Shanghai Simcom System Limited* 17 March 2014 Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Building design and construction of
FEBRRAREN(LE) The PRC RMB20,000,000 smart home in the PRC
BRAF “2-WESATEE  EfiEAR AR RRER IR
lEi AR%20,00000070

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

Proportion of nominal value of
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41. TEMEA T 2F1F @

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up
incorporation/ share capital/
registration registered capital
Name of subsidiaries HRRL/ER BRTRAR
WEAR2H AERHY R/ RER
Guangdong Chentuo Robot 11 March 2015 Registered capital
Technology Co., Limited” The PRC RMB10,000,000
BESAMEANRERAR —E-RfZAt-B  iffA4K
Gl ARE10,000,0007C
Shenyang Jingxingcheng Automation 24 August 2015 Registered capital
Technology Co., Limited? The PRC RMB10,000,000
IBREAESEIERAR —S-RAFN\A-THA #RES
e ARE10,000,00070
Shenzhen Yunding Vending 16 January 2015 Registered capital
Operators Co., Limited The PRC RMB7,000,000
MITEREHESRES ZE-RE-RRE HfER
ERAR! G ARET 000,000
Shanghai Bachen Inteligent 14 October 2015 Registered capital
Technology Co., Limited® The PRC RMB5,500,000
HEERBHBMBRAR’ ZE-RETATEA EfER
GilE AERE5,500,0007
Shanghai Pami Intelligent 14 March 2016 Registered capital
Technology Co., Limited® The PRC RMB10,000,000
LERRRERHARAA ZEEZRTER EfER
GilE ARE10,000,0007C
Guangdong SIM Technology 29 June 2021 Registered capital
Co., Limited" The PRC USD105,000,000
ERRAMEARAG “E--FRACTAR BfHER
w 105,000,000% 7
L Wholly foreign owned enterprises (“WFOE") registered in the PRC.
2 Sino-foreign equity joint venture registered in the PRC.
3 Re-investment in WFOE registered in the PRC.
4 Domestic Company registered in the PRC.
© The Company was de-registered at 29 June 2023.
< The Company was de-registered at 11 December 2023.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting

The Company was de-registered at 23 May 2023.

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Proportion of nominal value of
share capital/registered capital
held by the Company
ANAMERAEE/ ARERZ LA
Directly Indirectly
ER ]
2023 2022 2023 2022
ZECCE ZBCzZE —3-°F

Principal activities

223

—F——
=
!

- - - 100%  Development of automated test
equipment in the PRC
ERERE BB RARE

- - 60% 60% Development of automated test
equipment in the PRC
ErEREE D RERE

- - 70% 70%  Trading of snacks in the PRC
EREFEERES

- - - 100%  Design and development of Handsets
and 10T terminals business in the
PRC
EREfS R RRETHR S
Binzi

- - - 100%  Development of automated test
equipment in the PRC
ERERE B ARE

- - 100% 100%  Investment holding of land use rights in
the PRC
PE HRRE RERR

TRz 2R ERE -
EFEFMzPINEGERE -
EFRENEFEFMZ2INERELE -
FEHREBEEZZRERE -

2 ZARRZE==F A=+ BEUEZEM -
® ZATR=ZT=_=F+=A+—BEUY=EM -
Z ZARR-_E_=FRA=+=HEUH=EM -

P

I AR AT BT B A R AN E AR AF E AE
A (R AR B ES o
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 41.

SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)

TEM BN R Z5F1E @

A maijority of these subsidiaries operate in handsets and IOT
terminals business and Property Management. The principal
activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal place

Principal activities of business
FEEWR FTEEEMR
Handset and 10T terminals business PRC

FHE 2 B A A o T R
Property management PRC
MEMEER 215

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that has material non-controlling

interests:

Place of Proportion of

incorporation ownership interests

And principal and voting rights held by
Name of subsidiaries place of business non-controlling interests

FERER
WEARAH ERRIREEELHE FEREER AR
2023 2022
—E-cE -

SYRE PRC 40% 40%
RAEF e

Individually immaterial Subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests

B AR EANEAR

Summarised financial information for the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022 in respect of the Group’s
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is
set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

ZEMBRABRBA I RHE TR R ER
IMEBARYEEEER - ZEMBRRIZE
REBHINMT

Number of subsidiaries

MEBAREE
2023 2022
—E-=F T —4F
7 7
3 4

TREJIAEERNEFRAEAI ERES 2
F2EMBAT

(Loss) profit

allocated to Accumulated non-
non-controlling interests controlling interests
AREFERELR Y
(%) & ZiTEERER
2023 2022 2023 2022
ZECCE it Sl ZECCE i S
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn Thn TR T
(3,247) 1,09 7,130 10,377
(7,863) 3,746
(733) 14123

AEEBREERFIEREZZHNBLARTRER
R =FR IR CFF A=+ —HIHF
EZHEERBIBINT - TXFTEZ B ER
BE T AREHEBAARIFEEEE o
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SUBSIDIARIES (coNTINUED)
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41. TEMEA T 2F1F @

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities

Total equity

Revenue

Other income, gains and losses
Expenses

Income tax refund

(Loss) profit for the year
Other comprehensive (expenses) income
for the year

Total comprehensive (expenses) income
for the year

(Loss) profit for the year attributable to
— the owner of SYRE
— non-controlling interests of SYRE

(Loss) profit for the year

Other comprehensive (expenses) income
for the year attributable to
— the owner of SYRE
— non-controlling interests of SYRE

Other comprehensive (expenses) income for

the year

Total comprehensive (expenses) income for

the year attributable to:
— the owner of SYRE
— non-controlling interests of SYRE

Total comprehensive (expenses) income for

the year

Net (outflow) cash flow from operating
activities

Net (outflow) cash flow

FRBEE
MEBEE
inEE=Yi
AR

WA

HAWA ~ Yoas BB 1R
X

RBIFTFH

AEE (B5R) 47
AEFHEAMEE (51 s

AEE2E (FX) KB

THBBREEAFE (BR) EF
—RAEXRZHEAA
—RABEEZ IR ES

AEE (B18) 4 F

THBREERFE
Hth 2 (50 Yt
—RAEXZHEAA
—RAEX 2 IS

AEFHEMEE (FI5) s

T RBREEAFERH
(R Wi 4B 3R
—RABXEZHAA
—RAER 2R

AEEE2E (R BEER

REEBAERE R RA
R

Be (Rt RAFE

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THT
13,532 14,005
4,479 12,703
(184) (765)
17,827 25,943
812 815
(7,337) 2,598
(1,668) (812)
75 137
(8,118) 2,738
(186) 684
(8,304) 3,422
(4,871) 1,643
(3,247) 1,095
(8,118) 2,738
(111) 410
(75) 274
(186) 684
(4,982) 2,053
(3,322) 1,369
(8,304) 3,422
(86) 1,095
(86) 1,095
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

42. RNQ BB FAR R R R 7

Non-current assets
Investment in a subsidiary
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Current assets

Other receivables
Financial assets at FVTPL
Bank balances

Current liabilities
Amount due to a subsidiary
Other payables and accruals

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2023

FRBEE
R—ENB AR ZIKE
FE Bt /B8 R OB

RBEE

HoA & WURIR
BAFEFABRRZEREE
RITHEER

wREBAE
P& — KT8 A R0
HLA A Bl R K B At IR

REBREFHE
REERRBRE
BN fEHE

A

G

A

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBxT FHT
179,803 179,803
1,323,396 1,129,476
1,503,199 1,309,279
629 3,962

468 1,602
2,544 1,492
3,641 7,056
130,558 11,700
1,771 1,983
132,329 13,683
(128,688) (6,627)
1,374,511 1,302,652
214,335 219,852
1,160,176 1,082,800
1,374,511 1,302,652
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42, AN B AR R K A (D)

Movement in the Company’s reserves

At 1 January 2022 RZF-Z%-A-H
Loss and total comprehensive TEEBER
expense for the year FERLRE
Excises of share options frfbiethiE
Repurchase of ordinary shares FEEER
At 31 December 2022 e S
+ZA=1-A
Profit and comprehensive FEERHREE
income for the year LN
Transfer under forfeiture of share option FRMER TR iR &8
Shares granted under the share RERARR RIS
award scheme i
Repurchase of ordinary shares FEEER
At 31 December 2023 W_E-=F
+ZA=1-H

AARRBEE

Share Retained

Capital based Employee profits

Share  redemption payment share trust Special  (Accumulated
premium reserve reserve resenve reserve loss) Total

WEA EERH REER
RBEE EXREGE DEA: ERRE KHRE  (RHER) Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEn Tién TR TEn Tién TR
768915 30475 18,060 (16,623) 193,848 120824 1,115499
= = = = = (10,054) (10,054)
449 - (189) = = - 260
(22,905) 8,230 - - = (8.230) (22,905)
746,459 38705 17871 (16,623) 193,848 102,540 1,082,300
- - - - - 11,510 71,510
- - (9,269) - - 9,269 -
- - - 16,623 - (4,074) 12,549
(12,743) 5517 - - - (5,517) (12,743)
733,716 44222 8,602 - 193,848 179,788 1,160,176
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Pri'ncipal Properties

- As at 31 December 2023
RZFBZ=F+=-A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BREY=

Group’s effective
interest in the

Location properties

AEERYEH
1th 2 ZERER
Block A, SIM Technology Building, 100%

No. 633 Jinzhong Road,
Changning District,

Shanghai, the PRC

HE PERER S HEK633 5t
RABAREAE

Block B, SIM Technology Building, 100%
No. 633 Jinzhong Road,

Changning District,

Shanghai, the PRC

HE PERER S EIK633 5t

RARH AEBEZ

An industrial complex, located at 100%
No. 37 Shenbei Road,

Shenbei New District,

Shenyang,

Liaoning Province,

the PRC

PEIEZE &G LR

ALEE37 SRA — A TR

Shop 32, Block 1, 60%
The Riverside Country,

location at No. 32

Shenbei Road,

Shenbei New District, Shenyang,

Liaoning Province, the PRC

PERZ R &G LR

S Ab B 3256 B s AR /K BF 102 32507 7 A
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Approximate gross
floor area

BROBEEERS
(sq. m)
(F7K)

11,615

11,262

51,118

2,279

Usage

R

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

GES

Industrial

T

Commercial

[CES

Category of
lease

HLAER

Medium-term
lease

HEITRAY

Medium-term
lease

HEITRAY

Medium-term
lease

HEITRAY

Medium-term
lease

T AR A



RESULTS
Revenue

(Loss) profit before taxation
Taxation

(Loss) profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ES
LN

BRI AT (B 1) A
B

RER (B51R) &

AT AL :
KREERA
Ei2Rly S

BEHER
RaMR

LNt 2PNl 3

FER R

Financial Summary -
MBREE ,NQ\

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t+-BLEE

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
“E-NE —ECEE —EC-F —E-— —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THT THIT THI THERT
1,281,505 1,073,218 755,994 638,017 543,940
(91,497) (56,652) (252,310) (499,315) 416,943
16,636 9,459 6,788 (8,507) (83,769)
(74,861) (47,193) (245,522) (507,822) 333,174
(76,938) (38,323) (245,800) (509,453) 344,285
2,077 (8,870) 278 1,631 (11,111)
(74,861) (47,193) (245,522) (507,822) 333,174
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1t—-HLEE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
—E-NE —ECEE —EC-F —E-CF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THAT THT THT THER
2,866,930 2,801,636 2,583,180 2,053,854 2,149,540
(756,259) (653,771) (688,997) (745,518) (530,347)
2,110,671 2,147,865 1,894,183 1,308,336 1,619,193
2,092,341 2,132,402 1,881,252 1,294,213 1,619,926
18,330 15,463 12,931 14,123 (733)
2,110,671 2,147,865 1,894,183 1,308,336 1,619,193
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Cho Tung (Chairman)

Ms. YEUNG Man Ying

Mr. LIU Jun (Chief technical
officer) (resigned as Executive
Director with effect from 28
September 2023)

Mr. ZHU Wenhui

Mr. ZHU Qi (appointed as
Executive Director with effect
from 28 September 2023)

Non-executive Director
Mr. WONG Hei, Simon

Independent non-executive
Directors

Mr. LIU Hing Hung

Mr. WU Zhe (resigned as
independent non-executive
Director with effect from
25 January 2024)

Mr. LI Minbo

Mr. YANG Wentao (appointed as
independent non-executive
Director with effect from
25 January 2024)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. LIU Hing Hung (Chairman)

Mr. WU Zhe (resigned as a
member of Audit Committee
with effect from 25 January
2024)

Mr. LI Minbo

Mr. YANG Wentao (appointed as a
member of Audit Committee with
effect from 25 January 2024)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. LIU Hing Hung (Chairman)

Mr. WU Zhe (resigned as a
member of Remuneration
Committee with effect from 25
January 2024)

Mr. LI Minbo

Mr. YANG Wentao (appointed as
a member of Remuneration
Committee with effect from
25 January 2024)

Mr. WONG Cho Tung

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. LIU Hing Hung (Chairman)
Mr. LI Minbo

Mr. WONG Cho Tung
COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. CHAN Chi Yin

AUDITORS

Certified Public Accountants
Registered public interest entity

auditors
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Cdrporate Information

LEGAL ADVISERS AS TO
HONG KONG LAWS

LCH Lawyers LLP

Eric Chow & Co.

in association with Commerce &
Finance Law Offices

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Hang Seng Bank Limited
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank

BERMUDA REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HONG KONG REGISTERED OFFICE

Unit 1206, 12th Floor,
Billion Trade Centre
31 Hung To Road
Kwun Tong

Hong Kong

SHANGHAI HEAD OFFICE

Building A, SIM Technology Building
No. 633 Jinzhong Road

Changning District

Shanghai

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Butterfield Fund Services
(Bermuda) Limited

Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

WEBSITE ADDRESS
http://www.sim.com
STOCK CODE

2000
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